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2004 Financial Performance
Excluding items Affecting Comparabiiity*
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Net EBIT* Net
Sales Income

% Change vs. 2003

* Net Income and EPS exclude the reduction of the provision for income taxes resulting from the adjustment of income tax contingency
reserves in 2004 and the after-tax effect of business realignment and asset impairment charges and gain on sale of business in 2003.
For a reconciliation of financial performance reported in accordance with U.S. generally accepred accounting principles (“GAAP”) to
financial performance excluding items affecting comparability, see page 31.

** Earnings Before Interest and Income Taxes (“EBIT”) of $902.2 million for 2004 compares with EBIT of $813.5 million for 2003,

excluding business realignment and asset impairment charges of $25.4 miltion and gain on sale of business of $8.3 million. EBIT
presented in accordance with GAAP was $796.4 million for 2003.

Safe Harbor Statement

The nature of the Company’s operations and the environment in which it operates subject it to changing economic, competitive,
regulatory and technological conditions, risks and uncertainties. In connection with the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995, the Company notes the following factors that, among others, could cause future results to differ materially
from the forward-looking statements, expectations and assumptions expressed or implied herein. Many of the forward-looking statements
contained in this document may be identified by the use of forward-looking words such as “intend,” “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,”
“should,” “planned,” “estimated,” and “potential,” among others. Factors which could cause results to differ include, but are not limited
to: changes in the Company’s business environment, including actions of competitors and changes in consumer preferences; customer
and consumer response to selling price increases; changes in governmental laws and regulations, including taxes; market demand for new
and existing products; changes in raw material and other costs; pension cost factors, such as actuarial assumptions, market performance
and employee retirement decisions; successful resolution of upcoming labor contract negotiations; and the Company’s ability to imple-
ment improvements to and reduce costs associated with the Company’s supply chain.




To Our Fellow Stockholders:

ou'll notice two differences In this year's annual report to
stockholders ... one obvious, the other more subtle.

First, with the addition of this Summary Annual
Report, we've created a beautiful, color portrayal
of Hershey’s iconic brands and dedicated employees.
Together, our brands and employees embody the timeless
bonds between Hershey's rich tradition and the enormous
opportunities that lie ahead.

The second difference is our proposed new name,
“The Hershey Company.” This is how our consumers
and customers best know us and it better communicates
our long-term focus on being a leading confectionery
and snack company, not just a “food” company. I hope

you like both changes.

2004 Results Your Company recorded an excellent
2004. The combination of strong, top-line growth
and solid cost control delivered record sales, market
share, profitability and returns. Net income for the
year (excluding items affecting comparability) was
$529.8 million, or $2.06/share-diluted, an increase of
15% vs. 2003*. This marked the fourth consecutive

year of double-digit gains in earnings per share:

*For a presentation of net income, earnings per share-diluted and
compound annual growth rate in accordance with GAAP reconciled to
measures excluding items affecting comparability, please see page 31.

"00-04
2001 2002 2003 2004 CAGR
EPS growth 14.5% 11.3% 13.3% 15.1% 13.5%
(excluding items
affecting comparability*)

2004 Highlights
Progress Against Qur Value-Enhancing Strategy
Net sales increased 6.2% during 2004 as a result of strong
marketplace gains. Total U.S. consumer takeaway grew
7%, expanding Hershey’s confectionery leadership position
in measured channels by 0.6 share points. In a $15+
billion confectionery market, every tenth of a point in
share growth is very important and very profitable.
Innovation within core confectionery and the broader
snack market played a major role in our success. We
introduced several new confectionery product platforms
bringing news and superior benefits to consumers,
including Hersheys Kisses with caramel, Swoops, Sinores,
Ice Breakers Liquid Ice and Hersheys Take 5. We also
supported our very successful “Limited Editions” strategy

with several introductions during the year.




We're off to a good start in adjacent snack segments
with the introduction of our SnackBarz line, Hersheys
SmartZone balanced nutrition bars, and a four-item line
of premium cookies. All of our new products capitalize
on Hershey’s leading brands, confectionery expertise and
leading-edge business system.

Our selling capabilities gave us a solid competitive
advantage during the year. Our new retail structure
and a more customer-focused, flexible trade strategy
enabled strong gains in retail takeaway and market share
in such high-growth, profitable trade channels as mass
merchandisers, drug and convenience stores. Hershey is
the clear leader in these outlets.

Results outside the U.S. were mixed, but showed clear
improvement in key focus areas. Hershey Canada, for
example, delivered another strong year in both sales and
profit growth. Hershey do Brasil, while small, made
progress due to a combination of on-trend new products
and an improving cost structure. Hershey Mexico recorded
good sales growth, although its small position in this
attractive marketplace requires a far more competitive cost
structure. This is now being addressed.

We made exciting progress with acquisitions, closing
on two “buy and build” opportunities. Grupo Lorena
increased Hershey Mexico’s size by over 40%, providing
access to the many small retail outlets in Mexico and creat-
ing the opportunity to expand the very popular Peldn Pelo
Rico brand into the high-potential U.S. Hispanic market.
Mauna Loa, the second acquisition, is the leading brand of
macadamia nuts and macadamia nut snacks. The opportu-

nities to build the Mauna Loa brand and extend Hershey

brands into this segment are immense. We already have

new products in development combining the best of both.

Organizational Excellence Our achievements in 2004
and prospects for the future reflect the loyalty and dedication
of over 13,000 Hershey employees around the world ...
colleagues who embrace the collaboration and cooperation
needed to ensure our Company’s long-term success.

We announced several key executive changes in 2004.
In June, Dan Azzara was promoted to the executive team
as Vice President, Global Research & Development, in
recognition of his outstanding contributions leading the

R&D team as well as the global nature and long-term
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Richard H. Lenny
Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer




potential of our business. Also in June, Ray Brace was
promoted to Senior Vice President, Operations. Ray
continues to unlock enormous capabilities throughout
our Operations network, meeting marketplace demands
for a flexible, cost-effective value chain while supporting
Hershey's accelerating pace of innovation.

Frank Cerminara announced his retirement in
October as our Senior Vice President, Chief Financial
Officer, after an illustrious, 32-year career with Hershey.
I've been privileged to work with Frank for four years,

a period during which our financial results and his
capability as CFO speak for themselves.

We are fortunate to have Dave West as our new
Chief Financial Officer. Over the past three years, Dave
has played a pivortal role in planning and executing our
value-enhancing strategy. He brings a wealth of financial,
accounting and control experience from large, complex
businesses, as well as a comprehensive understanding of
Hershey’s business system, accounting practices and
control procedures. Dave’s appointment will ensure that
Hershey continues to perform well in all areas of finance.

Chris Baldwin joined our executive team as Senior
Vice President, Global Chief Customer Officer, in October.
Chris’ broad experience spans field sales, customer marketing,
logistics and organizational development. He has a superb
track record across numerous snack market businesses and
all classes of trade. Chris will accelerate the momentum
established over the past few years.

We made numerous changes to our structure, imple-
mented cross-functional rotations, and developed new

processes during 2004. Together, these created promotion

opportunities for many employees, built new capabilities,
and ensured that our organization continues to evolve to
meet the needs of a rapidly changing marketplace.

Superior information capabilities drive our decision-
making just as new products drive our marketplace success.
We're now capitalizing on the potential of our enterprise-
wide SAP system through such initiatives as customer
profitability, state-of-the-art human resource tools, and
upgrades to our manufacturing network.

Hershey employees’ commitment and focus are
critical to our success in managing costs and controlling
expenses. Despite a significant run-up in virtually all
areas, Hershey’s total costs increased at a rate below our
sales growth. This enabled us to invest in our brands
and our people, both for 2004 and the long term.
Looking ahead, we must continue to find creative ways
to reduce costs while meeting the needs of our consumers

and our employees.

Governance Hershey continued to strengthen its
governance practices during 2004. Each Board committee’s
charter, as well as our comprehensive Corporate
Governance Guidelines, reflects our Board’s commitment
to strong governance on your behalf. We implemented
an enhanced code of ethics for all employees, officers
and directors. All of these documents are available on
the Company website: www.hersheys.com.

As a result of our strong operating performance, we
were able to enhance Hershey’s capital structure. In April,
we executed a 2:1 stock split. This was followed by the

repurchase of $500 million of our Common Stock from



the Milton Hershey School Trust in July. An additional
$116 million in open-market purchases took place
throughout the year. The annual dividend was increased
by 11.4% in August, marking the 75th consecutive year of
quarterly dividend payments to stockholders and the 30th

consecutive year with a dividend increase.

Looking Ahead We now have completed the third year
of our value-enhancing strategy ... a period during which
we've delivered superior profitability and returns and,
over the past two years, restored sales momentum. The
opportunities to build upon this success in 2005 and
beyond are immense, opportunities which demand that we
“raise the bar” in terms of our performance expectations.
This is what's required if Hershey is to continue being
successful and remain an energized, vibrant place to work.

Specifically, we'll further build our U.S. confectionery
leadership while gaining critical mass within relevant
snack market adjacencies. This growth will be fueled by a
robust pipeline of innovative new products and platforms.
We'll continue to seek out acquisition candidates which
are aligned with our strategy and provide long-term,
profitable growth potential.

Whether through internal development or
acquisition, were encouraged by our prospects within
core confectionery and the broader snack market. Here’s
why. We have the number-one position in confectionery,
and are number three overall within a U.S. snack market
generating over $60 billion in retail sales. Hershey is
the number-two snack marketer in the very attractive

convenience store channel. And, in terms of highly

|

profitable and on-trend instant consumables, Hershey is
the number-one snack marketer overall. Clearly, we have
both the necessary scale to leverage our iconic brands and
core competencies as well as considerable room to grow.

For Hershey International, we're focused on
building our brands and profitably expanding with global
customers. Our product development and selling resources
are now structured to ensure that a global perspective is
provided for all of our major strategic initiatives.

In addition to a robust new product pipeline, we're
strengthening capabilities across the business system.
This will ensure sustainability regarciless of the competitive
challenges, the ever-changing needs of our consumers, or
the increasing demands of our customers.

Everywhere I turn, 'm encouraged by “Great People
Building Great Brands.” We compete in an on-trend
category with an advantaged business system that’s
clearly focused on transformational growth opportunities.
However, it’s the 13,000+ people committed to winning
day-in-and-day-out who really make the difference. I'm
confident of our collective commitment to the Company,
to our stockholders and to each other. Its a privilege to

be part of The Hershey Company.

ar

Richard H. Lenny
Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer




Hershey’s iconic brands have
been winning with consumers
for more than a century.




Consumers have axperienced a special
connection to Hersney for more than 100 years.
Our brands, inclucing Hershey's, Reese’s,

Kit Kat, Hershey's Kisses, Jolly Rancher,
Twizzlers, York, Almond Joy and lce Breakers,
are cultural icons, Our products hold an
enduring place in people’s lives, and consumers
everywhere trust that Hershey stands for
guality, fun and special memories.

This unigue connection with consumers

provides Hershey with both an exceptional

legacy and an exciting future. Our brands are outstanding
platforms for driving growth as we extend

into new segments of the snack category by offering
products and benefits that today’s consumers want.
We're connecting our brands with these

consumers in rew and unique ways that meet

the needs of their aramatically changing

lifestyles and that uild upon their personal,

emotional relationsnip with Hershey.




Connecting with Consumers

Hershey is strengthening its connection with

consumers, marketing and selling products in
increasingly innovative ways. It might be a

consumer unwrapping a Hershey's Milkk Chocolate
Limited Edition bar ... a visitor snapping a picture

of our 12-story sign at Timeas Souare in the

center of Mannattan ... a family trip to Hershey's
Chocolate World In Hershey, Pa. ... or a visit

to www.hersheys.com that directly delivers the

neritage and fun of Hershey. We’re providing opportunities
for consumers to experience the sights, sounds,

smells, feelings and, of course, great tastes of our brands.

And we're discovering relevant, new ways for
consumers to connect with Hershey, Our
partnership with Latina pop superstar Tnalia,
for example, creates deep connections with
consumers in the rapidly growing Hispanic
market ... and our Reese's Racing program
gives milions of NASCAR fans the chance to
see one of Hershey's great brands in action
each week of racing season.

Kevin Harvick of Reeses Racing,
Latina superstar Thalfa,
quarterbacks Donovan McNabb
and Tom Brady, and actress
Hilary Duff are helping Hershey

connect with consumers.




HERSHEY'S BRANDS
AND PROMOTIONS

HERSHEY FOODS
CORPORATION

HERSHEY'S GIFTS

HERSHEY'S KITCHENS

BISCOVER HERSHEY




Hershey continues to create
excitement with new products,
including fce Breakers Liquid
Ice, Hersheys Take 5, Swoops
and Reeses white chocolate
peaut buster cups.
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Transtorming the Pertiolie

Hershey’s orands ana disciplined focus con

innovation help us reach the growing number of

consumers looking for snack choices combining

taste, nutrition and convenience. Wig're transierming our

portelio ﬁ@ seiisty {his demand and delivering the
regl tasts consumers expest from Rarsiey mn e,
@@HﬁM@f emd Mare WHCIESom? snedes

DETONTS. With Hershey's SnackBarz, we've

extended our powerful orands into more

wholesome, grain-based snacking. Hersheys

SmeartZone nitrition are formulated to deliver

the superior nutrtional benefits of Dr. Sears’

Zone Diet ang have the great taste of Hershey's.

We recently enterad the snack nut market

wiih our acquisftion of Mauna Loa, the leading

orand of macadamia nit snacks. Our sugar-free

Hersheys, Reeses and York products mest

the needs of consumers concernad about

suger consumption, This is just the beginning

as we continue to introcuce exciting new

products for consumers interested in a healthy

and active lifestyle.
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Hershey’s growth is driven
by the strong relationships
we've built with the most
successful companies in the
retail marketplace.




Hershey is committed to building the growth and

profitability of the confectionery category through

iInNovation, superior retail execution, seamiess

and value-added supply chain dynamics,

and flexible customer marketing programs.

We're devoting more resources to support our

customers and to capitalize on the impulse

nature of our category. And we're emphasizing

efforts to win with those customers committed

to growing confectionery sales and to meeting

consumers' changing needs. Today, we’re gaining market
share and building strength in high-growth channels as a
direct result of cur close collaboration with
customers. with 2.6 milion points of

distribution, our products are available nearly
everywhere people shop. And we're working




Hershey products are nearly
everywhere consumers shop,
including food stores and
vending machines. Our customers
recognize our superior execution
and teamwork with awards

such as the 7-Eleven Retailer
Initiative Award.

Retatier Initiative Award
i1 HSHTY FOODS CORPORATION
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hard to build relaticnships with new customers,
bringing our great trands to such outlets as
home improvemen: and electronics stores.

We're proud of the reiationships we've

built with our custcmers. 7-Eleven, Turkey Hill,
Wal-Mart and CVS, just 1o name a few,
honored us for our expertise, superior execution
and, most importantly, teamwork during 2004,

N
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- Hershey fs focused on ereating

& cost-cifective vallue ehafin
¢he Compeany, from

procuremen: to manufkeuring

o distrbudon.




Creating affordabiity mekes it possible for us
IAvest in new product development, marksting,
sales and all the otner areas so important to
Hershey's succsss today and fts future growih.
This smphasis or increasing efficiency and
maneging cosis exends across our Company
‘and involves &'l of cur employess. For example,
we've applied the latest robotic technology In
‘manufecturing where it will generate the greatest
produciivity gains. Our prooursment teem tekes
‘a global approach 10 sourcing metierials and
ingredients, leveraging the scele of Hershey
to miake the mos: cost-effective purchesss.
We've reduced log'st'cs costs by streamiining
our distribution network, and we've reduced our
tem count by 30%, aliowing us to concentrate
on products offering the best potentiel for N
' orofale grovdn. Our determined end censistent fosy
on ereating effordebilily ensures et we hevs Wie

)

 FESENITEES (0 SUIOR: OUF grest orands.

- @iiving growih and bullding superior profiEbily. . .




QOur great brands connect with
consumers around the world.
Examples of brands helping to
drive growth in key international
markets include Pot of Gold in
Canada, Hersheys Mais in Braazil,
Hersheys Nuggers in the Far East,
and Pelén Pelo Rico in Mexico.




the Iaunch of a wide range of new products,
including Hershey's Mais and Hershey's
Sremme. In Asia, we're working closely with
local, regional and global customers 10 grow
- Moving forward, our
strong relationships with such growing,
g|obal customers &s \v/\/al—!\/l:art 7—Eleven
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Our superior results simply wouldn't be possible

without the more than 13,000 great people of

Hershey working as one team. We attract and develop the
best people in the packaged goods industry, inspiring

them to be passionate about winning.
We provide them with the opportunity to

learn, grow, innovate and make a personal
confribution toward achieving superior business
oerformance. We emphasize diversity — the
diversity of thought, management styles,
experience and avllities that only comes

from bringing together people with different
backgrounds and different ways of seeing

tne world — as a critical element of our
success. And we reward our employees,
making them full partners in the growth of

our Company. We're proud of our employees
and the outstanding contribution they make
every day to building an even stronger,
more successful Hershey.




Hershey plays an active role in
strengthening communities

around the world. Our employees l // i

are key to these efforts, volunteering d 9

at food banks, working with Chﬂﬂ If@m S
Habitat for Humaniy and Miracle & Netw
participating in fundraisers such the alliance of premier hospitals for ¢

as the Walk for Diabetes.

WCF

WORLD COCOA FOUNDATION




Hershey is committed to making a poSitive
difference iocally, across North America and
around the world. \We support hundreds

of civic, educational, youth and cultural
organizations, with a special emphasis on
helping children at risk. Recognizing the
importance of education to a child's success
in life, we recently made a multi-year pledge
o the United Negro College Fund to provide
scholarships for minority students in Central
Pennsylvania. We play a leading role in

the global effort to ensure that cocoa is
grown responsibly and, through the World
Cocoa Foundation, in supporting income
improvement for cocoa-growing families
around the world. In partnership with our
employees, we are a major contributor to
the United Way and the Children’s Miracle
Network. And, for the past 28 years, we
nave sponsored the Hershey's Track and
Field Youth Program, inspiring over 500,000
young people each year to become more
physically active,




O

e

D

7

T)

)
\D

)
S

—

N

- Milten Hershey Sehool

Milton S. Hershey, our founder, and his wife,
Catnerine, were desply committed to making

- a difference in the l'ves of children in need. In
1908, they establisned & home and school for
orohans. Following his wife's death, Mr. Hershey
donated $80 milion — virtually his entire personal
fortune — to set up a trust that would provide for
this school in perpstutty. .




Today, Mien Hershay Seheel prevides GClucgiion
and 8 earing home GIVirenient for
1,300 ethnically civerss boys and girls from tamilies
in fnanclel end soclal need. The School

provides career fraining, nealth and

counseling for all e rollec students, as well

-as financial support for tnose who continue

on to coliege.

Milton Hershey Scrool, through the Miton
~ershey School sl I our largest stockholder.
‘We're aiseply prouc of our unique heritage
ana our speciel reationship to the Schodl,
and are keenly eware that its students are

the direct beneficiaries of our succsss.




Consolidated Statements of Income

In thousands of dollars except per share amounts

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Net Sales $4,429,248 $4,172,551 $4,120,317
Costs and Expenses:

Cost of sales 2,679,531 2,544,726 2,561,052

Selling, marketing and administrative 847,540 816,442 833,426

Business realignment and asset impairments, net — 23,357 27,552

(Gain on sale of business — (8,330) —_

Total costs and expenses 3,527,071 3,376,195 3,422,030

Income before Interest and Income Taxes (EBIT) 902,177 796,356 698,287

Interest expense, net 66,533 63,529 60,722
Income before Income Taxes 835,644 732,827 637,565

Provision for income taxes 244,765 267,875 233,987
Income before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change 590,879 464,952 403,578

Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of $4,933 tax benefit — 7,368 —
Net Income $ 590,879 $ 457,584 § 403,578
Earnings Per Share —Basic - Common Stock

Income before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change $ 2.38 $ 1.81 $ 1.51

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change, net of $.02 Tax Benefit — .03 —
Net Income $ 2.38 $ 1.78 $ 1.51
Earnings Per Share —Basic - Class B Common Stock

Income before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change $ 2.17 $ 1.64 $ 1.37

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change, net of $.02 Tax Benefit — .03 —
Net Income $ 2.17 $ 1.61 $ 1.37
Earnings Per Share — Diluted

Income before Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change $ 2.30 $ 1.76 $ 147

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change, net of $.02 Tax Benefit — .03 —
Net Income $ 2.30 $ 1.73 $ 1.47
Cash Dividends Paid Per Share:

Common Stock $ .8350 $ 7226 $ .6300

Class B Common Stock .7576 .6526 5675

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

For complete consolidated financial statements, refer to the Company's 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-X.




Consolidated Balance Sheets

LN

In thousands of dollars
December 31, 2004 2003
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,837 $ 114,793
Accounts receivable—trade 408,930 407,612
Inventories 557,180 492,859
Deferred income raxes 46,503 13,285
Prepaid expenses and other 114,991 103,020
Total current assets 1,182,441 1,131,569
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net 1,682,698 1,661,939
Goodwill 463,947 388,960
Other Intangibles 125,233 38,511
Other Assets 343,212 361,561
Total assets $ 3,797,531 $ 3,582,540
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 148,686 $ 132,222
Accrued liabilities 472,096 416,181
Accrued income taxes 42,280 24,898
Short-term debt 343,277 12,032
Current portion of long-term debt 279,043 477
Toral current liabilities 1,285,382 585,810
Long-Term Debt 690,602 968,499
Other Long-Term Liabilities 403,356 370,776
Deferred Income Taxes 328,889 377,589
Total liabilities 2,708,229 2,302,674
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred Stock, shares issued: none in 2004 and 2003 — —
Common Stock, shares issued: 299,060,235 in 2004 and 149,528,776 on a pre-split basis in 2003 299,060 149,528
Class B Common Stock, shares issued: 60,841,509 in 2004 and 30,422,096 on a pre-split basis in 2003 60,841 30,422
Additional paid-in capiral 28,614 4,034
Unearned ESOP compensation (6,387) (9,580)
Retained earnings 3,469,169 3,263,988
Treasury—Common Stock shares, at cost: 113,313,827 in 2004 and 50,421,139 on a pre-split basis in 2003 (2,762,304) (2,147,441)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 309 (11,085)
Toral stockholders’ equity 1,089,302 1,279,866
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 3,797,531 $ 3,582,540

The notes to consolidated financial statemencs are an incegral parc of these balance sheets.

For complete consolidated financial statements, refer to the Company's 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
In thousands of dotlars
For the years ended December 31, ' 2004 2003 2002
Cash Flows Provided from (Used by) Operating Activities
Net income $ 590,879 $ 457,584 $ 403,578
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided from operations:
Depreciation and amortization 189,665 180,567 177,908
Deferred income taxes (81,931) 38,895 137,817
Gain on sale of business, net of tax of $2,624 — (5,706) —
Business realignment initiatives, net of tax of $9,988
and $12,470, respectively — 15,488 21,509
Cumulative effect of accounting change, net of tax of $4,933 — 7,368 —

Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects from business
acquisitions and divestitures:

Accounts receivable—trade 17,319 (36,636) 9,250)
Inventories (40,043) 9,095 8,843
Accounts payable (11,266) 7,715 (8,542)
Other assets and liabiliries 132,827 (81,427) (106,520)
Net Cash Provided from Operating Activities 797,450 592,943 625,343
Cash Flows Provided from (Used by) Investing Activities
Capital additions (181,728) (218,650) (132,736)
Capitalized sofrware additions (14,158) (18,404) (11,836)
Business acquisitions (166,859) — —
Proceeds from divestitures — 20,049 12,000
Net Cash (Used by) Investing Activities (362,745) (217,005) (132,572)
Cash Flows Provided from (Used by) Financing Activities
Net change in short-term borrowings 331,245 897 4,130
Long-term borrowings — 3,194 304
Repayment of long-term debt (883) (18,633) (9,578)
Cash dividends paid (205,747) (184,6806) (167,821)
Exercise of stock options 79,634 55,120 86,491
Incentive plan transactions (81,933) (85,347) (158,507)
Repurchase of Common Stock (616,977) (329,433) (84,194)
Net Cash (Used by) Financing Activities (494,661) (558,888) (329,175)
(Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (59,956) (182,950) 163,596
Cash and Cash Equivalents as of January 1 114,793 297,743 134,147
Cash and Cash Equivalents as of December 31 $ 54,837 $ 114,793 $ 297,743
Interest Paid $ 66,151 $ 65,347 $ 64,343
Income Taxes Paid 289,607 207,672 57,495

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.

For complete consolidated financial statements, refer to the Company's 2004 Annual Report on Form 10-K.




Reconciliation of Items Affecting Comparability

In millions of dollars except per share amounts

For the years ended December 31,

2000

2001

x =3

2003

2004

Income before cumulative effect
of accounting change

Irems affecting comparabilicy
after tax:

Business realignment and asset
impairments included in
cost of sales

Costs to explore the sale of the
Company included in
selling, marketing and
administrative expense

Gain on sale of airplane included
in selling, marketing and
administrative expense

Business realignment and asset
impairments, net

Gain on sale of business

Tax provision adjustment

Elimination of amortization
of goodwill and other
intangible assets

$334.5

13.5

Per Share-
Diluted

$1.21

05

Per Share-
Dilured

$207.2 $.75

31.8 A1

140.1 51
(1.1) —

13.5 .05

$403.6

4.1

10.9

17.4

Per Share-
Diluted

$1.47

.01

.04

.06

$464.9

1.3

14.2
5.7)

Per Share-
Diluted

$1.76

.05
(.02)

$590.9

(61.1)

Per Share -
Diluted

$2.30

(.24)

Income excluding items
affecting comparability

$343.5

$1.24

$391.5 $1.42

$436.0

$1.58

$474.7

$1.79

$529.8

$2.06

Increase vs.

prior yr. 14.5%

Increase vs.
prior yr.

11.3%

Increase vs.
prior yr.

13.3%

Increase vs.
prior yr.

15.1%

2000-2004
CAGR

13.5%




Hershey Executive Team
(as of February 28, 2005)

Richard H. Lenny
Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Offrcer

Marcella K. Arline
Senior Vice President

Chief People Officer

C. Daniel Azzara
Vice President
Global Research and Development

Christopher J. Baldwin
Senior Vice President

Global Chief Customer Officer

John P. Bilbrey
Senior Vice President
President Hershey International

Raymond Brace
Senior Vice President
Operations

George F. Davis
Vice President
Chief Information Officer

Thomas K. Hernquist
Senior Vice President
President U.S. Confectionery

Burton H. Snyder
Senior Vice President
General Counsel and Secretary

David J. West
Senior Vice President

Chief Financial Officer

Board Committees

Audit Committes
Gary P. Coughlan, Chair
Robert F. Cavanaugh
Harriet Edelman

Marie J. Toulantis

Committee on Directors and
Caorporate Governance

Jon A. Boscia, Chair

Robert H. Campbell

Bonnie G. Hill

Marie J. Toulantis

Compensation and Executive
Organization Committee
Mackey J. McDonald, Chair
Robert H. Campbell

Robert F. Cavanaugh

Harriet Edelman

Bonnie G. Hill

Executive Committee
Richard H. Lenny, Chair
Jon A. Boscia

Gary P. Coughlan
Mackey ]. McDonald

Investor Services Program

The Company, through its agent
Mellon Bank, N.A., offers an Investor
Services Program. Features of the
program include the ability to pur-
chase initial shares of Hershey Foods
Corporation Common Stock, as well
as subsequent shares, directly from
our agent; dividend reinvestment;
automatic monthly deductions from
a bank account for optional cash
purchases; safekeeping of certificates;
and direct deposit of dividends.

For more information, contact:

Mellon Bank, N.A.

c/o Mellon Investor Services LLC
P O. Box 3338

South Hackensack, NJ 07606-1938
(800) 851-4216

www.melloninvestor.com

To request enrollment marerials,
please call (800) 842-7629.

Stockholder Inquiries

Questions relating to stockholder
records, change of ownership,
change of address and dividend
payments should be sent to the
Company’s Transfer Agent, Mellon
Investor Services LLC, whose
address appears below.

Financial Information

Security analysts, investment
managers and stockholders should
direct financial information
inquiries to the Investor Relations
contact listed below.

2004 Annual Report

The 2004 Annual Report to
Stockholders, including the
Consolidated Financial Statements
and Management’s Discussion and
Analysis, is provided with the
Company’s Proxy Statement. Further
information regarding various
aspects of the Company’s business
can be found on the Company’s
website at www.hersheys.com.

Electronic Delivery

In an effort to reduce paper mailed to
your home and help lower printing
and postage costs, we are pleased to
offer to stockholders the convenience
of viewing online Proxy Statements,
Annual Reports to Stockholders

and related materials. With your
consent, we can stop sending furure
paper copies of these documents. To
participate, follow the instructions

at www.icsdelivery.com/hsy or select
the Online Proxy/Voting option in
the Investor Relations section of the
Company’s website.

Online Voting at
WWW.proxyvote.com

Use the Internet to transmit your
voting instructions anytime before
11:59 p.m. EDT on April 18, 2005.
Have your proxy card in hand when
you access the website. You will be
prompted to enter your Control
Number to obtain your records

and create an electronic voting
instruction form.

Stockholder Information

Executive Offices

100 Crystal A Drive

P. O. Box 810

Hershey, PA 17033-0810
(717) 534-4000

Independent Auditors
KPMG LLP

345 Park Avenue

New York, NY 10017

Transfer Agent and Registrar
Mellon Investor Services LLC

85 Challenger Road

Ridgefield Park, NJ 07660
www.melloninvestor.com

(800) 851-4216 - Domestic Holders
(201) 329-8660 — Foreign Holders
(800) 231-5469 ~ Hearing Impaired
(201) 329-8354 ~ Foreign TDD line
for hearing impaired

Investor Relations Contact
James A. Edris

Vice President, Investor Relations
100 Crystal A Drive

P O. Box 810

Hershey, PA 17033-0810

(800) 539-0261

Financial Information
(800) 539-0261

www.hersheys.com

www.melloninvestor.com

Mellon Investor Services website provides
access to an Internet self-service product,
Investor ServiceDirect™ (“ISD”).
Through ISD, stockholders can view their
account profiles, stock certificate histories,
dividend reinvestment/book-entry
transactions (including any new funds
pending investment), dividend payment
histories, Form 1099 tax information,
current stock price quote (20-minute
delay) and historical stock prices.
Stockholders may also request a replace-
ment dividend check, the issuance of
stock certificates or the sale of shares
from a book-entry position, duplicate
Form 1099 or dividend reinvestment
statement, information concerning
safekeeping of stock certificates, an
address change, or stock transfer
instructions. Future ISD enhancements
are planned. Be sure to check the
www.melloninvestor.com website.

Trademarks and service marks
appearing throughout this Summary
Annual Report in italicized letters are
used by Hershey Foods Corporation to
identify its products and services.
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Board of Directors

1. Richard H. Lenny 3. Robert H. Campbell 5. Gary P. Coughlan 6. Harriet Edelman 8. Mackey J. McDonald
Chairman of the Board, Chairman of the Board Sentor Vice President Senior Vice President Chairman of the Board,
President and and Chief Executive Finance and Chief Business Transformation and Chief Executive Officer
Chief Executive Officer Officer (Retired) Financial Officer (Retired) Chief Information Officer and President

2. Jon A. Boscia Sunoco, Inc. Abborr Laboratories, Inc. Avon Products, Inc. VF Cozwmtion
Chairman of the Board Philadelphia, PA Abbott Park, IL New York, NY Greensbore, NC
and Chief Executive Officer 4. Robert F. Cavanaugh 7. Bonnie G. Hill 9. Marie J. Toulandis
Lincoln National Managing Director President Chief Executive Officer
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Philadelphia, PA Capital Partners Co-Founder New York, NY
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Los Angeles, CA
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Notice of 2005
Annual Meeting
and Proxy
Statement

“ 92004 Annual
- Report to
Stockholders

Hershey Foods Corporation

Proxy Statement and
2004 Annual Report
to Stockholders

March 10, 2005
To Our Stockholders:

It's my pleasure to invite you to attend the 2005 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders of Hershey Foods Corporation to be held at 2:00 p.m. on
April 19, 2005. We have a new meeting location this year. It will be
held at GIANT Center, 950 West Hersheypark Drive, Hershey,
Pennsylvania. A map providing directions to GIANT Center is on the
back cover of this publication. The doors to GIANT Center will open
at 12:30 p.m.

Business scheduled to be considered at the meeting includes the (1)
election of nine directors, (2) ratification of the appointment of KPMG
LLP as the Company’s independent auditors for 2005, (3) approval of
an amendment to the Company’s Restated Certificate of
Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of the

" Company’s Common Stock and Class B Common Stock and (4)

approval of an amendment to the Company’s Restated Certificate to
change the Company’s name to “The Hershey Company.” Additional
information concerning these matters is included in the attached
Notice of Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement. Management will
review the Company’s 2004 performance and will be available to
respond to questions during the meeting.

As in prior years, security measures will be in place at the Annual
Meeting for the safety of attendees. Metal detectors, similar to those
used in airports, will be located at the entrance to the meeting room.
You are encouraged not to carry items such as handbags and
packages to the meeting as all such items will be inspected. Photo
identification will be required to gain admittance. Weapons and
sharp objects (such as pocketknives and scissors), cell phones, pagers,
cameras and recording devices will not be permitted inside the
meeting room.

Ifyou plan to attend the meeting, please bring with you the admission
ticket located on the top half of your proxy card to gain admission. If
your shares are currently held in the name of your broker, bank or
other nominee and you wish to attend the meeting, you should bring
a letter from your broker, bank or nominee, or your most recent
account statement, indicating that you are the beneficial owner of
Hershey stock as of the record date, February 22, 2005.



We also invite you to visit HERSHEY'S CHOCOLATE WORLD visitors center from 9 a.m. to 6 p.m.
on the day of the Annual Meeting. Once again, we're offering stockholders a special 25% discount
on selected items. You will need to show one of the following items at HERSHEY'S CHOCOLATE
WORLD to receive the special discount: (1) admission ticket, (2) the letter from your broker, bank
or nominee, or (3) your account statement.

To assure proper representation of your shares at the meeting, please submit your proxy voting
instructions to the Company by Internet, phone or mail. Please refer to the enclosed proxy card for
more information on how to vote your shares.

I look forward to seeing you at the meeting.

Regards,

Richard H. Lenny
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Hershey Foods Corporation

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
on
April 19, 2005

The Annual Meeting of Stockholders of HERSHEY FOODS CORPORATION will be held at 2:00 p.m.
on April 18, 2005 at GIANT Center, 950 West Hersheypark Drive, Hershey, Pennsylvania 17033 for
the following purposes:

(1) To elect nine directors;
(2) To ratify the appointment of KPMG LLP as the Company’s independent auditors for 2005;

(8) To approve an amendment to the Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase
the number of authorized shares of the Company’s Common Stock, par value one dollar ($1.00)
per share, from 450,000,600 to 900,000,000 shares, and to increase the number of authorized
shares of the Company’s Class B Common Stock, par value one dollar ($1.00) per share, from
75,000,000 to 150,000,000 shares;

(4) To approve an amendment to the Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation to change
the Company’s name to The Hershey Company; and

(5) To transact such other business as may properly be brought before the meeting and any and
all adjournments thereof.

In accordance with the By-Laws and action of the Board of Directors, stockholders of record at the
close of business on February 22, 2005 will be entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the meeting and
any and all adjournments thereof.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Burton H. Snyder
Senior Vice President,
General Counsel and Secretary

March 10, 2005

Please follow the instructions on the enclosed proxy card for voting by Internet or by
telephone whether or not you plan to attend the meeting in person; or if you prefer, kindly
mark, sign and date the enclosed proxy card and return it promptly in the enclosed,
postage-paid envelope.



PROXY STATEMENT

This Proxy Statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of
Directors (“Board”) of HERSHEY FOODS CORPORATION, a Delaware corporation (the “Company”
or “Hershey Foods”), for use at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders (“Annual Meeting”) which will
be held at 2:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 19, 2005 at GIANT Center, 950 West Hersheypark Drive, Hershey,
Pennsylvania 17033, and at any and all adjournments of that meeting. This Proxy Statement and
the enclosed proxy card are being sent to stockholders on or about March 10, 2005. The Company’s
principal executive offices are located at 100 Crystal A Drive, Hershey, Pennsylvania 17033-0810.

Shares represented by properly voted proxies received by the Company at or prior to the Annual
Meeting will be voted according to the instructions indicated by such proxies. Unless contrary
instructions are given, the persons identified on the proxy card as proxies intend to vote the shares
so represented FOR the election of the nominees for director named in this Proxy Statement; FOR
the ratification of the appointment of KPMG LLP as the Company’s independent auditors for 2005;
FOR the approval of an amendment to the Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation to
increase the authorized number of shares of the Company’s Common Stock and Class B Common
Stock; and FOR the approval of an amendment to the Company’s Restated Certificate of
Incorporation to change the Company’s name to The Hershey Company. As to any other business
which may properly come before the Annual Meeting, the persons named on the proxy card will vote
according to their best judgment. -

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE GUIDELINES

Reproduced below are the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines
as amended and restated by the Company’s Board of Directors on February 15, 2005,
The Corporate Governance Guidelines may also be viewed on the Company’s website at
www.hersheys.com in the Investor Relations section.

Role of the Board of Directors

The business of the Company is carried out by its employees under the direction and supervision of
its Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”). The business shall be managed under the direction of the Board
of Directors (“Board”). In accordance with Delaware law, the role of the directors is to exercise their
business judgment in the best interests of the Company. This role includes:

¢ review of the Company’s performance, strategies and major decisions;

» gversight of the Company’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements and the integrity
of its financial statements;

s oversight of management, including review of the CEQ’s performance and succession planning for
key management roles; and

e oversight of compensation for the CEO, key executives and the Board, as well as oversight of
compensation policies and programs for all employees.

Selection and Composition of the Board

Board Size — As set forth in the By-Laws of the Company (“By-Laws”), the Board has the power to
fix the number of directers by resolution. The Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation
requires at least three directors. In fixing the number, the Board will be guided by the principle that
a properly functioning Board is small enough to promote substantive discussions in which each
member can actively participate, and large enough to offer diversity of background and expertise.




The Board will consider whether it is of the appropriate size as part of its annual performance
evaluation.

Board Membership Criteria — In selecting directors, the Board generally seeks individuals with
skills and backgrounds that will complement those of other directors and maximize the diversity and
effectiveness of the Board as a whole. Directors should be of the highest integrity and well-respected
in their fields, with superb judgment and the ability to learn the Company’s business and express
informed, useful and constructive views. In reviewing the qualifications of prospective directors, the
Board wili consider such factors as it deems appropriate in light of these guidelines, which may
include judgment, skill, diversity, experience with businesses and other organizations of comparable
size, the interplay of the candidate’s experience with the experience of the other Board members, and
the extent to which any candidate would be a desirable addition to the Board and any committees
of the Board. In general, the Board seeks individuals who are knowledgeable in fields including
finance, international business, marketing, information technology, human resources and consumer
products. All members of the Audit Committee must be financially literate and at least one member
must have accounting or related financial management expertise and be an audit committee financial
expert as defined in Item 401(h) of Regulation S-K of the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC”), or any Successor provision.

Independence — The Company is not required to have a majority of independent directors, because
it is a “controlled company” within the meaning of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) listing
standards. However, the Company recently has operated with a Board composed of directors who are
independent, with the exception of the Chairman and CEQ. As this practice has served the Company
well, a requirement that a majority of the Board consist of independent directors is included in these
guidelines. In addition, the Company’s Audit Committee, Compensation and Executive Organization
Committee, and Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance shall consist solely of
independent directors. At least annually, the directors shall determine which directors are
independent. Rather than have one set of criteria for Board members as a whole and additional
criteria for Audit Committee members, the Board will judge the independence of all directors based
on the stringent standards applicable to Audit Committee members. Accordingly, the independence
of directors shall be determined based on the following criteria:

o A director who receives (or, in the last three years, received), or whose immediate family member
receives (or, in the last three years, received), direct compensation as an employee or any
consulting, advisory or other compensatory fees from the Company, other than director or
committee fees and pension or other forms of deferred compensation for prior service (provided that
such compensation is not contingent in any way on continued service), is not independent, provided,
however, that in making such determination, compensation received by an adult child or stepchild
of a director who does not share a home with such director, for service as an employee of the
Company, shall not be considered, except in the case of service as an elected or appointed officer
of the Company, which service shall be considered.

o A director who is, or whose immediate family member is, a current partner or employee of a firm
that is (or, within the last three years, was) the Company’s internal or external auditor; or a director
who was, or whose immediate family member was, within the last three years (but is no longer)
a partner or employee of such firm, is not independent.

e A director who is (or, within the last three years, was) employed, or whose immediate family
member is (or, within the last three years, was) employed, as an executive officer of another
company where any of the Company’s present executives serves (or, within the last three years,
served) on that company’s compensation committee is not independent.

o A director who is an executive officer or an employee, or whose immediate family member is an
executive officer, of a company that makes (or, within the last three years, made) payments to or
receives (or, within the last three years, received) payments from the Company for property or



services in an amount which, in any single fiscal year, exceeds the greater of $1 million or 2% of
such other company’s consolidated gross revenues, is not independent.

o A director who is (or, within the last three years, was) an employee or a non-employee executive
officer of the Company is not independent.

o A director who is an immediate family member of an individual who is (or, within the last three
years, was) an executive officer of the Company, whether as an employee or non-employee, is not
independent.

¢ A director who is an affiliated person of the Company, as defined under the rules of the SEC, is
not independent; provided, however, if the director is an affiliated person solely because he or she
sits on the board of directors of an affiliate of the Company, as defined under the rules of the SEC,
then the director is independent if he or she, except for being a director on each such board of
directors, does not accept directly or indirectly any consulting, advisory, or other compensatory fee
from either such entity, other than the receipt of only ordinary-course compensation for serving
as a member of the board of directors, or any board committee of each such entity, and the director
satisfies all other standards.

o A director who is, or whose immediate family member is, a director, trustee, officer or employee
of a non-profit organization to which the Company has donated more than $100,000 in any year
within the last three years is not independent.

¢ A director’s participation in the Company’s Charitable Awards Program does not render him or
her non-independent.

A director who is not deemed non-independent under the foregoing shall be presumed to have no
material relationship with the Company, however the Board shall make its determination based on
all facts and circumstances. For purposes of application of these criteria, (i) “immediate family” shall
be defined as including all individuals who are considered immediate family of a director under the
regulations implementing the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as all individuals who are considered
immediate family of a director under the NYSE listing standards, (ii) compensation received by a
director for former service as an interim Chairman or CEO or other executive officer shall not be
considered in determining independence, and (iii) references to “Company” for purposes of
determining independence, include any parent or subsidiary in a consolidated group with the
Company. Directors shall notify the Chair of the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance
and the Chairman and CEO prior to accepting a board position on any other organization, so that
the effect, if any, of such position on the director’s independence may be evaluated.

Selection of Board Members — Nomination of directors is the responsibility of the Committee on
Directors and Corporate Governance, all of whose members shall be independent directors.
Recommendations may come from directors, stockholders or other sources. Recommendations may
come from management, with the understanding that the Board is not required to consider
candidates recommended by management. It is expected that all members of the Committee on
Directors and Corporate Governance will interview prospective candidates before their nominations
are approved by the Committee. An offer to join the Board will be extended by the Chair of the
Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance or the Chairman of the Board if the Chairman
is not also an officer or employee of the Company.

Tenure

¢ The Board has not established term limits, and, given the value added by experienced directors
who can provide a historical perspective, term limits are not considered appropriate. New ideas
and diversity of views are maintained by careful selection of directors when vacancies occur. In
addition, the performance of individual directors and the Board as a whole are reviewed annually,
prior to the nomination of directors for vote by stockholders at each Annual Meeting.

e When a director’s principal occupation or business or institutional affiliation changes materially
from that at the time of his or her first election to the Board, the director will tender his or her
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resignation by directing a letter of resignation to the Chair of the Committee on Directors and
Corporate Governance, except that if the director is the Chair of such committee, he or she shall
direct the resignation to the Chairman of the Board. The Board will determine whether to accept
such resignation.

o Directors will not be nominated for reelection after their 70® birthday.

Operation of the Board

Chairman — The CEO serves as Chairman of the Board. This serves the Company well, and the
independent directors have many opportunities to have a significant influence on the structure and
functioning of the Board. However, the Board might determine that during periods of transition
following the election of a new CEO or during other unusual circumstances, the CEO should not also
serve as Chairman of the Board.

Board Meetings

o The Board will hold approximately six regular meetings per year, scheduled by resolution of the
Board sufficiently far in advance to accommodate the schedules of the directors. Special meetings
may be called at any time by the Chairman or a Vice Chairman of the Board (if any), or by the CEO,
or by one-sixth (calculated to the nearest whole number) of the total number of directors
constituting the Board, to address specific issues.

o Agendas are established by the Chairman and sent in advance to the Board. Any director may
submit agenda items for any meeting. A rolling agenda has been established, which includes a full
annual review of the Company’s strategic plan, quarterly reviews of the Company’s financial
performance, and committee reports and updates at each meeting on the business and other items
of significance to the Company. Information relevant to agenda items shall be submitted to the
Board in advance, and the agenda will be structured to allow appropriate time for discussion of
important items.

Executive Sessions — Executive sessions are sessions of non-management directors. The directors
may choose te invite any member of management, including the Chairman and CEO. Typically, closed
sessions are held at the beginning of each regular Board meeting, and at such other times as the Board
may determine, with all directors, including the Chairman and CEQ, in attendance without any third
parties or Company officers or employees (other than the Chairman and CEO). Executive sessions
are held at the conclusion of each regular Board meeting, and at such other times as the non-
management directors may determine, without the Chairman and CEO or any other member of
Company management present, to review such matters as may be appropriate, including the report
of the outside auditors, the criteria upon which the performance of the CEO and other senior
managers is based, the performance of the CEQ measured against such criteria and the compensation
of the CEO. If at any time the Board includes any non-management directors who are not
independent, such directors shall be excluded from one executive session each year. Executive
sessions are chaired by an independent director assigned on a rotating basis. This has served the
Company well historically and has allowed each independent director an opportunity to serve as lead
director. In addition, any director may call a special executive session to discuss a matter of
significance to the Company and/or the Board.

Committees — All major decisions are made by the Board; however, the Board has established
committees to enable it to handle certain matters in more depth. The committees are (1) Audit, (2)
Directors and Corporate Governance, (3) Compensation and Executive Organization, and (4)
Executive. Members are expected to serve on committees, as recommended by the Committee on
Directors and Corporate Governance and approved by the Board. Committee members serve at the
pleasure of the Board, for such period of time as the Board may determine, consistent with these
governance guidelines. All directors serving on the Audit, Directors and Corporate Governance, and
Compensation and Executive Organization committees must be independent, as determined by the
Board in accordance with these governance guidelines and as required by applicable law and
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regulation. The Executive Committee is made up of the chair of each of the other committees along
with the Chairman of the Board. Any transaction not in the ordinary course of business by and among
the Company and Hershey Trust Company, Hershey Entertainment & Resorts Company and/or the
Milton Hershey School, or any subsidiary, division or affiliate of any of the foregoing, shall be reviewed
and approved in advance by a subcommittee composed of the independent members of the Executive
Committee. The charter of each committee is published on the Company’s website and will be made
available to any stockholder on request. Each committee chair shall report the highlights of the
committee meeting to the full Board at the Board meeting following the committee meeting. The
Chairman of the Board serves as chair of the Executive Committee. The chairs of the Audit
Committee, the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance and the Compensation and
Executive Organization Committee (the “Independent Committees”) are recommended by the
Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance and approved by the Board. Under normal
circumstances, following four consecutive years as the Chair of an Independent Committee, a director
shall not serve again on such committee for at least one year after standing down as the Chair thereof.
A Chair of an Independent Committee may be permitted to continue to serve on such committee with
Board approval if the Board determines that the former Chair uniquely fills a specific need of
such Committee. The structure and functioning of the committees shall be part of the annual
Board evaluation.

Director Participation in Board and Committee Meetings — Each director is expected to participate
actively in their respective committee meetings and in Board meetings. Directors are expected to
attend all meetings and are expected to come prepared for a thorough discussion of agenda items.
Directors are expected to attend the Company’s Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Participation by
directors will be reviewed as part of the annual assessment of the Board and its committees.

Access to Company Personnel

Directors have full and free access to the Company’s officers and employees. Division and function
heads regularly make presentations to the Board and committees on subjects within their areas of
responsibility. The CEO will invite other members of management to attend meetings or other Board
functions as appropriate. Directors may initiate communication with any employee and/or invite any
employee to any Board or committee meeting; however, they are expected to exercise judgment
to protect the confidentiality of sensitive matters and to avoid disruption to the business, and
they are expected to copy the CEO on written communications to company personnel under
normal circumstances.

Access to Outside Advisors

The Board and each committee have the power to hire independent legal, financial or other advisors
as they may deem necessary, without consulting or obtaining approval of Company management
in advance.

Training

Orientation — Each new Board member shall undergo an orientation designed to educate the director
about the Company and his/her obligations as a director. At a minimum, the orientation shall include
meetings with several members of the Hershey Executive Team and the Chief Governance Officer,
a tour of key facilities and review of reference materials regarding the Company and corporate
governance, the Company’s strategic plan and the last annual report.

Ongoing Education — The Company will pay reasonable expenses for each director to attend at least
one relevant continuing education program each year. Directors are encouraged but not required to
attend. In addition, the Company will keep directors informed of significant developments as
appropriate. Each Board meeting shall include a report to directors on (1) significant business
developments affecting the Company, (2) significant legal developments affecting the Company, and
(3) significant legal developments affecting the Board members’ obligations as directors.
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Oversight of Management

Review of CEO Performance and Compensation — The independent directors, together with the
Compensation and Executive Organization Committee, monitor the performance of the CEO.
Annually they shall review the performance appraisal of the CEO performed by the Compensation
and Executive Organization Committee and shall review and approve the CEO’s compensation
recommended by such committee.

Review of Strategic Plan — The Board shall review the Company’s strategic plan annually. All Board
members are expected to participate in an active review. The CEO will invite to the review members
of management with responsibility for key divisions and functions and any other personnel the
CEO deems helpful, for purposes of providing information sufficient to facilitate a full and
frank discussion.

Management Succession

e The Board shall review management succession plans annually. This shall include review by the
Board of organization strength and management development and succession plans for each
member of the Company’s executive team. The Board shall also maintain and review annually, or
more often if appropriate, a succession plan for the CEQO.

e Ifthe President, CEQ and/or Chairman of the Board is unable to perform for any reason, including
death, incapacity, termination, or resignation before a replacement is elected, then: (1) if the
Company is without a Chairman of the Board, the Chair of the Committee on Directors and
Corporate Governance shall serve as Chairman until a replacement is elected or, in the case of
temporary incapacity, until the Board determines that the incapacity has ended; (2) if the Company
is without a President and CEO, the interim President and CEO shall be the officer of the Company
approved by the Board, taking into consideration the annual recommendation of the CEO; (3) in
the case of incapacity of the President, CEQ and/or Chairman, the Board shall determine whether
to search for a replacement; and (4) the Chair of the Compensation and Executive Organization
Committee shall lead any search for a replacement.

Evaluation and Compensation of the Board

Annual Evaluaiions — The directors shall evaluate the performance of the Board and its committees
annually. Each director shall complete an evaluation form for the Board as a whole and each of the
committees on which he or she has served during the year. Evaluation results shall be reviewed by
the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance, which shall present to the Board the results
along with any recommendations for change that the committee deems appropriate. These
governance guidelines and the committee charters shall be reviewed annually in conjunction with
the annual evaluation. The Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance shall also review the
performance of Board members when they are considered for reelection and at any time upon request
of a Board member.

Director Compensation and Benefits

e General — The Compensation and Executive Organization Committee shall review and make
recommendations to the Board annually with respect to the form and amount of compensation and
benefits. These will be established after due consideration of the responsibilities assumed and the
compensation of directors at similarly situated companies.

e Stock Qwnership

— The Board will not nominate any person to be elected a director at an Annual Meeting of
Stockholders unless such person owns, as defined below, or agrees to purchase and own at least
200 shares of the Company’s Common Stock on or before the record date for the proxy
statement for such meeting.



— The Board desires that each director own, as defined herein, shares of the Company’s Common
Stock in an amount at least equal to the Stockholding Guidelines as of January 1 of each year
following the fifth anniversary of the date the Board approves this policy [February 17, 2004]
in the case of current directors and as of January 1 of each year following the fifth anniversary
of becoming a director in the case of a director first becoming a director subsequent to the date
of such Board approval. For purposes of the requirements herein and in the preceding
paragraph, ownership of the Company’s Common Stock includes Common Stock equivalent
shares such as common stock units deferred under the Company’s Directors’ Compensation
Plan and restricted stock units granted quarterly under that plan.

— Stockholding Guidelines as of January 1 of any year means the number of shares of the
Company’s Common Stock, as described in the preceding paragraph, with a value, valued at
the average closing price on the NYSE of the Common Stock on the first three trading days
of the month of December of the preceding year, equal to three times the sum of (a) the annual
retainer under the Company’s Directors’ Compensation Plan for such year and (b) the target
value of the restricted stock unit grant under that plan.

Code of Conduct

Directors are held to the highest standards of integrity. The Company’s Code of Ethical Business
Conduct applies to directors as well as officers and employees and covers areas including conflicts
of interest, ingsider trading and compliance with laws and regulations. The Audit Committee has
responsibility for oversight of the Company’s communication of, and compliance with, the Code of
Ethical Business Conduct.

DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE, CODE OF ETHICAL BUSINESS CONDUCT AND
COMMUNICATIONS WITH DIRECTORS

Director Independence

The Board has reviewed the qualifications, relationships, employment history, board affiliations and
other criteria of each of the directors recommended by the Board for election at the Annual Meeting
to determine his or her independence under the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines and
under applicable rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and listing standards of the New
York Stock Exchange. Based upon its evaluation, the Board has determined that, except for R. H.
Lenny, Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, nc director
recommended by the Board for election at the Annual Meeting has a material relationship with the
Company and Jon A. Boscia, Robert H. Campbell, Robert F. Cavanaugh, Gary P. Coughlan, Harriet
Edelman, Bonnie G. Hill, Mackey J. McDonald and Marie J. Toulantis are independent in accordance
with the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines and applicable rules of the Securities and
Exchange Commission and listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange.

Code of Ethical Business Conduct

The Board has adopted a Code of Ethical Business Conduct applicable to the Company’s directors,
officers and employees, a copy of which may be viewed on the Company’s website at
www.hersheys.com in the Investor Relations section. Any amendment to or waiver of the Code that
is applicable to directors or executive officers of the Company wiil be disclosed promptly on the
Company’s website.

Communications with the Audit Committee and Other Non-Management Directors

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors (“Audit Committee”) has established procedures for
confidential, anonymous submission of complaints by employees and for receipt, retention and
treatment of complaints, from whatever source, received by the Company, regarding accounting,
internal accounting controls or auditing matters. These procedures are outlined in a document

8




entitled Procedures for Submission and Handling of Complaints Regarding Compliance Matters, a
copy of which may be viewed on the Company’s website at www.hersheys.com in the Investor
Relations section. Interested persons (including stockholders and employees of the Company) may
also communicate directly with the non-management directors of the Board as a group by following
the procedures posted in the Investor Relations section of the Company’s website.

PROPOSAL NC. 1 — ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nine directors are to be elected at the Annual Meeting, each to serve until the next Annual Meeting
and until his or her successor shall have been elected and qualified. Each of the nominees named
in the following pages is currently a member of the Board. Pursuant to the Company’s Restated
Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (“Certificate”), and By-Laws, one-sixth of the directors,
which equates presently to two directors, are to be elected by the holders of the Company’s Common
Stock, one doliar ($1.00) par value (“Common Stock”), voting separately as a class. The nominees
receiving the greatest number of votes of the holders of the Common Stock voting separately as a
class will be elected.

Mmes. Bonnie G. Hill and Marie J. Toulantis have been nominated by the Board for the positions
to be elected by the holders of the Common Stock voting separately as a class. The remaining seven
individuals listed have been nominated by the Board for the seven positions to be elected by the
holders of the Common Stock and the Company’s Class B Common Stock, one dollar ($1.00) par value
(“Class B Stock”), voting together without regard to class. Holders of Common Stock will be entitled
to cast one vote for each share held, and holders of Class B Stock will be entitled to cast ten votes
for each share held. The seven nominees receiving the greatest number of votes of the holders of the
Common Stock and Class B Stock voting together will be elected. In case any of the nominees should
become unavailable for election for any reason not presently known or contemplated, the persons
identified on the proxy card as proxies will have discretionary authority to vote pursuant to the proxy
for a substitute.

JONA. BOSCIA, age 52, is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
of Lincoln National Corporation, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, a leading
financial services company. He was elected Chairman of the Board of Lincoln
National Corporation in March 2001 and has been Chief Executive Officer since
July 1998. From January 1998 to March 2001, he held the office of President.
A Hershey Foods director since 2001, he chairs the Committee on Directors and
Corporate Governance and is a member of the Executive Committee.

ROBERT H. CAMPBELL, age 67, retired in 2000 as Chairman of the Board
and Chief Executive Officer of Sunoco, Inc., Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, a
petroleum refiner and marketer. He had been Chief Executive Officer since
1991, Chairman of the Board since 1992 and a director of Sunoco, Inc. since
1988. He is a director of CIGNA Corporation and Vical Incorporated. A
Hershey Foods director since 1995, he is a member of the Committee on
Directors and Corporate Governance and the Compensation and Executive
Organization Committee.




ROBERT F. CAVANAUGH, age 46, is Managing Director of DLJ Real
Estate Capital Partners, Los Angeles, California, a subsidiary of Credit
Suisse First Boston and a leading global investment banking firm. He has
held that position since October 1999. From 1995 to 1999, he was Managing
Director — Real Estate Investment Banking for Bankers Trust Company. A
Hershey Foods director since 2003, he is a member of the Audit Committee
and the Compensation and Executive Organization Committee.

GARY P. COUGHLAN, age 61, retired in 2001 as Senior Vice President,
Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Abbott Laboratories, Inc., Abbott
Park, Illinois, a diversified international healthcare company. He had held
that position since May 1990. He is a director of Arthur J. Gallagher & Co.
A Hershey Foods director since 2001, he chairs the Audit Committee and is
a member of the Executive Committee.

HARRIET EDELMAN, age 49, is Senior Vice President, Business
Transformation and Chief Information Officer of Avon Products, Inc., New
York, New York, the world’s leading seller of beauty and related products. She
was elected to that position in March 2004. From January 2000 to March
2004 she was Senior Vice President and Chief Information Officer and from
June 1998 to January 2000 was Senior Vice President, Global Operations.
She is a director of Blair Corporation. A Hershey Foods director since 2003,
she is a member of the Audit Committee and the Compensation and
Executive Organization Committee.

BONNIE G. HILL, age 63, is President of B. Hill Enterprises, LLC, Los
Angeles, California, a consulting company, and Co-Founder of Icon Blue, Inc.,
Los Angeles, California, a brand marketing company. From February 1997 to
June 2001, she was President and Chief Executive Officer of The Times Mirror
Foundation and from August 1998 to June 2001 was Senior Vice President,
Communications and Public Affairs, Los Angeles Times, a subsidiary of Tribune
Company. She is a director of AK Steel Holding Corporation, Albertson’s, Inc.,
California Water Service Group, The Home Depot, Inc., and YUM! Brands, Inc.
A Hershey Foods director since 1893, she is a member of the Committee on
Directors and Corporate Governance and the Compensation and Executive
Organization Committee. She has been nominated for election by the holders of
the Common Stock voting separately as a class.
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RICHARD H. LENNY, age 53, was elected Chairman of the Board,
President and Chief Executive Officer of Hershey Foods Corporation effective
January 1, 2002. From March 2001 to December 2001, he was President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. From January 2001 until March
2001, he was Group Vice President of Kraft Foods, Inc. and President of its
Nabisco Biscuit and Snack business and from February 1998 to December
2000 he was President, Nabisco Biscuit Company. He is a director of Sunoco,
Inc. A Hershey Foods director since 2001, he chairs the Executive Committee.

MACKEY J. McDONALD, age 58, is Chairman of the Board, Chief
Executive Officer and President of VF Corporation, Greensboro, North
Carolina, an international apparel company. He was elected Chairman of the
Board of VF Corporation in 1998. He has been Chief Executive Officer since
1996 and President since 1993. He is a director of Wachovia Corporation and
Tyco International Ltd. A Hershey Foods director since 1996, he chairs the
Compensation and Executive Organization Committee and is a member of
the Executive Committee.

MARIE J. TOULANTIS, age 50, is Chief Executive Officer of Barnes &
Noble.com, New York, New York, an online retailer of books, music and DVDs,
She was elected to that position in February 2002. From May 2001 to
February 2002, she held the office of President and Chief Operating Officer
and from May 1999 to May 2001 was Chief Financial Officer. From March
1999 to May 1999, she was Chief Financial Officer of Barnes & Noble, Inc.,
the world’s largest bookseller, and from July 1997 until March 1999, was that
company’s Executive Vice President, Finance. A Hershey Foods director since
2003, she is a member of the Audit Committee and the Committee on
Directors and Corporate Governance. She has been nominated for election by
the holders of the Common Stock voting separately as a class.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR the director nominees listed above, and
proxies that are returned will be so voted unless otherwise instructed.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has four separately designated standing committees: the Audit Committee (established
in accordance with section 3(a)(58)(A) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”)),
the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance, the Compensation and Executive
Organization Committee, and the Executive Committee. In addition to the four standing committees,
the Board from {ime to time establishes committees of limited duration for special purposes.

Audit Committee 13 meetings in 2004

Members: Gary P. Coughlan (Chair)
Robert F. Cavanaugh
Harriet Edelman
Marie J. Toulantis

Independence: The Board has determined that all directors on this
Committee are independent under applicable listing
standards of the New York Stock Exchange, Rule 10A-3
under the Exchange Act and the Company’s Corporate
Governance Guidelines.

Responsibilities: Agsists the Board in its oversight of the integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, the Company’s compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the gualifications
and independence of the Company’s independent auditors
and the performance of the independent auditors and the
Company’s internal audit function;

Directly oversees and has direct responsibility for the
appointment, compensation, retention and oversight of the
work of the independent auditors;

Approves all audit and non-audit engagement fees and terms
with the independent auditors; and

Establishes and maintains procedures for the receipt,
retention and treatment of complaints received by the
Company, from any source, regarding accounting, internal
accounting controls or auditing matters and from employees
for the confidential anonymous submission of concerns
regarding questionable accounting or auditing matters.

Charter: A current copy of the Charter of the Audit Committee may be
viewed on the Company’s website at www.hersheys.com in
the Investor Relations section.




Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance 5 meetings in 2004

Members: Jon A. Boscia (Chair)
Robert H. Campbell
Bonnie G. Hill
Marie J. Toulantis

Independence: The Board has determined that all directors on this
Committee are independent under the listing standards of
the New York Stock Exchange and the Company’s Corporate
Governance Guidelines.

Responsibilities: Reviews and makes recommendations on the composition of
the Board and its committees;

Identifies, evaluates and recommends candidates for election
to the Board consistent with the Board’s membership
gualifications;

Reviews and makes recommendations to the full Board on
corporate governance matters and the Board’s corporate
governance guidelines and policies; and

Oversees the evaluation of the Board and management.

Charter: A current copy of the Charter of the Committee on Directors and
Corporate Governance may be viewed on the Company’s
website at www.hersheys.com in the Investor Relations section.

The Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance follows the process for identifying and
evaluating candidates to be nominated as directors and the criteria for Board membership contained
in the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines, set forth in this Proxy Statement beginning on
page 2. Recommendations for director candidates may come from directors, stockholders or other
sources. Occasicnally, the Committee on Directors and Corporate Governance utilizes a paid third-
party consultant to assist it in identifying and evaluating director candidates. Stockholders desiring
to nominate a director candidate at any meeting of stockholders, including any annual meeting of
stockholders, must comply with the procedures for nomination set forth in the section entitled
“Stockholder Proposals and Nominations,” beginning on page 42.

Compensation and Executive Organization Committee 7 meetings in 2004

Members: Mackey J. McDonald (Chair)
Robert H. Campbell
Robert F. Cavanaugh
Harriet Edelman
Bonnie G. Hill

Independence: The Board has determined that all directors on this
Committee are independent under the listing standards of
the New York Stock Exchange and the Company’s Corporate
Governance Guidelines.

Responsibilities: Establishes the compensation of the Company’s directors and
elected officers (other than the Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer);
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Recommends to the independent directors of the full Board
as a group the compensation of the Company’s Chairman,
President and Chief Executive Officer;

Grants performance stock units, stock options, restricted
stock units and other rights under the Long-Term Incentive
Program of the Company’s Key Employee Incentive Plan, as
amended (“Incentive Plan”);

Establishes target-award levels and makes awards under the
Annual Incentive Program and the Long-Term Incentive
Program of the Incentive Plan;

Administers the Incentive Plan, the Employee Benefits
Protection Plans and the Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan;

Monitors compensation arrangements for management
employees for consistency with corporate objectives and
stockholders’ interests;

Reviews the executive organization of the Company; and

Monitors the development of personnel available to fill key
management positions as part of the succession planning process.

Charter: A current copy of the Charter of the Compensation and
Executive Organization Committee may be viewed on the
Company’s website at www.hersheys.com in the Investor
Relations section.

Executive Committee No meetings in 2004

Members: Richard H. Lenny (Chair)
Jon A. Boscia
Gary P. Coughlan
Mackey J. McDonald

Responsibilities: Manages the business and affairs of the Company, to the
extent permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law,
when the Board is not in session. A subcommittee consisting
of the independent directors on this Committee reviews and
approves in advance any transaction not in the ordinary
course of business between the Company and Hershey Trust
Company, Hershey Entertainment & Resorts Company and/
or the Milton Hershey School, or any subsidiary, division or
affiliate of any of the foregoing.

Charter: A current copy of the Charter of the Executive Comimittee may
be viewed on the Company’s website at www.hersheys.com in
the Investor Relations section.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

There were six regular meetings and four special meetings of the Board of Directors during 2004.
No director attended less than 93% of the sum of the total number of meetings of the Board held
during the period for which he or she was a director and the total number of meetings held by all
committees of the Board on which he or she served during the period that he or she served in 2004.
Average attendance for all of these meetings equaled 97%.
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Directors are expected to attend the Company’s annual meetings of stockholders. All but one of the
directors standing for election at the Company’s annual meeting held April 28, 2004 were in
attendance at that meeting.

DIRECTORS’ COMPENSATION

Annual Retainer $55,000 |
Annual Restricted Stock Unit Grant $60,000%*
Annual Retainer for Committee Chairs $ 5,000

*$80,000 beginning January 1, 2005

The Directors’ Compensation Plan is designed to attract and retain qualified non-employee directors
and to align the interests of non-employee directors with those of the stockholders by paying a portion
of their compensation in units representing shares of Common Stock. The Compensation and
Executive Organization Committee of the Board of Directors, as administrator of the Directors’
Compensation Plan, targets non-employee director compensation at the mid-point of compensation
paid to directors at a peer group of food, beverage and consumer packaged goods companies
representing the Company’s most direct competitors for executive talent. Directors who are
employees of the Company receive no remuneration for their services as directors.

In 2004, restricted stock units (“RSUs”) were granted quarterly on the first day of January, April,
July and October on the basis of the number of shares of Common Stock, valued at the average closing
price on the New York Stock Exchange of the Common Stock on the last three trading days preceding
the grant, equal to $15,000. Following a review of competitive data, which disclosed the need to adjust
director compensation upward to be in line with that paid at companies in the compensation peer
group, the Board elected in December 2004 to increase the quarterly RSU grant to a value equivalent
to the number of shares of Common Stock equal to $20,000, beginning January 1, 2005. While the
value of the annual RSU grant is targeted at $80,000, the actual value of the grant may be higher
or lower deperding upon the performance of the Common Stock following the grant dates. A director’s
RSUs will vest and be distributed upon his or her retirement from the Board.

The Board from time to time establishes committees of limited duration for special purposes. The
Compensation and Executive Organization Committee will consider paying additional compensation
to non-employee directors who serve on special committees, generally in the amount of $1,250 per
meeting, if the special committee holds six or more meetings, each lasting one hour or more. No
director received compensation for service on a special committee in 2004.

Directors may elect to receive all or a portion of their retainer in cash or Common Stock, although
committee chair fees are paid only in cash. A director may defer receipt of the retainer and committee
chair fees in the form of cash or Common Stock until his or her retirement from the Board.

All directors are reimbursed for reasonable travel and other out-of-pocket expenses incurred in
connection with attendance at Board and committee meetings and for minor incidental expenses
incurred in connection with performance of directors’ services. In addition, directors are reimbursed
for at least one director continuing education program each year, provided with travel accident
insurance while traveling on the Company’s business, receive the same discounts as employees on
the purchase of the Company’s products and are eligible to participate in the Company’s Gift
Matching Program. Under the Gift Matching Program, contributions made by a director to one or
more charitable organizations are matched, at the director’s request, on a dollar-for-dollar basis up
to a maximum aggregate annual contribution per director of $5,000.

The Company maintains a Directors’ Charitable Award Program for individuals who became
directors prior to December 31, 1996. This program is a self-funded life insurance program on eligible
directors and funds charitable donations by the Company to educational institutions designated by
those directors. The amount of the donation varies according to the director’s length of service as a
director, up to a maximum donation of $1 million after five years of service. Three current directors
(Ms. Hill and Messrs. Campbell and McDonald) and sixteen retired directors participate in the
program. The amount of the charitable donation per current participating director is $1 million.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The role of the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors is to prepare this report and to assist the
Board in its oversight of (i) the integrity of the Company’s financial statements, (i1) the Company’s
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, (iii) the independent auditors’ qualifications and
independence, and (iv) the performance of the independent auditors and the Company’s internal
audit function. The Board, in its business judgment, has determined that all members of the Audit
Committee are “independent” as required by applicable listing standards of the New York Stock
Exchange, Rule 10A-3 under the Exchange Act and the Company’s Corporate Governance
Guidelines; that all members are financially literate; that at least one member of the Committee,
Gary P. Coughlan, qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” as defined in the applicable
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission; and that Mr. Coughlan has accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Audit Committee operates pursuant to a Charter that
was last amended and restated by the Board on February 15, 2005. The Charter may be viewed on
the Company’s website at www.hersheys.com in the Investor Relations section.

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation, presentation and integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, the Company’s accounting and financial reporting principles and
internal controls and procedures designed to assure compliance with accounting standards and
applicable laws and regulations, including the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting.
The internal audit department is responsible for performing independent, objective assessments of
management’s system of internal controls and policies and procedures and reporting on their degree of
effectiveness. The independent auditors are responsible for auditing the Company’s financial statements,
expressing an opinion as to their conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States and annually auditing management’s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting (commencing in the fiscal year ending December 31, 2004).

In the performance of its oversight function, the Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited
financial statements with management and the independent auditors. The Audit Committee has also
discussed with the independent auditors the matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing
Standards No. 61, Communication with Audit Committees, as currently in effect. Finally, the Audit
Committee has received the written disclosures and the letter from the independent auditors required
by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, Independence Discussions with Audit Committees,
as currently in effect, and has discussed with the independent auditors the auditors’ independence.

The members of the Audit Committee are not full-time employees of the Company and are not
performing the functions of auditors or accountants. It is not the duty or responsibility of the Audit
Committee or its members to conduct “field work” or other types of auditing or accounting reviews
or procedures or to set auditor independence standards. Members of the Audit Committee necessarily
rely on the information provided to them by management and the independent auditors. Accordingly,
the Audit Committee’s review and discussions referred to above do not assure that the audit of the
Company’s financial statements has been carried out in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards, that the financial statements are presented in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States or that the Company’s auditors are in fact “independent.”

Based upon the reports and discussions described in this report, and subject to the limitations on
the role and responsibilities of the Audit Committee referred to above and in the Charter, the Audit
Committee recommended to the Board that the audited financial statements be included in the
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004 filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on March 7, 2005,

SUBMITTED BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE COMPANY’S
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Gary P. Coughlan, Chair
Robert F. Cavanaugh Harriet Edelman Marie J. Toulantis
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR FEES

Set forth below are the aggregate fees billed by KPMG LLP, the Company’s principal independent
auditors, for professional services rendered to the Company during the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2004 and 2003:

For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003

Audit Fees" $2,482,300 $1,331,825
Audit-Related Fees® 84,050 502,266
Tax Fees® 35,695 129,263
All Other Fees™® : — 10,894
Total Fees $2,602,045 $1,974,248

(1) Audit Fees in 2004 included $875,000 for auditor certification under Section 404 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, which fees were not required to be incurred in 2003.

(2) Fees associated primarily with services related to potential business transactions
and the auditing of employee benefit plans.

(3) Fees pertaining primarily to tax issues and preparation of tax returns for the
Company’s foreign subsidiaries.

(4) Fees pertaining primarily to assistance with state unclaimed property reviews.

Pre-Approval Policy Regarding Independent Auditor Services

It is the Audit Committee’s policy to pre-approve all audit and non-audit services performed by the
Company’s independent auditors, KPMG LLP. The Audit Committee may, in its discretion, delegate
to one or more of its members the authority to pre-approve any audit or non-audit services to be
performed by KPMG LLP, provided that any such approval is presented to the Audit Committee at
its next scheduled meeting. The Audit Committee pre-approved all services provided by KPMG LLP
in 2004. The Audit Committee’s Charter includes a guideline that under ordinary circumstances the
fees for non-audit services paid to the Company’s principal independent auditors in any fiscal year
shall not exceed 25% of audit fees paid to the independent auditors in that year.

PROPOSAL NO. 2 — APPOINTMENT OF AUDITORS

The Audit Committee has appointed KPMG LLP as independent auditors for the Company for the
year ending December 31, 2005. Although not required to do so, the Audit Committee recommended
to the Board that the appointment of that firm be submitted for ratification by the stockholders at
the Annual Meeting. KPMG LLP has audited the Company’s financial statements since May 10, 2002
and is considered to be well-qualified. If the appointment is not ratified, the Audit Committee
will reconsider its appointment. Representatives of KPMG LLP will be present at the Annual Meeting
with the opportunity to make a statement if they so desire and will be available to respond
to questions.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes represented at the Annual Meeting in person or by
proxy of the Common Stock and Class B Stock voting together without regard to class will constitute
ratification of the appointment of auditors.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR Proposal No. 2, and proxies that
are returned will be so voted unless a contrary vote is designated.
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VOTING SECURITIES

The Company has shares of two classes of stock outstanding, Common Stock and Class B Stock. At
the close of business on February 22, 2005, the record date for the Annual Meeting, there were
outstanding 184,977,601 shares of Common Stock and 60,836,826 shares of Class B Stock, all of
which are entitled to be voted. The numbers of issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock and
Class B Stock reflect the two-for-one split of such common equity in the form of a 100% stock dividend
on June 15, 2004. Holders of record of the Company’s Common Stock on February 22, 2005 will be
entitled to cast one vote for each share held, and holders of record of the Class B Stock on February 22,
2005 will be entitled to cast ten votes for each share held. The Common Stock is entitled to cash
dividends 10% higher than those declared on the Class B Stock.

According to the Company’s By-Laws, the presence in person or by proxy of the holders of a majority
of the votes entitled to be cast of the outstanding Common Stock and Class B Stock, respectively, shall
constitute quorums for matters to be voted on separately by the holders of the Common Stock voting
separately as a class and the holders of the Class B Stock voting separately as a class. The presence
in person or by proxy of the holders of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the combined
outstanding shares of the Common Stock and the Class B Stock shall constitute a quorum for matters
to be voted on without regard to class.

The vote required for approval of any matter which may be the subject of a vote of the stockholders
is provided for in the Company’s Certificate and By-Laws. The specific vote requirements for the
proposals being submitted to a stockholder vote at this year’s Annual Meeting are set forth under
the description of each proposal in this Proxy Statement.

Abstentions and broker non-votes (defined below) are counted for the purpose of determining whether
a quorum is present at the Annual Meeting. For the purpose of determining whether a proposal
(except for the election of directors) has received a majority vote, abstentions will be included in the
vote totals with the result that an abstention will have the same effect as a negative vote. In instances
where brokers are prohibited from exercising discretionary authority for beneficial owners who have
not returned a proxy (“broker non-votes”), those shares will not be included in the vote totals and,
therefore, will have no effect on the vote.

The table below sets forth the number of shares of Common Stock (including Common Stock
equivalent shares) and Class B Stock owned by (i) each director, each executive officer named in the
Summary Compensation Table on page 31 (the “named executive officers”) and the directors and
executive officers of the Company as a group, on February 22, 2005, and (ii) persons or entities owning
more than five percent of the Common Stock or Class B Stock, on the dates indicated. Unless specified
otherwise in a footnote, the individuals and entities listed below have voting and investment
power over the shares indicated. The voting and investment power over the shares held by the
Milton Hershey School Trust and Hershey Trust Company are as indicated in the section
entitled “Description of the Milton Hershey School Trust and Hershey Trust Company,” beginning
on page 21.




Percent Percent
Exercisable of Class B of
Common Stock Common Common Class B
Holder Stock™ Options® Stock Stock Stock
Milton Hershey School Trust 1
Founders Hall
(3)
Hershey, PA 17033 13,271,753 7.2% | 60,612,012 | 99.6%
Hershey Trust Company
100 Mansion Road
Hershey, PA 17033® J
Davis Selected Advisers, L. P.
2949 E. Elvira Road
Suite 101
Tucson, AZ 85706 10,664,044 5.8%
Hershey Trust Company®® 826,687 ok
J. A, Boscia* 2,000 o
R. H. Campbell* 2,367 e
R. F. Cavanaugh* ek
F. Cerminara® 2,107 123,450 ik
G. P. Coughlan* 4,645 o
H. Edelman* 400 wok
T. K. Hernquist 6,665 20,425 o
B. G. Hill#® 939 ok
R. H. Lenny* 60,209 1,054,875 *
M. J. McDonald* 400
B. H. Snyder 2,409 54,200
M. J. Toulantis* 2,000 Aok
D. J. West 592 64,325 Ao
All directors and executive
officers as a group
(21 persons) 126,840 1,643,758 ok

Director
#%  Less than 1%

{1) Amounts listed include shares of Common Stock allocated by the Company to the employee’s
account in the Company’s Employee Savings Stock Investment and Ownership Plan (“ESSIOP”)
pursuant to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code.

(2) This column reflects stock options that are currently exercisable or capable of being exercised
within 60 days of February 22, 2005.

(3) Reflects stockholdings as of February 22, 2005. See “Description of the Milton Hershey School
Trust and Hershey Trust Company” for further information on the voting of these securities.

(4) Information regarding Davis Selected Advisers, L. P. and its stockholdings was obtained from
a Schedule 13G/A filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on February 16, 2005. The
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filing indicated that as of February 15, 2005, Davis Selected Advisers, L. P. had sole voting and
investment power over 10,664,044 shares of Common Stock.

(5) Mr. Cerminara resigned as an executive officer of the Company effective December 31, 2004 but
will remain an employee of the Company throughout 2005 to assist with the transition of duties
to his successor.

{6) Includes 300 shares held in trust by Ms. Hill’s husband.

RSUs Not Yet Vested and Deferred Stock Urnits

Listed below are common stock units, held by directors and the named executive officers, over which
the holder does not currently, and will not within 60 days of February 22, 2005, have voting power
or investment power. Such units include unvested restricted stock units (“RSUs”) granted on or before
February 22, 2005 to the named executive officers under the Incentive Plan and to directors under
the Directors’ Compensation Plan, and common stock units deferred on or before February 22, 2005
by the named executive officers under the Deferred Compensation Plan and by directors under the
Directors’ Compensation Plan.

RSUs granted to executive officers under the Incentive Plan vest upon the expiration of the restriction
period applicable to the particular grant, and RSUs granted to directors vest upon each director’s
retirement from the Board. Once vested, RSUs granted to executive officers are commonly paid in
cash having a value equivalent to the closing price of the Common Stock on the New York Stock
Exchange on the day preceding the vesting date, in an equal number of shares of Common Stock,
or in a combination of cash and Common Stock. RSUs granted to directors are paid only in shares
of Common Stock. Dividends are credited at regular rates on RSUs during the restriction period and
upon vesting of the RSUs are paid to executive officers in cash and to directors in shares of Common
Stock. The holder of Common Stock awarded pursuant to the vesting of RSUs has full voting and
investment power over those shares.

Common stock units deferred under the Deferred Compensation Plan and the Directors’
Compensation Plan are fully vested and are payable in Common Stock shares upon the expiration
of the deferral period. Dividends are credited at regular rates on deferred common stock units during
the deferral period and are paid to executive officers in cash and to directors in shares of Common
Stock at the expiration of the deferral period. For directors, the deferral period expires when the
director ceases to be a member of the Board. Common stock units deferred under the Deferred
Compensation Plan consist generally of vested performance stock units (“PSU”) and RSU awards
deferred by executive officers. Common stock units deferred under the Directors’ Compensation Plan
consist of director fees taken in stock with payment deferred at the election of the director until
such director’s retirement. Upon payment, the holder obtains voting and investment power over
the shares.

J. A. Boscia*® 4,916
R. H. Campbell* 19,445
R. F. Cavanaugh* 3,644
F. Cerminara 56,925
G. P. Coughlan*® 4,599
H. Edelman* 2,601
T. K. Hernquist 15,500
B. G. Hill* 11,338
R. H. Lenny* 138,068
M. J. McDonald* 16,426
B. H. Snyder —
M. J. Toulantis* 2,601
D. J. West 24,620

* Director




Description of the Milton Hershey School Trust and Hershey Trust Company

Milton Hershey School, a non-profit school for the full-time care and education of disadvantaged
children located in Hershey, Pennsylvania, is the sole beneficiary of the trust established by Milton S.
and Catherine S. Hershey in 1909. Investment decisions with respect to securities held by Hershey
Trust Company, as Trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School (the “Milton Hershey School
Trust”), are made by the Board of Directors of Hershey Trust Company, as Trustee, with the approval
of the Board of Managers (governing body) of Milton Hershey School. Decisions regarding the voting
of such securities are made by the Board of Directors of Hershey Trust Company, as Trustee for the
benefit of Milton Hershey School. The Milton Hershey School Trust will be entitled to cast 13,271,753
of the total 184,977,601 votes, or 7.2%, entitled to be cast on matters required to be voted on
separately by the holders of the Common Stock, and 619,391,873 of the total 793,845,861 votes, or
78%, entitled to be cast by the holders of the Common Stock and the Class B Stock voting together
on matters to be voted on without regard to class.

Hershey Trust Company is a state-chartered trust company and holds 437,687 shares of the
Company’s Common Stock in its capacity as institutional fiduciary for 93 estates and trusts unrelated
to the Milton Hershey School Trust. Hershey Trust Company also holds 389,000 shares of Common
Stock as investments. Investment decisions and decisions with respect to voting of securities held
by Hershey Trust Company as institutional fiduciary and as investments are made by the Board of
Directors or management of Hershey Trust Company.

Hershey Trust Company, as Trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School, as fiduciary for the above-
noted individual trusts and estates, and as direct owner of investment shares, will be entitled to vote
14,098,440 shares of Common Stock and 60,612,012 shares of Class B Stock at the Annual Meeting.

Pursuant to the Company’s Certificate, all holders of Class B Stock, including the Milton Hershey
School Trust, are entitled to convert any or all of their Class B Stock shares into shares of Common
Stock at any time on a share-for-share basis. In the event the Milton Hershey School Trust ceases
to hold more than 50% of the outstanding shares of the Class B Stock and at least 15% of the total
outstanding shares of both the Common Stock and Class B Stock, all shares of the Class B Stock will
automatically be converted into shares of Common Stock on a share-for-share basis. The Company’s
Certificate requires the approval of the Milton Hershey School Trust prior to the Company issuing
shares of Common Stock or undertaking any other action which would cause the Milton Hershey
School Trust to cease to be able to cast a majority of the votes entitled to be cast with regard to any
matter upon which the Class B Stock is entitled to vote either separately as a class or together with
any other class.

All of the outstanding shares of Hershey Trust Company are owned by the Milton Hershey School
Trust. The members of the Board of Managers of Milton Hershey School are appointed by and from
the Board of Directors of Hershey Trust Company. There are 11 members of the Board of Directors
of Hershey Trust Company and 10 members of the Board of Managers of Milton Hershey School,
including Robert F. Cavanaugh, who is a director of the Company, and R. H. Lenny, who is a director
and the Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Directors of
Hershey Trust Company and members of the Milton Hershey School Board of Managers individually
are not considered to be beneficial owners of the Company’s shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock
held by the Milton Hershey School Trust.

PROPOSAL NQO. 3 AND NO. 4 TO AMEND THE COMPANY’S RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

At a meeting held February 15, 2005, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted resolutions
declaring it advisable and in the best interests of all stockholders to amend the Company’s Restated
Certificate of Incorporation, as amended (“Certificate”).

The proposals to amend the Certificate would (a) increase the authorized number of shares of the
Company’s Common Stock, par value one dollar ($1.00) per share (“Common Stock”), from
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450,000,000 to 900,000,000 shares and increase the authorized number of shares of the Company’s
Class B Common Stock, par value one dollar ($1.00) per share (“Class B Stock™), from 75,000,000 to
150,000,000 shares, which would increase the Company’s total authorized capital stock to
1,055,000,000 shares, and (b) change the name of the Company from Hershey Foods Corporation to
The Hershey Company.

PROPOSAL NO. 3 — CERTIFICATE AMENDMENT TO INCREASE
NUMBER OF AUTHORIZED SHARES OF
COMMON STOCK AND CLASS B STOCK

The Certificate presently authorizes 450,000,000 shares of Common Stock, of which 184,977,601 shares
of Common Stock were issued and outstanding as of February 22, 2005, the record date for the 2005
Annual Meeting; 75,000,000 shares of Class B Stock, of which 60,836,826 shares were issued and
outstanding as of February 22, 2005 and 5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock, one dollar ($1.00) par value
(“Preferred Stock™) of which no shares are presently issued and outstanding. Also, as of February 22,
2005, 44,243,725 shares of Common Stock were held by the Company as Treasury shares and 69,843,592
shares of Common Stock were held by Hershey Chocolate and Confectionery Corporation, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. The current numbers of issued and outstanding, Treasury and other
Company-held shares of Common Stock and issued and outstanding shares of Class B Stock reflect the
two-for-one split of such common equity in the form of a 100% stock dividend on June 15, 2004.

The Company recapitalized in October 1984 by creating two classes of common stock, Common Stock
and Class B Stock, and increasing the total authorized number of shares of common equity. The total
authorized number of shares of common equity was again increased in April 1987 following the
stockholders’ approval of an increase in the total authorized number of shares of Common Stock.
Although the Company on February 22, 2005 has 195,178,807 shares of Common Stock available for
issuance, 60,836,826 of such shares are required by the Certificate to be reserved and kept available
by the Company to meet conversion elections of the holders of Class B Stock who may elect at any
time to convert any or all shares of Class B Stock into shares of Common Stock on a one-for-one basis.
As a result of such reservation requirement and the June 15, 2004 two-for-one stock split, if the
Company desires to issue common equity for stock splits or acquisitions or to obtain funds through
an offering, it is currently limited to issuance of 134,341,981 shares of Common Stock.

The Board of Directors believes that the Company will require substantial additional resources to
achieve its strategic growth objectives, remain competitive and maintain the strength of its business
for the benefit of all stockholders, and that a major component of these additional resources must
be common equity. Increasing the number of authorized shares of Common Stock from 450,000,000
t0 900,000,000 would provide the Company with additional capital resources to finance the long-term
growth of the Company and with sufficient shares of Common Stock for stock splits. The additional
shares of Common Stock could be issued for acquisitions and in public or private offerings, the
proceeds of which could be used to finance the Company’s growth through increased working capital,
additional capital improvements, expansion of existing businesses and other corporate purposes.

While the Company may not issue Class B Stock except in connection with stock dividends or stock
splits, only 14,163,174 shares of Class B Stock are available for issuance for those purposes. The
Certificate requires that, as long as any shares of Class B Stock are outstanding, shares of Common
Stock may not be distributed as a stock dividend or stock split unless such shares are distributed
only to then holders of outstanding shares of Common Stock and only in conjunction with and in the
same ratio as a stock dividend or split of the shares of the Class B Stock. Thus, if a sufficient number
of shares of Class B Stock is not available to distribute as a stock dividend or stock split to holders
of Class B Stock at the same time and in the same proportion as any similar distribution to holders
of Common Stock, such dividend or split of the Common Stock would not be permitted by the terms
of the Certificate. Increasing the number of authorized shares of Class B Stock from 75,000,000 to
150,000,000 would provide the Company with sufficient shares of Class B Stock to permit the Board
of Directors to approve further proportional splits or dividends of Common Stock.

22




Additional shares of Common Stock and Class B Stock authorized pursuant to this proposal would
be identical in all respects to the Common Stock and Class B Stock now authorized. While
authorization of the additional shares will not currently dilute the proportionate voting power or
other rights of existing stockholders, future issuances of Common Stock could reduce the
proportionate ownership of existing holders of Common Stock, and, depending on the price at which
such shares are issued, may be dilutive to the existing stockholders.

Common Stock (including the additional shares of Common Stock authorized pursuant to this
proposal) and Preferred Stock may be issued from time to time upon authorization of the Board of
Directors, without further approval by the stockholders, unless otherwise required by applicable law,
and for the consideration that the Board may determine is appropriate and as may be permitted by
applicable law. However, the Certificate requires that the Board of Directors first obtain approval of
the Milton Hershey School Trust (or any successor trustee or Milton Hershey School, as appropriate),
which has voting control of the Company, prior to the Board’s authorizing the issuance of any shares
of Common Stock or Preferred Stock that would cause the Milton Hershey School Trust (or a successor
trustee or Milton Hershey School) to cease to be able to cast a majority of the votes entitled to be cast
with regard to any matter upon which the Class B Stock is entitled to vote either separately as a class
or together with any other class. Information regarding the voting rights of the Milton Hershey School
Trust is contained in the section of this Proxy Statement entitled “Description of the Milton Hershey
School Trust and Hershey Trust Company.”

The Milton Hershey School Trust has indicated to the Company that, under present circumstances,
it intends to retain voting control of the Company and has no present intention to dispose of any of
its current shares of Class B Stock. In the event that the Milton Hershey School Trust (or a successor
trustee or Milton Hershey School) ceases to hold more than 50% of the Class B Stock and at least
15% of the Company’s total common equity (defined as the total of both the Common Stock and the
Class B Stock shares outstanding), the voting and dividend rights of both the Common Stock and
the Class B Stock will become the same, and shares of the Class B Stock will automatically be
converted into shares of the Common Stock.

As provided for by the Delaware General Corporation Law, the Board of Directors has directed that
the proposed amendment to increase the number of authorized shares of Common Stock and Class
B Stock be submitted to a vote of the stockholders. The Common Stock and Class B Stock generally
vote together without regard to class on matters submitted to stockholders, with the Common Stock
having one vote per share and the Class B Stock having ten votes per share. However, any
amendment to the Certificate changing the number of authorized shares of either the Common Stock
or the Class B Stock requires separate approval of the class affected, in this case the holders of shares
of Common Stock and the holders of Class B Stock each voting separately as a class, as well as the
approval of both classes voting together. Therefore, approval of the proposed amendment to the
Certificate to increase the number of authorized shares of Common Stock and Class B Stock requires
(a) the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the holders of Common Stock
voting separately as a class, (b) the affirmative vote of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by
the holders of Class B Stock voting separately as a class and (c) the affirmative vote of a majority
of the votes entitled to be cast by the holders of the Common Stock and Class B Stock voting together
without regard to class.
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The proposed amendment to the Certificate would amend subparagraphs A, Al and A2 of the Fourth
Article of the Certificate to read as follows:*

“A. Classes and Number of Shares. The total number of shares of all classes of stock which
the Corporation shall have authority to issue is 1,055,000,000 shares. The classes and the
aggregate number of shares of stock of each class which the Corporation shall have the
authority to issue are as follows:

“1. 900,000,000 shares of Common Stock, one dollar ($1.00) par value (hereinafter
the “Common Stock”).

“2. 150,000,000 shares of Class B Common Stock, one dollar ($1.00) par value
(hereinafter the “Class B Common Stock”).”

The Board of Directors strongly recommends that stockholders vote in favor of the amendment to
the Certificate to increase the number of authorized shares of Common Stock and Class B Stock. The
Board believes that having these additional shares available will provide the Board with the
flexibility it needs to respond quickly, and without the delays inherent in obtaining stockholder
approval, should shares be required for acquisition opportunities, working capital, capital
improvements, stock splits or other corporate purpoeses. The Board does not currently have any plans
to issue shares of Common Stock or Preferred Stock in any public or private offering, for any
acquisition, or otherwise, nor are there any present negotiations which could lead to such an issuance.

The Board of Directors has reserved the right, in the exercise of its discretion, to withdraw this
Proposal No. 3 from consideration by the stockholders prior to the holding of the Annual Meeting.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR Proposal No. 3, and proxies that are
returned will be so voted unless a contrary vote is designated.

PROPOSAL NO. 4 — CERTIFICATE AMENDMENT
TO CHANGE THE COMPANY’S NAME TO
THE HERSHEY COMPANY

The Board of Directors has determined that the Company’s name should be changed to The Hershey
Company. The purpose of the name change is to reflect the transformation that the Company has
experienced in recent years.

The Company was founded in 1894 by M. S. Hershey. It began doing business in that year as Hershey
Chocolate Company. The Company manufactured and distributed only chocolate and chocolate-
related products. The Company’s name was changed to Hershey Chocolate Corporation in 1927 as
part of a reorganization of the business that separated the chocolate manufacturing business from
other operations related primarily to serving the local community. During the 1960s the Company
acquired several non-chocolate businesses including pasta, pasta sauces, food service, coffee
distribution and Canadian cookie and biscuit businesses. The name Hershey Chocolate Corporation
was no longer representative of the Company’s portfolio of diversified products and businesses, and
the Company changed its name in 1968 to Hershey Foods Corporation. At the same time, the
Company adopted its current stylized “H” corporate logo.

In recent years, the Company divested non-strategic businesses so it could focus attention on its core
strengths in the chocolate and non-chocolate confectionery and grocery categories and expand into
the broader snack market. As a result of this transformation to a leaner, more focused company, the

1 Note: Proposed new language is italicized. The amendment to subparagraph Al of the Certificate
also deletes language in the Certificate which effected a reclassification of the Common Stock from
no-par value stock to the current Common Stock with par value of $1.00 per share on October 9, 1984.
The language is being deleted because it is no longer necessary.
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Board of Directors has concluded that the name Hershey Foods Corporation, reflective of a company
having a broad portfolio of diversified products and businesses, is no longer appropriate.

The Board of Directors believes that the name The Hershey Company is representative of the
Company’s current strategic focus while sustaining the important link to M. S. Hershey and the
HERSHEY’S brand name. The Board also believes that the name The Hershey Company is on trend
with today’s marketplace, is easily identifiable and will provide flexibility should the Company choose
to expand into other market segments. The Board is considering revisions to the Company’s logo,
which will no longer include the stylized “H.”

Changing the corporate name in the manner proposed will not change the Company’s corporate
structure or the names of any of the Company’s branded products.

The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast by the holders of the Common Stock
and Class B Stock voting together without regard to class is required for approval of the amendment
to the Certificate relating to Proposal No. 4.

The Board of Directors has reserved the right, in the exercise of its discretion, to withdraw this
Proposal No. 4 from consideration by stockholders prior to the holding of the Annual Meeting.

The Board of Directors recommends a vote FOR Proposal No. 4, and proxies that are
returned will be so voted unless a contrary vote is designated.

If the proposed amendments to the Certificate, as outlined in Proposal No. 3 and No. 4, are approved
by the stockhclders, the Board of Directors will cause an Amendment to the Restated Certificate of
Incorporation reflecting the amendment(s) adopted to be filed with the Secretary of State of Delaware,
and such Amendment will be effective upon such filing.

2004 EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation and Executive Organization Committee Report
on Executive Compensation

The Compensation and Executive Organization Committee of the Board of Directors (“Committee”)
is composed entirely of directors determined by the Board, in its business judgment, to have no
material relationship to the Company and to be independent under the listing standards of the New
York Stock Exchange and the Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines. The Committee is
responsible for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s executive compensation program.

Executive Compensation Philosophy
The Company’s executive compensation program is designed to meet the following objectives:

s To align the interests and performance of the executive officers with Company performance
and the interests of stockholders;

e To attract, retain and motivate executive talent;

e Toensure that a significant portion of executive officers’ total compensatiqn is dependent upon
the appreciation of the Company’s Common Stock; and

¢ To provide a balanced total compensation package that recognizes the individual contributions
of executive officers and the overall business results of the Company.

Each year the Committee conducts a full review of the Company’s executive compensation program. The
annual compensation review permits an ongoing evaluation of the link between the Company’s
performance and its executive compensation in the context of the compensation programs of other
companies. This review is performed periodically with the assistance of an independent outside
consuitant whom the Committee reserves the right to select and/or meet with independently at its
discretion. This annual review includes analyzing survey data comparing the competitiveness of the
Company’s executive compensation, Company performance, stock price appreciation and total return to
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stockholders with a peer group of food, beverage and consumer packaged goods companies representing
the Company’s most direct competitors for executive talent. The Committee alsc considers compensation
data compiled from surveys of a broader group of industrial companies, some of which are from the food
industry. In the Performance Graph on page 37, the Company’s performance is compared, in part, to the
Standard and Poor’s Packaged Foods Index. The peer group considered relevant for the Company’s
compensation comparison purposes does not include all of the companies in the Packaged Foods Index
as compensation data on all such companies are not readily available. Also, the peer group includes some
companies that are not in the Packaged Foods Index because the Company selects those companies it
believes to be direct competitors for executive talent. The Committee reviews and approves the list of peer
companies included in the compensation analysis.

In the review of survey data, a statistical process involving regression analysis is used to determine
competitive compensation levels. This approach adjusts compensation levels for factors such as net
sales, return on equity and time in position within the organization to determine predicted values
or “going rates” within the marketplace for each element of compensation. The Company targets total
compensation “at or above” such “going rates.”

The Committee believes the holding of significant equity interests in the Company by management
aligns the interests of stockholders and management. Through the programs desecribed in this report,
a very significant portion of each executive officer’s total compensation is linked directly to individual
and Company performance and to Common Stock price appreciation.

The key elements of the Company’s executive compensation program consist of base salary, an annual
cash incentive program, and a long-term incentive program consisting of performance stock units and
stock options. Restricted stock unit (“RSU”) awards are also utilized as special incentive awards and
to replace compensation forfeited by newly-hired executive officers and key managers of the Company
as a result of their resignation from prior employers.

Incentives play an important role in motivating executive performance and in aligning executive pay
practices with the interests of stockholders. The Company’s executive compensation program is
intended to reward achievement of both short- and long-term business goals. To ensure proper
balance in the achievement of these business goals, the incentive program places greater dollars at
risk in long-term incentives compared to short-term incentives. The long-term incentive program is
designed especially to ensure that the Company’s executive officers have a significant portion of their
total compensation tied to factors that affect the performance of the Company’s Common Stock.

The Committee developed the individual and corporate goals and objectives relevant to the
compensation of R. H. Lenny in 2004, evaluated Mr. Lenny’s performance in light of those goals and
objectives, and recommended to the independent directors of the full Board as a group Mr. Lenny’s
2004 compensation on the basis of that evaluation. The Committee also reviewed and approved the
total compensation of the most highly-compensated executive officers other than Mr. Lenny, including
those individuals whose compensation is detailed in this Proxy Statement. This is designed to ensure
consistency throughout the executive compensation program.

The Committee’s policies with respect to each of the elements of the executive compensation program,
including the basis for the compensation awarded to Mr. Lenny, are discussed below. While the
elements of compensation are described separately below, the Committee considers the total
compensation package afforded by the Company when determining each component of the executive
officer’s compensation, including pension benefits, supplemental retirement benefits, insurance and
other benefits.

Base Salaries

Base salaries for new executive officers are determined initially by evaluating the responsibilities
of the position held, the experience of the individual and salaries paid in the competitive marketplace
for executive talent, including a comparison of base salaries for comparable positions at
other companies.
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Salary reviews are conducted annually and salary adjustments are made based upon the
performance of the Company and of each executive officer. The Committee considers both financial
and, where appropriate, non-financial performance measures in making salary adjustments. If an
executive officer has responsibility for a particular business unit, such unit’s financial results are also
considered. In 2004, base salaries for Mr. Lenny and 45 of the Company’s senior-most officers,
including the executive officers whose base salaries are set forth on page 31 of this Proxy Statement,
were established using a technique called “broadbanding.” Broadbanding compares the base salary
of each such Hershey Foods executive with executives having similar organizational responsibilities
at companies in Hershey Foods’ compensation peer group. Because salary levels for executive officers
at manufacturing companies often vary based upon the company’s size in total revenues, the
Committee performs a regression analysis that adjusts salary levels at the peer group companies to
be more reflective of Hershey Foods’ comparative size. The goal is then to set the base salary of each
Hershey Foods executive at the size-adjusted 50" percentile level of his or her counterparts at the
peer group companies. Base salaries for all other officers and salaried employees are set within salary
ranges established for their positions as determined through the annual competitive salary surveys.

Base Salary Paid to Mr. Lenny in 2004. With respect to the base salary awarded R. H. Lenny in 2004,
the Committee reviewed the Company’s actual business results versus plan goals and the results
achieved by him on various objectives the Committee established in 2003. The Committee also
considered his base salary relative to base compensation levels of executives in Hershey Foods’
compensation peer group having similar organizational responsibilities. Based on these factors, the
Committee recommended to the independent directors as a group that Mr. Lenny’s salary be
increased by $50,000, a 5.26% increase on an annualized basis over his annual salary in 2003. The
independent directors approved the Committee’s recommendation.

Annual Incentive Program

The Company’s executive officers, as well as other key managerial and professional employees, are
eligible for an annual cash incentive award under the Annual Incentive Program (“AIP”) of the
Incentive Plan. Participating executive officers are eligible to earn individual awards expressed as
a percentage of base salary.

The final award is the product of the executive officer’s base salary, the applicable target percentage,
and a performance score calculated as the sum of a corporate or business unit performance score and
an individual performance score.

Individual and short-term (annual) corporate and business unit performance objectives are
established at the beginning of each year by the Committee and, in the case of Mr, Lenny, are referred
to the independent directors as a group for approval. For 2004, the corporate or business unit
objectives were weighted at 75%, and the individual performance objectives were weighted at 25%,
of the total performance score for executive officers other than Mr. Lenny. In the case of Mr. Lenny,
the Committee considers achievement of corporate and individual objectives in their totality, without
assigning specific weights to each, when formulating its recommendation of an AIP award payment
to the independent directors as a group. For 2004, the corporate performance objectives for an AIP
award payment to Mr. Lenny were based on financial measures including consoclidated net sales,
gross margin, operating income, earnings per share-diluted, consolidated economic return on
invested capital and free cash flow. For executive officers at the corporate level, other than Mr. Lenny,
the corporate performance objectives for AIP award payments for 2004 were based on financial
measures including earnings per share-diluted, consolidated net sales and consolidated economic
return on invested capital. For participants at the business unit level, the business unit performance
objectives for 2004 included unit operating income, unit net sales and consolidated economic return
on invested capital. The Committee has the right to adjust the performance results, if necessary, to
take into account extraordinary or unusual items occurring during the performance year, except that
in the case of Mr. Lenny, only the independent directors as a group may approve such adjustments.
Payment of annual cash incentive awards may be deferred to a later date at the election of the
executive officer.

Performance scores in excess of the objectives for financial measures and/or individual performance
expectations may result in the individual executive officer receiving more than his or her target
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percentage. In calculating the target AIP award for Mr. Lenny, however, the Committee, at the
beginning of a performance period, assumes that corporate and individual performance objectives
will be achieved at their maximum levels. At the end of the performance period, the Committee
adjusts the target award downward, as appropriate, based upon his actual performance against those
objectives. The maximum combined corporate and individual performance score for Mr. Lenny in
2004 was 200%. For executive officers other than Mr, Lenny, the maximum corporate or business unit
performance score in 2004 was 200%, and the maximum score on the individual performance score
was 150% with the Committee having discretion to adjust this percentage downward. The range of
the target percentages of base salary used in 2004 for annual cash incentive awards for executive
officers was 45% to 125%, with the highest rate of 125% applicable only to Mr. Lenny.

Mr. Lenny’s 2004 AIP Bonus. Based on the Company’s results in 2004 compared to the performance
objectives described previously and the Committee’s evaluation of Mr. Lenny’s performance against
his individual objectives, the Committee recommended to the independent directors as a group that
Mr. Lenny’s target 2004 AIP award of $2,500,000 (equal to his AIP target percentage of 125% for 2004
times his 2004 base salary of $1,000,000 times his assumed maximum performance factor of 200%)
be decreased to $2,425,000. The independent directors approved the Committee’s recommendation.

Long-Term Incentive Program — Performance Stock Units

Performance stock units (“PSUs”) were granted contingently in 2004 under the Incentive Plan to
those members of the Company’s senior executive group most in a position to affect the Company’s
long-term results (a combined total of 45 individuals in 2004). PSU grants are based upon a
percentage of the executive’s annual salary. PSUs are granted every year and are earned based upon
the Company’s performance over a three-year cycle. Each year begins a new three-year cycle.
Provided the Company has achieved the established performance objectives at the end of the three-
year cycle, a payment is made. In determining whether performance objectives have been achieved,
specific adjustments may be made by the Committee to the Company’s performance (subject,
nevertheless, in the case of Mr. Lenny, to the approval of the independent directors as a group) to
take into account extraordinary or unusual items occurring during the performance cycle. PSUs
granted in 2004 are payable at the end of the applicable three-year cycle either in shares of Common
Stock, cash, or a combination of both, based on the market value of the shares at the end of the cycle.
Payment of PSU awards may be deferred to a later date at the election of the executive.

The value of each of the PSUs granted in 2004 is tied to the Company’s performance (in determining
what percentage of shares is earned) and stock price appreciation. The established performance
measures for PSUs awarded in 2004 are (i) the Company’s earnings per share-diluted growth (three-
year compound annual growth rate) measured against an internal target and measured against the
earnings per share-diluted growth (three-year compound annual growth rate) of a peer group of 16
food, beverage and consumer packaged goods companies and (ii) the cumulative three-year
improvement in the Company’s economic return on invested capital measured against an internal
target. The performance scores can range from 0% to 256%.

PSUs Awarded to Mr. Lenny for the 2004-2006 Cycle. On February 17, 2004, upon recommendation
of the Committee, the independent directors as a group approved a grant of 25,900 contingent target
PSUs to R. H. Lenny for the 2004-2006 PSU cycle, based upon a target bonus for such cycle having
a present value of 200% of his 2004 base salary. The grant is contingent upon the performance criteria
and conditions applicable to grants of contingent target PSUs to other executives as described above.
Following the two-for-one stock split on June 15, 2004, the number of PSUs granted to Mr. Lenny
was adjusted to 51,800.

In April 2004, the Committee recommended to the independent directors as a group that Mr. Lenny
receive a supplemental grant of 40,000 PSUs (over and above the February grant), contingent upon
the Company meeting or exceeding an established net revenue growth target over a three-year period
ending December 31, 2006. Provided performance targets are achieved, PSUs from this supplemental
grant are payable at the end of the applicable three-year cycle either in shares of Common Stock,
cash, or a combination of both, based on the market value of the shares at the end of the cycle. The
independent directors approved this supplemental grant of PSUs to Mr. Lenny. The number of PSUs
subject to this grant was adjusted to 80,000 following the June 15, 2004 stock split.
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The table in this Proxy Statement entitled “Long-Term Incentive Program Performance Stock Unit
Awards in Year-Ended December 31, 2004” provides information regarding PSU grants to Mr. Lenny
and the four most highly-compensated executive officers other than Mr. Lenny in 2004,

Company Performance versus Objectives for the 2002-2004 Performance Cycle and Payments to
Mr. Lenny. In January 2002, each eligible member of the senior executive group was granted PSUs
having a value at the time of grant equal to a percentage of his or her annual salary. This percentage
was determined by the Committee based on the recommendation of senior management and
competitive survey information. For the three-year cycle ended December 31, 2004, the performance
objectives established for the grant, namely the Company’s earnings per share-diluted growth (three-
year compound annual growth rate) measured against an internal target and measured against the
earnings per share-diluted growth (three-year compound annual growth rate) of a peer group of 16
food, beverage and consumer packaged goods companies were exceeded to the extent that each
eligible participant in the senior executive group was entitled to receive, and upon approval of the
Committee did receive, a payout of PSUs at the maximum achievement level of 275%. The
independent directors as a group approved the recommendation of the Committee that Mr. Lenny
also receive his award at the maximum achievement level. Accordingly, Mr. Lenny’s award was
valued at $3,105,699 based on the December 2004 average value of his PSUs from the 2002 grant.

Long-Term Incentive Program — Stock Options

Under the Incentive Plan, stock options are granted periodically to the Company’s senior executive
group as well as to other key managerial and professional employees. Stock options entitle the holder
to purchase during a specified time period a fixed number of shares of Common Stock at a set price.

The Committee sets guidelines for the number of stock options to be granted based on competitive
compensation data gathered from the survey information discussed above. The number of stock
options granted is a function of the employee’s base pay, stock option multiples based upon the
employee’s overall performance rating for the prior year and the imputed value of the option. The
Committee also takes into account management’s recommendations regarding the number of options
to be awarded to specific employees based on competitive pay practices within the food industry and
the amount of options outstanding or granted previously. Stock options are awarded annually under
the Incentive Plan to all eligible recipients; however, the Committee may elect not to grant stock
options in a given year. The Committee also allocates a pool of stock options under the Incentive Plan
for use by the Chief Executive Officer in making discretionary grants in the form of special incentive
awards or as sign-on bonuses. Such discretionary awards may not be made by the Chief Executive
Officer to the Company’s executive officers subject to the short-swing profit and ownership reporting
rules of Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

Stock options are designed to align the interests of executives with those of the stockholders. Stock
options are granted with a ten-year term and an exercise price equal to the closing market price of
the Common Stock on the business day preceding the date of grant. Stock options granted under the
Incentive Plan to all eligible recipients in 2004, including the senior executive group, have a four-year
step vesting requirement of 25% per year, with full vesting occurring at the end of the fourth year
following the date of grant. Stock options provide incentives for future performance by the creation
of stockholder value over the long term since the benefit of the stock options cannot be realized unless
stock price appreciation occurs.

Mr. Lenny’s 2004 Stock Option Grant. InFebruary 2004, the independent directors as a group ratified
the Committee’s grant to R. H. Lenny of options to purchase 96,550 shares of Common Stock with
an exercise price of $78.89 per share. The exercise price of the grant equals the closing market price
of the Common Stock on the business day preceding the grant. The value of the stock options was
intended to equal 200% of Mr. Lenny’s 2004 base salary. Following the two-for-one stock split on
June 15, 2004, the number of options granted to Mr. Lenny and the exercise price were adjusted to
193,100 and $39.45, respectively.
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Long-Term Incentive Program — Restricted Stock Units

The Committee grants restricted stock unit (“RSU”) awards under the Incentive Plan from time to time
as special incentive awards and to replace compensation forfeited by newly-hired executive officers and
key managers of the Company as a result of their resignation from prior employers. Each RSU granted
under the Incentive Plan is equivalent in value to a share of Common Stock. RSUs vest if the recipient
of the grant remains in the employment of the Company for a prescribed period of time. Information on
RSU awards made by the Committee to the named executive officers in 2004, 2003 and 2002 is set forth
in the chart on page 31 of this Proxy Statement. RSUs were not granted to R. H. Lenny in 2004,

The Committee also allocates a pool of RSUs for use by the Chief Executive Officer in making
discretionary grants in the form of special incentive awards or as sign-on bonuses. Such discretionary
awards may not be made by the Chief Executive Officer to the Company’s executive officers subject
to the short-swing profit and ownership reporting rules of Section 16 of the Exchange Act.

Stockholding Guidelines

In January 2003, the Committee adopted stockholding guidelines that require executive officers and
other key employees of the Company to accumulate over a five-year period a minimum number of
shares of Common Stock and/or deferred PSUs and RSUs. Executive officers hired after January 2003
are required to accumulate the minimum number of shares within five years of their date of hire.
The value equivalent of the shares which must be acquired and held is equal to a multiple of the
individual’s base salary. For 2004, minimum stockholding requirements for executive officers ranged
from two to four times base salary. For R. H. Lenny, the applicable multiple for 2004 was four times
base salary. As of February 22, 2005, the record date for the Annual Meeting, Mr. Lenny had
accumulated shares of Common Stock and/or deferred PSUs and RSUs exceeding the minimum
stockholding requirement of four-times base salary applicable to him.

Policy Regarding Tax Deductibility of Executive Compensation

Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code provides that publicly-held companies may be limited
in deducting from their taxable income certain compensation in excess of $1 million paid to the chief
executive officer and the four other most highly-compensated officers. The Committee has considered
the effect of Section 162(m) on the Company’s executive compensation program in developing its
policy with respect to the deductibility of the Company’s executive compensation. It is the
Committee’s position that in administering the “performance-based” portion of the Company’s
executive compensation program, it will attempt to satisfy the requirements for deductibility under
Section 162(m). However, the Committee believes that it needs to retain the flexibility to exercise its
judgment in assessing an executive’s performance and that the total compensation system for
executive officers should be managed in accordance with the objectives outlined in the “Executive
Compensation Philosophy” section of this report and in the best overall interests of the Company’s
stockholders. Should the requirements for deductibility under Section 162(m) conflict with the
Executive Compensation Philosophy or with what the Committee believes to be in the best interests
of the stockholders, the Committee will act in accordance with the Executive Compensation
Philosophy and in the best interests of the stockholders, notwithstanding the effect of such action
on deductibility for any given year. To minimize the loss of deductions for compensation paid, the
Committee has adopted a policy that requires the executive officer to defer receipt of that portion of
any non-deductible compensation that is capable of being deferred under the Company’s Deferred
Compensation Plan to the year in which such compensation would be deductible by the Company.

Conclusion

In 2004, as in previous years, a substantial portion of the Company’s executive compensation
consisted of performance-based variable elements. The Committee intends to continue the policy of
linking executive compensation to Company performance and returns to stockholders.

SUBMITTED BY THE COMPENSATION AND EXECUTIVE ORGANIZATION
COMMITTEE OF THE COMPANY’S BCARD OF DIRECTORS

Mackey J. McDonald, Chair Robert H. Campbell Robert F. Cavanaugh
Harriet Edelman Bonnie G. Hill
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Summary of Cash and Certain Gther Compensation

The following table shows for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the cash
compensation paid by the Company, as well as certain other compensation paid or accrued for those
years, to each of the named executive officers of the Company.

Summary Compensation Table

Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensation
Other Restricted
Annual Stock Stock All Other
Compen- Unit Option LTIP Compen-
Name and Salary® Bonus® sation® Awards?? | Awards'® | Payouts® | sation™
Principal Position Year $) $) % (€] # (€] (€]
R. H. Lenny
Chairman of the Board, | 2004 | 1,000,000 2,425,000 — — | 193,100 | 3,105,699 6,150
President and 2003 950,000 1,758,420 — — | 206,200 879,337 6,000
Chief Executive Officer | 2002 850,000 1,377,000 71,191® | 1,052,193 | 222,800 — | 606,000
F. Cerminara® 2004 | 428,000 446,674 - — | 41,400 | 848,386 6,150
Senior Vice President, 2003 387,500 300,687 — — 61,000 260,024 6,000
Chief Financial Officer | 2002 330,000 242218 — —_ 40,000 196,680 | 105,813
T. K. Hernquist'® 2004 | 356,000 379,824 1,0719% | 230,075 | 27,500 —| 8150
Senior Vice President, 2003 298,846 289 29312 138,1341% 676,830 74,200 — 5,804
Chief Marketing Officer | 2002 — — — — — — —
B. H. Snyder

Senior Vice President, 2004 402,000 416,842 — — 31,900 499,942 6,150
General Counsel 2003 388,000 295,254 — — 63,200 — 6,000
and Secretary 2002 306,577 189,962 — — 19,500 — | 130,304
D. J. West1¥® 2004 415,000 445,884 — — 54,100 515,092 6,150
Senior Vice President, 2003 394,000 314,595 — 144,100 64,100 160,757 45,000
Finance 2002 321,808 229,510 116,1377% — 25,000 — | 130,758

(1) This column includes amounts deferred by the named executive officer to the ESSIOP pursuant

to Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code.
(2) Unless otherwise noted, this column represents annual cash incentive awards (paid out or
deferred) attributable to services rendered for that year.
(3) While the named executive officers receive certain perquisites, for fiscal years 2004, 2003 and

2002 such perquisites, unless noted otherwise in this column and in a footnote, did not exceed
the lesser of $50,000 or 10% of the salary and bonus of any such officer. Executive officers of the
Company, including the named executive officers, are eligible to receive Company-paid financial
counseling, tax preparation and physical examinations. In 2004, Mr. Cerminara received
financial counseling and tax preparation services, Mr. Hernquist received financial planning
services and Mr. West received financial planning and tax preparation services. Messrs. Lenny
and Snyder did not receive any such Company-paid benefits in 2004. The independent directors
of the full Board approved a policy in 2004 that allows Mr. Lenny to use the Company’s aircraft
for non-business use, provided the aggregate un-reimbursed incremental cost to the Company
for such use during the calendar year is less than $50,000. Executive officers of the Company
other than Mr. Lenny are not permitted to use the Company’s aircraft for non-business use
without Mr. Lenny’s express written consent. Executive officers pay any and all personal income
taxes applicable to their use of the Company’s aircraft for non-business purposes. Of the named
executive officers, Messrs. Lenny and West used the Company’s aircraft for non-business
purposes in 2004.
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4)

(5)
(6)

(7

(8)

9

This column reports the dollar value of awards of restricted stock units to the named executive
officers, calculated by multiplying the number of units awarded to such officer by the closing
price of the Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange on the trading day preceding the
grant. As of December 31, 2004, the number and value of the aggregate RSU holdings of
the named executive officers not previously vested and distributed to them were: T. K. Hernquist
— 15,500 units ($860,870) and D. J, West — 2,000 units ($111,080). The dollar value of suuch RSU
holdings set forth in this footnote is calculated by multiplying the aggregate number of units
currently held by such officer by the closing price of the Common Stock on the New York Stock
Exchange on December 31, 2004. One-half of the RSUs granted to Mr. Lenny in 2002 vested on
March 12, 2002, and the remaining RSUs vested on March 12, 2003. One-half of the RSUs
granted to Mr, West in 2003 vested on August 4, 2004, and the remaining RSUs from that grant
will vest on August 4, 2005. One-half of the RSUs granted to Mr. Hernquist in 2003 vested on
April 28, 2004, and the remaining RSUs from that grant will vest on April 28, 2005. The RSUs
granted to Mr. Hernguist on June 16, 2004 will vest in 25% increments on each of the four
anniversary dates following the date of the grant. Upon a change in control, all conditions and
restrictions applicable to RSU grants will lapse. Dividends on the RSUs will not be paid unless
and until the RSUs vest, at which time they will be paid from and after the grant date at the
same rate as paid on the Common Stock. RSUs have been adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock
split on June 15, 2004.

Stock options have been adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split on June 15, 2004,

This column reports the cash value earned in PSU payouts during each of the last three fiscal
years at the end of the following three performance cycles: 2002-2004, 2001-2003 and 2000-2002
under the Incentive Plan which were paid or deferred in the fiscal year immediately following
the last year of the respective three-year cycle.

This column includes the Company’s matching contributions to the individual’s ESSIOP account
for 2004, 2003 and 2002. Compensation reflected in this column for 2002 also includes special
awards approved by the Board of Directors for the following persons for extraordinary efforts
during the Milton Hershey School Trust’s expleration in 2002 of a possible sale of the Company:
R. H. Lenny — $600,000; F. Cerminara — $100,000; B. H. Snyder — $125,000; and D. J. West
— $125,000. The special awards were approved by the Compensation and Executive
Organization Committee and paid in 2003. Regarding Mr. Lenny’s special award in 2002, the
Committee waived its policy at that time requiring deferral of compensation not fully deductible
under Section 162(m) to the extent his award caused a portion of his total compensation for 2003
to be non-deductible to the Company. Compensation reflected in this column for Mr. West in 2003
includes a special award of $40,000 approved by the Board of Directors for exceptional service
in the design and implementation of the 2003 sales force reorganization.

The amount shown includes $55,472 for non-business use by Mr. Lenny of the Company’s aircraft
in 2002.

Mr. Cerminara resigned as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer of the Company
effective December 31, 2004. Pursuant to a Retirement Agreement and General Release entered
into between the Company and Mr. Cerminara on October 21, 2004, Mr. Cerminara will continue
as an employee of the Company during calendar year 2005, during which time he will receive
his 2004 base salary and will be eligible to participate in the Company’s bonus and stock option
programs. Additional information about the Retirement Agreement and General Release with
Mr. Cerminara appears under the heading “Employment Contracts and Benefit Protection
Arrangements” beginning on page 37 of this Proxy Statement.

(10) Mr. Hernquist was Senior Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer until February 28, 2005 when

he was elected Senior Vice President, President U.S. Confectionery.

(11) Mr. Hernquist was hired by the Company on April 28, 2003 and was granted a total annual base

salary for that year of $340,000. The amount shown is the annual base salary earned during
the portion of the year in which he was employed.
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(12) The amount includes, in addition to the annual cash incentive award, a sign-on bonus of
$110,000 awarded to T. K. Hernquist upon his election as Senior Vice President, Chief Marketing
Officer on April 28, 2003.

(13) The amount shown for 2004 consists of $1,071 for reimbursement of certain taxes paid by
Mr. Hernquist in 2004. The amount shown for 2003 includes $96,010 for certain relocation
expenses and $42,124 for reimbursement of certain taxes paid by Mr. Hernquist in 2003.

(14) Mr. West was Senior Vice President, Sales until June 18, 2004 when he was elected Senior Vice
President, Chief Customer Officer. On October 25, 2004, he was elected Senior Vice President,
Finance and on January 1, 2005 was elected Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer.

(15) The amount shown includes $65,211 for certain relocation and temporary housing expenses and
$50,926 for reimbursement of certain taxes paid by Mr. West in 2002.
Long-Term Incentive Program — Stock Options

The following table contains information concerning the grant of stock options under the Incentive
Plan to the named executive officers as of the end of the last fiscal year. Unless stated otherwise, the
number of options and the exercise prices set forth in the chart and accompanying footnotes below
have been adjusted for the two-for-one stock split on June 15, 2004.

Option Grants for the Year-Ended December 31, 2004

Potential Realizable Value at
Assumed Annual Rates of
Stock Price Appreciation
for Stock Option Term
Individual Grants %)
Number of | % of Total |
Securities Options
Underlying | Granted to | Exercise or
Options Employees | Base Price | Expiration
Name Granted” | in 2004 ($/Sh)® Date 5%@ 10%@
R. H. Lenny 193,100 4.8 39.45 2/15/14 4,790,790 12,140,803
F. Cerminara 41,400 1.0 37.76 2/01/14 983,128 2,491,440
T. K. Hernquist 27,500 7 37.76 2/01/14 653,044 1,654,942
B. H. Snyder 31,900 .8 37.76 2/01/14 757,531 1,919,733
D. J. West 54,100 1.3 37.76 2/01/14 1,284,716 3,255,723
All Stockholders® N/A N/A N/A N/A 6,157,732,868 | 15,604,904,083

(1) All stock options listed in this column are subject to a four-year step vesting requirement of 25%
per year and have a ten-year term. These options were granted at the fair market value of the
Common Stock on the date of grant (determined as the closing price on the business day
immediately preceding the date the options were granted). If an executive officer retires within
the twelve-month period following the grant date, the number of options granted to such officer
will be reduced on a pro-rata basis. All options expire at the end of the option holder’s
employment, except in the case of options held by an employee whose employment ends due to
(i) retirement, total disability or death, in which instance the employee or his estate may exercise
options capable of being exercised within five years after the date of retirement, total disability
or death (three years for options granted prior to 1897) or until the date of expiration of the
options, if earlier; (ii) the occurrence of a “corporate event,” defined as a material, non-recurring
event (such as a corporate restructuring) which results in the displacement or elimination of a
significant number of jobs and which is required to be disclosed as a separate matter in the
Company’s financial statements, in which case the option holder may exercise options capable
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(2)

3)

(4)

6]

of being exercised within ninety days after the corporate event or until the date of expiration
of the options, if earlier; or (iii) a change in control, in which event all options become fully
exercisable and, for a period of two years following the change in control, the option holder has
one year from the date of termination of employment to exercise the options or until the date
of expiration of the options, if earlier.

In 2004, 835 employees were granted a total of 2,699,700 stock options under the Incentive Plan.
The Compensation and Executive Organization Committee of the Board of Directors also
approved in 2004 a broad-based grant of 1,314,200 stock options to 13,142 full- and continuous
part-time employees who do not receive annual option grant consideration under the Incentive
Plan. These stock options, which were granted on July 19, 2004 under the Company’s Broad
Based Stock Option Plan, have a term of ten years and become fully vested five years following
the grant date. If the number of stock options granted under the broad-based grant were excluded
from the total number of options granted by the Committee in 2004 and the percentages in this
column were based solely on the total number of stock options granted under the Incentive Plan,
the percentages would be as follows: R. H. Lenny — 7.2%; F. Cerminara — 1.5%; T. K. Hernquist
— 1.0%; B. H. Snyder — 1.2%; and D. J. West — 2.0%.

The exercise price may be paid in cash, shares of Common Stock valued at the fair market value
on the date of exercise, or pursuant to a cashless exercise procedure under which the stock option
holder provides irrevocable instructions to a brokerage firm to sell the purchased shares and to
remit to the Company out of the sale proceeds an amount equal to the exercise price plus all
applicable withholding taxes.

The dollar amounts under these columns for all the individuals are the result of annual
appreciation rates for the term of the options (ten years) as required by the Securities and
Exchange Commission and, therefore, are not intended to forecast possible future appreciation,
if any, of the price of the Common Stock.

For “All Stockholders,” the potential realizable value on 259,305,050 shares, the number of
outstanding shares of Common Stock and Class B Stock on February 2, 2004, is based on a $37.76
per share price (the exercise price of the February 2, 2004 options). The value of the Common
Stock and Class B Stock at $37.76 per share on February 2, 2004 was $9,791,358,688. The
amounts listed in this line for “All Stockholders” are the result of calculations at the 5% and 10%
annual appreciation rates for a period of ten years from February 2, 2004, through and including
February 1, 2014. The amounts are not intended to forecast possible future appreciation, if any,
of the price of the Common Stock.
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The following table sets forth information with respect to the named executive officers concerning
the exercise of stock options during the last fiscal year and unexercised stock options held as of the
end of the fiscal year, adjusted, as applicable, for the two-for-one stock split on June 15, 2004.

Aggregated Option Exercises in Year-Ended December 31, 2004
and Year-End Option Values

Securities Underlying Value of Unexercised
Number of Unexercised In-The-Money
Options at Options at
Shares 12/31/04 ()™ 12/31/04 ($)V
Acquired on | Value Realized Exer- Unexer- Exer- Unexer-
Name Exercise (#) ¥ cisable cisable cisable cisable
R. H. Lenny 225,000 3,365,750 659,000 699,500 | 15,038,102 | 14,602,080
F. Cerminara 30,600 873,071 95,700 115,400 2,451,381 2,436,409
T. K. Hernquist — — 18,550 83,150 432,401 | 1,786,289
B. H. Snyder 64,200 1,452,823 25,550 89,050 571,611 1,874,916
D. J. West 15,000 271,147 28,525 119,675 634,285 | 2,473,023

(1) The fair market value of the Common Stock on December 31, 2004, the last trading day of the
Company’s fiscal year, was $55.54. Except for 121,050 exercisable and 115,350 unexercisable
options granted to R. H. Lenny on March 12, 2001 pursuant to a separate registration statement
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, all of the stock options were granted under
the Incentive Plan.

Long-Term Incentive Program — Performance Stock Units

The following table provides information concerning performance stock unit grants made to the
named executive officers during the last fiscal year under the long-term incentive program portion
ofthe Incentive Plan. Payments made under the program for the three-year performance cycle ending
December 31, 2004 are reported in the Summary Compensation Table. Unless stated otherwise, the
number of PSUs and/or shares of Common Stock set forth in the chart and accompanying footnotes
below has been adjusted for the two-for-one stock split on June 15, 2004.

Long-Term Incentive Program
Performance Stock Unit Awards in Year-Ended December 31, 2004

Performance
Number °.f or Other . Estimated Future Payouts

Shares, Units Period Until

or Other Maturation Threshold Target Maximum
Name Rights or Payout #) #) #)

R. H. Lenny® 51,800 3 years 5,180 51,800 129,500
R. H. Lenny® 80,000 3 years 40,000 80,000 80,000
F. Cerminara™ 11,100 3 years 1,110 11,100 27,750
T. K. HernquistV 7,400 3 years 740 7,400 18,500
B. H. Snyder'V 8,700 3 years 870 8,700 21,750
W 8,100 810 8,100 20,250
D. J. West 2.150 3 years 215 2,150 5.375
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(D

(2)

PSUs for the cycle commencing January 1, 2004 and ending December 31, 2006 were granted

to R. H. Lenny on February 17, 2004 and to the named executive officers, other than R. H. Lenny,
on February 2, 2004. Mr. West’s grant of 8,100 PSUs on February 2, 2004 was supplemented by
a grant of 2,150 additional PSUs on December 6, 2004 in recognition of his being elected Senior
Vice President, Chief Financial Officer effective January 1, 2005. This supplemental grant is
subject to the same three-year cycle, terms and conditions as the February 2, 2004 grant.

For purposes of determining the number of grants, the value of each PSU is based on the average
of the daily closing prices of the Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange as reported
in The Wall Street Journal for the December preceding the new three-year performance cycle.

The final value of the award is determined based upon three factors. The first factor is the number
of PSUs awarded at the commencement of the three-year cycle. The second factor relates to the
performance score, determined as the sum of (i) the Company’s earnings per share-diluted
growth (three-year compound annual growth rate) measured against an internal target and
measured against the earnings per share-diluted growth (three-year compound annual growth
rate) of a peer group of 16 food, beverage and consumer packaged goods companies, scored on
a range from 10% to 125%; and (ii) the cumulative three-year improvement in the Company’s
economic return on invested capital measured against an internal target, scored on a range from
10% to 125%. The total performance score can range from a minimum of 0% to a maximum of
250%, based upon each of the performance measurements having a 50% weighted value in the
formula. The third factor involves the value per unit which is determined at the conclusion of
the three-year cycle.

The columns in the chart marked Threshold, Target and Maximum show the number of shares
of Common Stock payable to each of the named executive officers at the end of the three-year
performance cycle at the threshold achievement level of 10%, at the target achievement level of
100%, and at the maximum achievement level of 250%. If the achievement level at the end of
the three-year cycle is less than the threshold, no payments are made.

A special contingent grant of 80,000 PSUs was made to Mr. Lenny on April 27, 2004 for the three-
year cycle commencing January 1, 2004 and ending December 31, 2006. The purpose of the award
was to encourage retention and, in part, to award performance. Payment of the award will be
made only if the compound annual growth rate in the Company’s net sales from 2004 to 20086,
disregarding acquisitions and divestitures, equals or exceeds the target established by the
Compensation and Executive Organization Committee and approved by the independent
directors as a group. The independent directors have authorized the Compensation and
Executive Organization Committee to decrease the award if the compound annual growth rate
over the three-year cycle is less than the target but equals or exceeds a threshold amount.
The columns in the chart marked Threshold, Target and Maximum show the number of shares
of Common Stock that will be paid to Mr. Lenny at the threshold achievement level and at the
target achievement level (which is also the maximum achievement level). If the compound
annual growth rate is less than the threshold percentage, no payment will be made.
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Performance Graph

The following graph compares the Company’s cumulative total stockholder return (Common Stock
price appreciation plus dividends, on a reinvested basis) over the last five fiscal years with the
Standard & Poor’s 500 Index and the Standard & Poor’s Packaged Foods Index.

COMPARISON OF FIVE YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
HERSHEY FOODS CORPORATION, S&P 500 INDEX AND
S&P PACKAGED FOODS INDEX

$300
$250 /’
$200 /
$150 /0//‘
$100
$50
—4—HERSHEY —&— S&P 500 —A— S&P Packaged Foods
$0
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004
HERSHEY $100 $139 $149 $151 $176 $258
S&P 500 $100 $ 91 $ 80 $ 62 $ 80 $ 89
S&P Packaged Foods $100 $127 $129 $133 $144 $171

*  Hypothetical $100 invested on 12/31/99 in Hershey Foods Common Stock, S&P 500 Index and
S&P Packaged Foods Index, assuming reinvestment of dividends.

Employment Contracts and Benefit Protection Arrangements

Under the terms of an employment agreement entered into by the Company and R. H. Lenny on
March 12, 2001, Mr. Lenny is entitled to an annual salary during the term of the agreement of not
less than $750,000, to participate in the Annual and Long-Term Incentive Programs of the Incentive
Plan on terms and conditions consistent with participation by other senior executives of the Company
and in the Company’s other employee benefits programs (such as the Company’s ESSIOP, medical
and dental, disability, group life, and similar benefit plans offered by the Company). The employment
agreement provided a one-time sign-on award, in lieu of participation initially in certain on-going
Company incentive programs, and an RSU award to replace compensation forfeited as a result of his
resignation from his prior employer. The total compensation awarded to Mr. Lenny for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2004 is set forth in the Executive Compensation section of this Proxy Statement.
The agreement also provides for immediate vesting and accelerated accrual of benefits under the
Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan, provided that no supplemental retirement
benefit will be paid if Mr. Lenny’s employment is terminated for cause, or terminated voluntarily by
Mr. Lenny, before his 55" birthday. The Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan is more fully
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described in the following section of this Proxy Statement entitled “Pension Plans.” Mr. Lenny is also
eligible to participate in the Benefits Protection Plan, described below. Mr. Lenny’s employment
agreement has a continuous term of three years, with each day of the agreement extending the term
of the agreement for one additional day unless the Board notifies Mr. Lenny that the automatic
extension feature will cease, in which case the term will become a fixed three-year term from the date
of such notice. In the event the Company should terminate Mr. Lenny’s employment without cause,
or should Mr. Lenny terminate the agreement for good reason, he will be entitled to a lump-sum
severance benefit equal to his annual salary and AIP bonus for two years, previously earned or
deferred AIP bonus and PSU awards, supplemental executive retirement benefits and continuation
for a two-year period of the medical and dental, group life and similar benefits programs to which
Mr. Lenny had been entitled while in active employment (excluding disability coverage).

On October 21, 2004, the Company entered into a Retirement Agreement and General Release with
F. Cerminara in connection with his resignation as Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
effective December 31, 2004. Under that agreement Mr. Cerminara will continue his employment
with the Company during calendar year 2005, during which time he will receive his 2004 base salary,
will be eligible to participate in the Annual Incentive Program and stock option program of the
Incentive Plan, will accrue benefit credits under the Company’s Supplemental Executive Retirement
Plan and will participate in pension, health and welfare benefit programs available generally to
Company employees, other than disability.

The Company provides an Executive Benefits Protection Plan (“Benefits Protection Plan”) for the
named executive officers and other key management personnel. The terms of the Benefits Protection
Plan are consistent with the practices followed by other major public corporations in the United
States and generally provide that in the event the executive’s employment with the Company
terminates within two years after a “change in control” of the Company, the executive is entitled to
certain severance payments and benefits. A “change in control” is defined to include an event in which
the Milton Hershey School Trust no longer holds voting control of the Company and another party
acquires 25% or more of the combined voting power of common equity of the Company. Under the
Benefits Protection Plan, upon an executive officer’s termination after a change in control as
described above, and in order to assist the executive in transitioning to new employment, the
executive generally would be entitled to receive in a lump sum three times the executive’s base salary,
AIP bonus and PSU payout. The executive also would be entitled to continuation of health benefits
for a period of three years and reimbursement for Federal excise taxes payable (but not for income
taxes payable). The executive also would become vested in benefits under existing compensation and
benefit programs (including those described in the Executive Compensation section) and generally
would be paid such benefits at the time of the executive’s termination or deferred at the executive’s
election under the Deferred Compensation Plan. Compensation deferred under the Deferred
Compensation Plan and supplemental retirement benefits under the Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan would be provided by a grantor trust to be established and funded at the time of
any such change in control. Executive officers are also entitled to receive certain severance payments
and benefits if their employment with the Company is terminated in the absence of a change in
control, provided that the termination is not for “cause” as defined in the Benefits Protection Plan.
In the event of such termination, the executive would be placed on a two-year leave of absence, during
which time the executive would receive his base salary, AIP bonus, previously earned and/or deferred
AIP bonus and PSU awards, and benefit programs to which the executive had been entitled while
in active employment (excluding disability coverage).

Pension Plans

Each of the named executive officers is eligible to participate in pension plans sponsored by the
Company. Pension benefits are provided under the Company’s tax-qualified pension plan (the
“Pension Plan”) and under a supplemental retirement plan for certain of the Company’s executive
officers (the “Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan”). Ultimately, the pension benefits provided
under the plans are designed to provide 55% of Final Average Compensation after 15 years of service,
accrued ratably over that period. Final Average Compensation is calculated as the sum of the highest
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consecutive three-year average of base salary and the highest consecutive five-year average of AIP
payments, determined over the most recent ten-year period. Benefits are reduced for 100% of the
benefit provided through Social Security. Benefits are paid from the Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan, with an offset for the benefits that have accrued separately under the Pension Plan.

Normal retirement age under the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan is age 65. Benefits are
payable as early as age 55 provided the executive officer has ten years of service with the Company
and has participated in the performance share unit portion of the Incentive Plan for at least five out
of the last ten years of employment. Benefits are reduced 5% per year for each year that payments
commence before age 60.

The following table shows the estimated annual normal retirement benefit payable under the plans
for various Final Average Compensation and service classifications. The portion of annual benefits
paid under the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan are payable as a life annuity with 50%
benefit continuation to the participant’s surviving spouse. The table indicates benefits prior to
reduction for Social Security because the reduction for Social Security varies depending on the
participant’s age at retirement and changes in Social Security laws.

Estimated Annual Normal Retirement Benefit

Final Average Years of Service
Compensation 10 Years 15 or More Years

$ 300,000 $ 110,000 $ 165,000
400,000 146,667 220,000
500,000 183,333 275,000
600,000 220,000 330,000
700,000 256,667 385,000
800,000 293,333 440,000
900,000 330,000 495,000
1,000,000 366,667 550,000
1,100,000 403,333 605,000
1,200,000 440,000 660,000
1,300,000 476,667 715,000
1,400,000 513,333 770,000
1,500,000 550,000 825,000
1,600,000 586,667 880,000
1,700,000 623,333 935,000
1,800,000 660,000 990,000
1,900,000 696,667 1,045,000
2,000,000 733,333 1,100,000
2,100,000 770,000 1,155,000
2,200,000 806,667 1,210,000
2,300,000 843,333 1,265,000
2,400,000 880,000 1,320,000
2,500,000 916,667 1,375,000
2,600,000 953,333 1,430,000
2,700,000 990,000 1,485,000
2,800,000 1,026,667 1,540,000
2,900,000 1,063,333 1,595,000
3,000,000 1,100,000 1,650,000
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As of December 31, 2004, the Final Average Compensation and years of service, respectively, for the
following named executive officers was: F. Cerminara, $645,340, 32.6 years; T. K. Hernquist,
$627,558, 1.7 years; B. H. Snyder, $574,163, 21.5 years; D. J. West, $646,920, 3.6 years. R. H. Lenny
has a Final Average Compensation of $2,548,438. Mr. Lenny has a separate agreement that provides
for more rapid accrual under the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan. His 3.8 years of service
is equivalent to 6.7 years of service under the plan.

Company Gift Matching Program

The Company sponsors a Gift Matching Program for employees of the Company. Under the Gift
Matching Program, an employee’s contribution to one or more charitable institutions of higher
education is matched, at the employee’s request, on a dollar-for-dollar basis up to a maximum
aggregate annual contribution per employee of $5,000.

VOTING OF PROXIES

A proxy may be revoked at any time before it is voted at the Annual Meeting by submitting to the
Secretary of the Company a written notice revoking it, by a duly-executed proxy bearing a later date,
by a telephone or Internet vote cast at a later date, or by voting by ballot at the meeting. Shares held
for each participant in the Company’s Automatic Dividend Reinvestment Service Plan, the ESSIOP
or the Company’s Puerto Rico Employee Savings Stock Investment and Ownership Plan (“PR
ESSIOP”) will be voted by the plan trustees as directed by the participant’s proxy. If an Automatic
Dividend Reinvestment Service Plan participant does not return a proxy, the participant’s shares in
the plan will not be voted. If an ESSIOP or PR ESSIOP participant does not return a proxy, that
participant’s shares will be voted by the plan trustee in the same proportion as the final aggregate
votes of plan participants actually voting on the matter.

SOLICITATION OF PROXIES

Solicitation of proxies will be made by use of the mail or, if consented to by a stockholder, by electronic
transmission over the Internet. The cost of preparing, assembling and distributing this proxy
solicitation material and Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be paid by the Company.
Solicitation by mail, telephone, telefax, electronic transmission over the Internet or personal contact
may be done by directors, officers and other employees of the Company, for which they will receive
no additional compensation. Brokerage houses and other nominees, fiduciaries and custodians
nominally holding shares of the Company’s stock as of the record date will be requested to forward
proxy solicitation material to the beneficial owners of such shares and will be reimbursed by the
Company for their reasonable expenses.

The Securities and Exchange Commission has adopted rules that allow the Company to send a single
copy of its Proxy Statement and Annual Report to Stockholders to two or more stockholders sharing
the same address if those stockholders also share the same name or if the Company reasonably
believes that those stockholders are members of the same family. The rules require that each
stockholder at the shared address continue to receive a separate proxy card or voting instruction card.
Hershey Foods believes this rule is beneficial to both stockholders and the Company because it allows
for the elimination of cumbersome duplicate mailings to the same household and results in lower
printing and postage costs.

Any stockholder who would prefer to have a separate copy of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report
to Stockholders delivered to him or her at the shared address for this and future years may elect to
do so by calling, toll free, (800) 542-1061, or by writing to ADP, Householding Department, 51
Mercedes Way, Edgewood, New York 11717. A copy of the materials will be sent promptly to the
stockholder following receipt of such notice.

Stockholders whose shares of Common Stock are held partially in registered name and partially by
abroker or other nominee may receive duplicate deliveries of the Proxy Statement and Annual Report
to Stockholders. Certain brokers and nominees have procedures in place to discontinue duplicate
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mailings upon a stockholder’s request or upon the stockholder’s implied consent not to receive
duplicate mailings following notice from the broker. Stockholders desiring to eliminate such duplicate
mailings should contact their broker or nominee for more information.

SECTION 18(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

The Company’s executive officers, directors and 10% stockholders are required under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the New York Stock
Exchange reports of ownership and changes in ownership in their holdings of the Company’s stock.
Copies of these reports also must be furnished to the Company. Based on an examination of these
reports and on written representations provided to the Company, all such reports have been timely
filed, except that the Company inadvertently failed to file on behalf of each of the following individuals
a report of the following transactions: the withholding of 23 shares on March 12, 2002 to cover the
tax liability which occurred due to the vesting and deferral of RSUs by R. H. Lenny; the withholding
of eight shares on January 2, 2002 to cover the tax liability which occurred due to the vesting and
deferral of RSUs by D. J. West; and the settlement and deferral of 1,234 PSUs awarded on
February 12, 2002 to, and the withholding of 28 shares to cover the tax liability which occurred due
to the settlement of the PSUs by, D. W. Tacka.

CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS AND RELATIONSHIPS

During 2004, the Company and its subsidiaries had a number of transactions with Milton Hershey
School, the Milton Hershey School Trust, and companies owned by the Milton Hershey School Trust
involving the purchase or sale of goods and services. These transactions were primarily with Hershey
Entertainment & Resorts Company, based in Hershey, Pennsylvania, and wholly-owned by the
Milton Hershey School Trust.

The aggregate value of sales made during 2004 by the Company and its subsidiaries to Milton
Hershey School, the Milton Hershey School Trust, and companies owned by the Milton Hershey
School Trust, amounted to approximately $350,000. During the same year, the Company purchased
goods and services from these entities in the amount of approximately $3,700,000. These transactions
were on terms that the Company believes to be no less favorable to the Company than those which
could have been obtained from other purchasers or vendors.

The Company’s Corporate Governance Guidelines provide that any transaction not in the ordinary
course of business between the Company and Hershey Trust Company, Hershey Entertainment &
Resorts Company and/or the Milton Hershey School, or any subsidiary, division or affiliate of any of
the foregoing, must be approved in advance by a subcommittee of the Board composed of the
independent members of the Executive Committee.

On July 28, 2004, the Company purchased 11,281,589 shares of its Common Stock from the Milton
Hershey School Trust in a privately negotiated transaction. The Company paid $500 million for the
shares. The price per share of $44.32 was determined on the basis of the volume weighted average
trading price per share of the Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange for the five trading
days immediately prior to and including July 26, 2004, less a discount based on the avoidance of
certain transaction costs. This transaction was reviewed in advance and recommended to the Board
by a special committee of the Board composed of Harriet Edelman and Marie J. Toulantis, who were
elected to the Board in 2004 by the holders of the Common Stock voting separately as a class. In an
opinion letter addressed to the special committee, dated July 27, 2004, J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.
opined that, as of such date and based upon and subject to the factors and assumptions set forth in
such letter, the consideration paid by the Company for the shares was fair, from a financial point of
view, to the Company. J.P. Morgan provided its opinion solely for the benefit of the special committee
and the Board in connection with and for purposes of their evaluation of the transaction.

41



OTHER BUSINESS

As of January 28, 2005, the Company had received no proposal, nomination for director or other
business submitted in accordance with its By-Laws for consideration at the Annual Meeting, other
than that set forth in the Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and as more specifically described
in this Proxy Statement, and, therefore, it is not expected that any other business will be brought
before the Annual Meeting. However, if any other business should properly come before the Annual
Meeting, it is the intention of the persons identified as proxies on the Company’s proxy card to vote
properly submitted proxies in accordance with their best judgment on such business and any matters
dealing with the conduct of the Annual Meeting.

STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS AND NOMINATIONS

The 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders will be held on April 18, 2006. To be eligible for inclusion
in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the 20068 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, stockholder
proposals must be received by the Company by November 10, 2005.

Stockholders (other than those holding 25% of the outstanding votes entitled to be cast) who do not submit
proposals for inclusion in the Proxy Statement but who intend to present a proposal, nomination for
director or other business for consideration at any meeting of stockholders, including any annual meeting,
are required by the Company’s By-Laws to notify the Secretary of the Company of their proposal or
nomination and provide other information in advance of such meeting. Stockholders interested in making
proposals at the 2006 Annual Meeting must submit their name and address, their shareholdings, a brief
description of the proposal and any financial or other interest they have in such proposal to the Company
no earlier than December 20, 2005 and no later than January 19, 2006.

In addition, the Company’s By-Laws require that a stockholder wishing to make a nomination for director
at the 2006 Annual Meeting must submit the following information to the Company no earlier than
December 20, 2005 and no later than January 19, 2006: name and address of the stockholder who intends
to make the nomination; a representation that the stockholder is a holder of record and intends to make
the nomination in person or by proxy at the meeting; a description of any arrangement between the
stockholder and the individual planned to be nominated; the nominee’s name, address and biographical
information; and the written consent of the nominee to serve as a director if elected.

All notices for stockholder proposals and director nominations should be sent to Hershey Foods
Corporation, Attn: Secretary, 100 Crystal A Drive, Hershey, Pennsylvania 17033-0810.

AVAILABILITY OF OTHER DOCUMENTS

The Company will provide without charge to each beneficial owner of its Common Stock and Class
B Stock, upon such stockholder’s request, a copy of the Charter of any standing committee of the
Board, the Company’s Code of Ethical Business Conduct or the Company’s Corporate Governance
Guidelines. Requests for copies should be addressed to Hershey Foods Corporation, Attn: Investor
Relations Department, 100 Crystal A Drive, Hershey, Pennsylvania 17033-0810.

By order of the Board of Directors,

Burton H. Snyder

Senior Vice President,

General Counsel and Secretary
March 10, 2005

Stockholders who desire to have their stock voted at the meeting are requested to either (1)
follow the Internet or telephone voting instructions on the enclosed proxy card or (2) mark, sign
and date the enclosed proxy card and return it promptly in the enclosed, postage-paid envelope.
Stockholders may revoke their proxies at any time prior to the meeting, and stockholders who
are present at the meeting may revoke their proxies and vote, if they so desire, in person.
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PART I

Item 1. BUSINESS

Hershey Foods Corporation, its wholly-owned subsidiaries and entities in which it has a controlling
financial interest (the “Company”) are engaged in the manufacture, distribution and sale of
confectionery, snack, refreshment and grocery products. The Company was organized under the
laws of the State of Delaware on October 24, 1927, as a successor to a business founded in 1894 by
Milton S. Hershey.

The Company’s principal product groups include: confectionery and snack products sold in the form
of bar goods, bagged items and boxed items; refreshment products sold in the form of gum and mints;
and grocery products in the form of baking ingredients, chocolate drink mixes, peanut butter, dessert
toppings and beverages. The Company believes it is a leader in many of these product groups in the
United States, Canada and Mexico. Operating profit margins vary among individual products and
product groups.

The Company manufactures confectionery and snack products in a variety of packaged forms
and markets them under more than 50 brands. The different packaged forms include various
arrangements of the same bar products, such as boxes, trays and bags, as well as a variety of different
sizes and weights of the same bar products, such as snack size, standard, king size, large and
giant bars.

The principal confectionery products sold in the United States include:
ALMOND JOY candy bar HERSHEY'’S milk chocolate bar with

ALMOND JOY, HEATH, HERSHEY'S,

" KIT KAT, MR. GOODBAR, REESE’S,
ROLO, and YORK BITES candies

ALMOND JOY, HERSHEY'S, REESE’S,
and YORK SWQOOPS candies

HERSHEY’S KISSES brand filled with
caramel milk chocolates

HERSHEY’S KISSES brand milk
chocolates

HERSHEY’S KISSES brand milk
chocolates with almonds

HERSHEY’S milk chocolate bar

almonds
HERSHEY’S MINIATURES chocolate bars
HERSHEY’S NUGGETS chocolates
HERSHEY’S S’MORES candy bar
JOLLY RANCHER candy
KIT KAT wafer bar
MOUNDS candy bar
PAYDAY candy bar
REESE’S peanut butter cups
REESE’S PIECES candy
TWIZZLERS candy
YORK peppermint pattie

The principal snack products sold in the United States include:

HERSHEY'S 1GRAM SUGAR CARB bars
HERSHEY'S, HERSHEY'S S’MORES and

REESE’S SNACK BARZ rice and

marshmallow bars

HERSHEY'’S SMARTZONE nutrition bar
HERSHEY’S, ALMOND JOY, REESE’S
and YORK cookies

In December 2004, the Company acquired Mauna Loa Macadamia Nut Corporation (“Mauna Loa”).
Mauna Loa is the leading processor and marketer of macadamia snacks, with annual sales of
approximately $80 million. Mauna Loa’s principal products include macadamia nuts and macadamia
nut confectionery, cookie and snack items sold under the Mauna Loa brand name.

The principal refreshment products sold in the United States include:

BREATH SAVERS mints ICE BREAKERS mints and chewing gum
ICE BREAKERS LIQUID ICE mints KOOLERZ chewing gum



Other confectionery products include:

5TH AVENUE candy bar KIT KAT BIG KAT wafer bar
CADBURY chocolate bar KRACKEL chocolate bar
CARAMELLQO candy bars MILK DUDS candy
FAST BREAK candy bar MR. GOODBAR chocolate bar
GOOD & PLENTY candy REESE’'S NUTRAGEOQOUS candy bar
HEATH toffee bar REESE’S SUGAR FREE peanut butter
HERSHEY'S, HERSHEY'S KISSES, KIT cups

KAT and REESE’S CARB REESESTICKS wafer bar

ALTERNATIVES chocolate candies ROLQO caramels in milk chocolate
HERSHEY'S COOKIES ‘N’ CREME candy SKOR toffee bar

bar SPECIAL DARK chocolate bar
HERSHEY’S HUGS chocolates SYMPHONY milk chocolate bar
HERSHEY’S POT OF GOLD boxed TAKES5 candy bar

chocolates WHATCHAMACALLIT candy bar
HERSHEY'S SUGAR FREE chocolate WHOPPERS malted milk balls

candy YORK SUGAR FREE peppermint patties
JOLLY RANCHER SUGAR FREE hard ZAGNUT candy bar

candy ZERQ candy bar

The Company also manufactures and/or markets grocery products in the baking, beverage, peanut
butter and toppings categories. Principal products in the United States include:

HERSHEY'S BAKE SHOPPE baking chips HERSHEY'S syrup

and pieces HERSHEY'S toppings
HERSHEY'’S chocolate milk mix REESE’S baking chips
HERSHEY’S cocoa REESE'’S peanut butter

HERSHEY’S hot cocoa mix

HERSHEY'S chocolate and strawberry flavored milks are produced and sold under license by various
dairies throughout the United States. Baking and various other products are produced and sold under
the HERSHEY’S and REESE’S brand names by third parties that have been granted licenses by the
Company to use these trademarks.

Principal products in Canada include CHIPITS chocolate chips, GLOSETTE chocolate-covered
raisins, peanuts and almonds, OH HENRY! candy bars, POT OF GOLD boxed chocolates, REESE
PEANUT BUTTER CUPS candy and TWIZZLERS candy. The Company also manufactures, imports,
markets, sells and distributes chocolate products in Mexico under the HERSHEY’S brand name. In
October 2004, Hershey Mexico, a subsidiary of the Company and one of the leading companies
manufacturing and selling chocolate, confectionery and flavored milk products in Mexico, acquired
Grupo Lorena, one of Mexico’s top confectionery companies. Grupo Lorena, with annual sales of over
$30 million, is the leader in the spicy candy market in Mexico with its PELON PELO RICO brand.

The Company has license agreements with several companies to manufacture and/or sell products
worldwide. Among the more significant are agreements with affiliated companies of Cadbury
Schweppes p.l.c. to manufacture and/or market and distribute YORK, PETER PAUL ALMOND JOY
and PETER PAUL MOUNDS confectionery products worldwide as well as CADBURY and
CARAMELLOQO confectionery products in the United States. The Company’s rights under these
agreements are extendible on a long-term basis at the Company’s option. The license for CADBURY
and CARAMELLO products is subject to a minimum sales requirement that the Company exceeded
in 2004. The Company also has an agreement with Societe des Produits Nestle SA, which licenses
the Company to manufacture and distribute KIT KAT and ROLO confectionery products in the
United States. The Company’s rights under this agreement are extendible on a long-term basis at
the Company’s option, subject to certain conditions, including minimum unit volume sales. In 2004,
the minimum unit volume requirements were exceeded. The Company has an agreement with an




affiliate of Huhtaméki Oy (“Huhtamaki”) pursuant to which it licenses the use of certain trademarks,
including GOOD & PLENTY, HEATH, JOLLY RANCHER, MILK DUDS, PAYDAY and WHOPPERS
for confectionery products worldwide. The Company’s rights under this agreement are extendible on
a long-term basis at the Company’s option.

The Company’s products are sold primarily to wholesale distributors, chain grocery stores, mass
merchandisers, chain drug stores, vending companies, wholesale clubs, convenience stores and
concessionaires by full-time sales representatives, food brokers and part-time retail sales
merchandisers throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico. The Company believes its
products are sold in over 2 million retail outlets in North America. In 2004, sales to McLane Company,
Inc., one of the largest wholesale distributors in the United States to convenience stores, drug stores,
wholesale clubs and mass merchandisers, amounted to approximately 25 percent of the Company’s
total net sales.

The Company manufactures, imports, markets, sells and distributes chocolate products in Brazil
under the HERSHEY’S brand name, including /0-I0 hazelnut créme items, and chocolate and
confectionery products sold under the VISCONTI brand name. In Japan, Korea and the Philippines,
the Company imports and/or markets selected confectionery and grocery products. The Company also
markets confectionery and grocery products in over 60 countries worldwide.

The Company’s marketing strategy is based upon its strong brand equities, product innovation, the
consistently superior quality of its products, manufacturing expertise and mass distribution
capabilities. In addition, the Company devotes considerable resources to the identification,
development, testing, manufacturing and marketing of new products. The Company utilizes a variety
of promotional programs for customers as well as advertising and promotional programs for
consumers. The Company employs promotional programs at various times during the year to
stimulate sales of certain products. The Company’s sales have typically been highest during the third
and fourth quarters of the year.

The Company recognizes that the distribution of its products is an important element in maintaining
sales growth and providing service to its customers. The Company attempts to meet the changing
demands of'its customers by planning optimum stock levels and reasonable delivery times consistent
with achievement of efficiencies in distribution. To achieve these objectives, the Company has
developed a distribution network from its manufacturing plants, distribution centers and field
warehouses strategically located throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico. The Company
uses a combination of public and contract carriers to deliver its products from the distribution points
to its customers. In conjunction with sales and marketing efforts, the distribution system has been
instrumental in the growth of sales.

From time to time, the Company has changed the prices and weights of its products to accommodate
changes in manufacturing costs, the competitive environment and profit objectives, while at the same
time maintaining consumer value. In December 2004, the Company announced an increase in the
wholesale prices of approximately half of its domestic confectionery line. A weighted average increase
of approximately 6 percent on the Company’s standard bar, king-size bar, 6-pack and vending lines
was effective in January 2005 and a weighted average price increase of approximately 4 percent on
packaged candy was effective in February 2005. The price increases represent an average increase
of 3 percent over the entire domestic product line and will help to offset increases in the Company’s
input costs, including raw and packaging materials, fuel, utilities, transportation and employee
benefits. In January 2003, the Company implemented an increase in the wholesale price of its
domestic standard size, king size, variety pack, 6-pack and 10-pack lines. The effect of all the
increases translated into an approximate 3 percent increase over the entire domestic product line.

The most significant raw material used in the production of the Company’s chocolate products is cocoa
beans. This commodity is imported principally from Far Eastern, West African and South American
equatorial regions. West Africa accounts for approximately 70 percent of the world’s crop. Cocoa beans
are not uniform, and the various grades and varieties reflect the diverse agricultural practices and



natural conditions found in the many growing areas. The Company buys a mix of cocoa beans and
cocoa products to meet its manufacturing requirements.

The table below sets forth annual average cocoa prices as well as the highest and lowest monthly
averages for each of the calendar years indicated. The prices are the monthly average of the
quotations at noon of the three active futures trading contracts closest to maturity on the New York
Board of Trade. Because of the Company’s forward purchasing practices discussed below, and
premium prices paid for certain varieties of cocoa beans, these average futures contract prices are
not necessarily indicative of the Company’s average cost of cocoa beans or cocoa products.

Cocoa Futures Contract Prices
(cents per pound)

2004 2003 2002 2001 2000

Annual Average 68.7 77.8 76.9 47.1 37.9
High 76.8 99.8 96.7 57.9 40.1
Low 62.1 65.6 60.3 41.5 34.4

Source: International Cocoa Organization Quarterly Bulletin of Cocoa Statistics

After declining from an eighteen-year high in February 2003, cocoa prices continued to trade at
relatively high price levels during 2004. Continued civil unrest in the world’s largest cocoa-producing
country, the Ivory Coast, has resulted in volatile market conditions, but has not materially affected
the harvesting and marketing of the cocoa crop. The Company’s costs will not necessarily reflect
market price fluctuations because of its forward purchasing practices, premiums and discounts
reflective of varying delivery times, and supply and demand for specific varieties and grades of cocoa
beans. The Company’s costs for cocoa will increase in 2005; however, the Company expects to achieve
its goals for growth and profitability over the foreseeable future by a combination of selling price
increases, improved sales mix, supply chain cost reductions and strict control of other costs to offset
cost increases and respond to changes in the competitive environment.

The Farm Security and Rural In{festment Act 0of 2002, which is a six-year farm bill, impacts the prices
of sugar, corn, peanuts and milk because it sets price support levels for these commodities.

The price of sugar, the Company’s second most important commodity for its products, is subject to
price supports under the above-referenced farm legislation. Due to import quotas and duties imposed
to support the price of sugar established by that legislation, sugar prices paid by United States users
are currently substantially higher than prices on the world sugar market. The average wholesale list
price of refined sugar, F.O.B. Northeast, has remained in a range of 25¢ to 32¢ per pound for the past
ten years. United States peanut prices traded around 40¢ per pound during 2004. Almond prices
remained firm throughout the year due to strong global demand and a weakening U.S. dollar. Prices
were $2.00 per pound during the first half of 2004 and rose to $3.00 per pound during the second half
of the year. Milk prices increased significantly in 2004 compared with 2003 as a result of a decline
in milk production. Milk prices in 2005 are expected to moderate from the high pricés of 2004 as milk
production increases. The Company believes that the supply of raw materials is adequate to meet
its manufacturing requirements.

The Company attempts to minimize the effect of future price fluctuations related to the purchase of
its major raw materials and certain energy requirements primarily through forward purchasing to
cover future requirements, generally for periods from 3 to 24 months. With regard to cocoa, sugar,
corn sweeteners, natural gas, fuel oil and certain dairy products, price risks are also managed by
entering into futures contracts. At the present time, active futures contracts are not available for use
in pricing the Company’s other major raw material requirements. Futures contracts are used in
combination with forward purchasing of cocoa, sugar, corn sweetener, natural gas and certain dairy
product requirements principally to take advantage of market fluctuations that provide more
favorable pricing opportunities and flexibility in sourcing these raw materials and energy
requirements. Fuel oil futures contracts are used toc minimize price fluctuations associated with the
Company’s transportation costs. The Company’s commodity procurement practices are intended to




reduce the risk of future price increases, but may also potentially limit the ability to benefit from
possible price decreases.

The primary effect on liquidity from using futures contracts is associated with margin requirements
for futures contracts related to cocoa, sugar, corn sweeteners, natural gas, fuel oil and certain dairy
products. Cash outfiows and inflows result from original margins that are “good faith deposits”
established by futures exchanges to ensure that market participants will meet their contractual
financial obligations. Additionally, variation margin payments and receipts are required when the
value of open positions is adjusted to reflect daily price movements. The magnitude of such cash
inflows and outflows is dependent upon price coverage levels and the volatility of the markets. Cash
flows related to margin requirements historically have not been material to the Company’s total
working capital requirements.

The Company manages the purchase of forward and futures contracts by developing and monitoring
procurement strategies for each of its major commodities. These procurement strategies are directly
linked to the overall planning and management of the Company’s business, since the cost of raw
materials, energy and transportation accounts for a significant portion of cost of sales. Procurement
strategies with regard to cocoa, sugar and other major raw material requirements, energy
requirements and transportation costs are developed by the analysis of fundamentals, including
weather and crop analysis, imbalances between supply and demand, currency exchange rates,
political unrest in producing countries, speculative influences and by discussions with market
analysts, brokers and dealers. Procurement strategies are determined, implemented and monitored
on a regular basis by senior management. Procurement activities for all major commodities are also
reported to the Company’s Board of Directors (the “Board”) on a regular basis.

Competition

Many of the Company’s brands enjoy wide consumer acceptance and are among the leading brands
sold in the marketplace. However, these brands are sold in highly competitive markets and compete
with many other multinational, national, regional and local firms, some of which have resources in
excess of those available to the Company.

Trademarks

The Company owns various registered and unregistered trademarks and service marks and
has rights under licenses to use various trademarks that are of material importance to the
Company’s business.

Backlog of Orders

The Company manufactures primarily for stock and fills customer orders from finished goods
inventories, While at any given time there may be some backlog of orders, such backlog is not material
in respect to total annual sales, nor are the changes from time to time significant.

Research and Development

The Company engages in a variety of research activities. These principally involve development of
new products, improvement in the quality of existing products, improvement and modernization of
production processes and the development and implementation of new technologies to enhance the
quality and value of both current and proposed product lines. Information concerning the Company’s
research and development expense is contained in Note 1 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements (Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data).

Regulation

The Company’s domestic plants are subject to inspection by the Food and Drug Administration and
various other governmental agencies, and its products must comply with regulations under the
Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and with various comparable state statutes regulating the
manufacturing and marketing of food products.



Environmental Considerations

In the past the Company has made investments based on compliance with environmental laws and
regulations. Such expenditures have not been material with respect to the Company’s capital
expenditures, earnings or competitive position.

Employees

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had approximately 13,700 full-time and 2,300 part-time
employees, of whom approximately 5,100 were covered by collective bargaining agreements. The
Company considers its employee relations to be good.

Financial Information by Geographic Area

The Company’s principal operations and markets are located in the United States. The Company also
manufactures, markets, sells and distributes confectionery and grocery products in Canada, Mexico
and Brazil, imports and/or markets selected confectionery products in the Philippines, Japan and
South Korea and markets confectionery products in over 60 countries worldwide. Net sales and long-
lived assets of businesses outside of the United States were not significant.

Available Information

The Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and amendments to all of the foregoing reports are available, free of charge, in the Investor
Relations section of the Company’s website, www.hersheys.com, as soon as reasonably practicable
after the reports are electronically filed with or furnished to the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission.

The Board has adopted a Code of Ethical Business Conduct (“CEBC”) applicable to the Company’s
directors, officers and employees, including without limitation the Company’s Chief Executive Officer
and “senior financial officers” (including the Chief Financial Officer, Chief Accounting Officer,
Corporate Controller and persons performing similar functions). The CEBC is posted on the
Company’s website at www.hersheys.com in the Investor Relations section. Any amendment of the
CEBC or waiver thereof applicable to any director or executive officer of the Company, including the
Chief Executive Officer or any senior financial officer, will be disclosed on the Company’s website
within four business days of the date of such amendment or waiver. In the case of a waiver, the nature
of the waiver, the name of the person to whom the waiver was granted and the date of the waiver
will also be disclosed.

The Board has also adopted and posted in the Investor Relations section of its website the Company’s
Corporate Governance Guidelines and Charters for each of the Board’s standing committees. The
Company will provide without charge to each beneficial owner of its Common Stock and Class B
Common Stock (“Class B Stock”), upon such stockholder’s request, a copy of the CEBC, the Company’s
Corporate Governance Guidelines or the Charter of any standing committee of the Board. The
Company will also provide to any such stockholder, upon the stockholder’s request, a copy of one or
more of the Exhibits listed in Part IV of this report upon payment by the stockholder of a nominal
fee approximating the Company’s reasonable cost to provide such copy or copies. Requests for
copies should be addressed to Hershey Foods Corporation, Attn: Investor Relations Department,
100 Crystal A Drive, Hershey, Pennsylvania 17033-0810.

Safe Harbor Statement

The nature of the Company’s operations and the environment in which it operates subject it to
changing economic, competitive, regulatory and technological conditions, risks and uncertainties. In
connection with the “safe harbor” provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
the Company notes the following factors that, among others, could cause future results to differ
materially from the forward-looking statements, expectations and assumptions expressed or implied
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herein. Many of the forward-looking statements contained in this document may be identified by the
use of forward-looking words such as “intend,” “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “should,” “planned,”
“estimated,” and “potential,” among others. Factors which could cause results to differ include, but
are not limited to: changes in the Company’s business environment, including actions of competitors
and changes in consumer preferences; customer and consumer response to selling price increases;
changes in governmental laws and regulations, including taxes; market demand for new and existing
products; changes in raw material and other costs; pension cost factors, such as actuarial
assumptions, market performance and employee retirement decisions; successful resolution of
upcoming labor contract negotiations; and the Company’s ability to implement improvements to and
reduce costs associated with the Company’s supply chain.

Item 2. PROPERTIES

The following is a list of the Company’s principal manufacturing properties. The Company owns each
of these properties.

UNITED STATES
Hershey, Pennsylvania—confectionery and grocery products (3 principal plants)
Lancaster, Pennsylvania—confectionery products
Oakdale, California—confectionery and grocery products
Robinson, Illinois—confectionery, snack and grocery products
Stuarts Draft, Virginia—confectionery, snack and grocery products

CANADA
Smiths Falls, Ontario—confectionery and grocery products

The following is a list of the locations of the Company’s principal distribution facilities all of which
are leased on a long-term basis.

UNITED STATES
Edwardsville, lllinois
Palmyra, Pennsylvania
Redlands, California

CANADA
Mississauga, Ontario

In addition to the locations indicated above, the Company owns or leases several other properties
used for manufacturing its products and for sales, distribution and administrative functions. The
Company’s facilities are efficient and well maintained. These facilities generally have adequate
capacity and can accommodate seasonal demands, changing product mixes and certain additional
growth. The largest facilities are located in Hershey, Pennsylvania. Many additions and
improvements have been made to these facilities over the years and they include equipment of the
latest type and technology.

Item 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Company has no material pending legal proceedings, other than ordinary routine litigation
incidental to its business.

Item 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
Not applicable.



PART II

Item 5. MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY

On April 21, 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a two-for-one stock split to be effected
in the form of a 100 percent stock dividend to stockholders of record on May 25, 2004. The additional
shares were distributed on June 15, 2004. The Company’s stockholders received one additional share
for each share in their possession on that date. This did not change the proportionate interest a
stockholder maintained in the Company. Unless otherwise indicated, all shares and per share
amounts set forth in this report have been adjusted for the two-for-one stock split.

Cash dividends paid on the Company’s Common Stock and Class B Stock were $205.7 million in 2004
and $184.7 million in 2003. After adjustment for the two-for-one stock split, the annual dividend rate on
the Common Stock in 2004 was $.88 per share, an increase of 11% over the 2003 rate of $.79 per share.
The 2004 dividend increase represented the 30th consecutive year of Common Stock dividend increases.

On February 15, 2005, the Company’s Board of Directors declared a quarterly dividend of $.22 per
share of Common Stock payable on March 15, 2005, to stockholders of record as of February 25, 2005.
It is the Company’s 301st consecutive Common Stock dividend. A quarterly dividend of $.20 per share
of Class B Stock also was declared.

The Company’s Common Stock is listed and traded principally on the New York Stock Exchange
(“NYSE”) under the ticker symbol “HSY.” Approximately 193.0 million shares of the Company’s
Common Stock were traded during 2004. The Class B Stock is not publicly traded.

The closing price of the Common Stock on December 31, 2004, was $55.54. There were 39,789
stockholders of record of the Common Stock and the Class B Stock as of December 31, 2004.

The following table shows the dividends paid per share of Common Stock and Class B Stock and the
price range of the Common Stock for each quarter of the past two years:

Dividends Paid Common Stock
Per Share Price Range*

Common Class B

_Stock _Stock _High _Low
2004

1st Quarter $.1975 $.1788 $43.90 $37.28
2nd Quarter 1975 .1788 46.50 40.55
3rd Quarter 2200 .2000 49.94 45.03
4th Quarter 2200 2000 56.75 45.98

Total $.8350 $.7576

Dividends Paid Commeon Stock
Per Share Price Range*

Common Class B

_Stock Steck _High _Low
2003

1st Quarter $.1638 $.1475 $34.50 $30.35
2nd Quarter .1638 1475 36.41 31.23
3rd Quarter 1975 .1788 37.10 34.47
4th Quarter 1975 .1788 39.33 36.34

Total $.7226 $.6526

* NYSE-Composite Quotations for Common Stock by calendar quarter.

The Company’s Board of Directors approved a share repurchase program authorizing the repurchase
of up to $500.0 million of the Company’s Common Stock in December 2002. There were no purchases
of Common Stock by the Company during the fourth quarter of 2004. As of December 31, 2004,
$55.0 million remained available for repurchases of Common Stock under the repurchase program.
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Item 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

SIX-YEAR CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL SUMMARY
All dollar and share amounts in thousands except market price

and per share statistics

5-Year
Compound
Growth Rate 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
Summary of Operations
Net Sales'™ 4.3% $ 4,429,248 4,172,651 4,120,317 4,137,217 3.820,416 3,586,183
Cost of Sales 26% $ 2,679,531 2,544,726 2,561,052 2,668,530 2,471,151 2,354,724
Selling, Marketing and
Administrative™ 4.7% $ 847,540 816,442 833,426 846,976 726,615 673,099
Business Realignment and
Asset Impairments Charge $ — 23,357 27,652 228,314 — —
Gain on Sale of Business™ $ — 8,330 — 19,237 — 243,785
Interest Expense, Net 229% § 66,533 63,529 60,722 69,093 76,011 74,271
Provision for Income Taxes (18% $§ 244,765 267,875 233,987 136,385 212,096 267,564
Income before Cumulative Effect
of Accounting Change 51% $ 580,879 464,952 403,578 207,156 334,543 460,310
Cumulative Effect of Accounting
Change'® $ — 7,368 — — — —
Net Income 51% $ 590,879 457,684 403,578 207,156 334,543 460,310
Earnings Per Share before
Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Change'®:
—Basic—Common Stock 7.2% $ 2.38 1.81 1.51 .78 1.25 1.68
—Basie—Class B Stock 7.4% $ 2.17 1.64 1.37 70 1.13 1.52
—Diluted 71% $ 2.30 1.76 147 5 1.21 1.63
Weighted-Average Shares
Outstanding'*:
—Basic—Common Stock 193,087 201,768 212,219 211,612 213,764 219,170
—Basic—Class B Stock 60,844 60,844 60,856 60,878 60,888 60,891
—Diluted 256,827 264,532 275,429 275,391 276,731 282,601
Dividends Paid on Common Stock 7.9% $ 159,658 144,985 133,285 122,790 115,209 109,175
Per Share'® 108%  § .8350 7226 .63 .5825 54 .50
Dividends Paid on Class B Stock 10.8% $ 46,089 39,701 34,536 31,960 29,682 27,553
Per Share® 10.9% $ 7578 .6526 5675 5250 4875 4525
Net Income as a Percent of
Net Sales, GAAP Basis 13.3% 11.0% 9.8% 5.0% 8.8% 12.8%
Adjusted Net Income as a Percent
of Net Saleg™ ‘" 12.0% 11.4% 10.6% 9.5% 9.0% 8.6%
Depreciation 4.8% $ 171,229 158,933 155,384 153,493 140,168 135,574
Advertising'®’ 28% $ 137,931 145,387 162,874 187,244 156,319 158,965
Payroll 2.8% 3 614,037 585,419 594,372 614,197 557,342 534,854
Year-end Position and Statistics
Capital Additions 9.5% $ 181,728 218,650 132,736 160,105 138,333 115,448
Capitalized Software Additions (11.0)% $ 14,158 18,404 11,836 9,845 4,686 25,394
Total Assets 26% 8 8,797,531 3,582,540 3,480,551 3,247,430 3,447,764 3,346,652
Long-term Portion of Debt (4D% $ 690,602 968,499 851,800 876,972 877,654 878,213
Stockholders’ Equity 0.2% $ 1,089,302  1,279.866 1,371,703 1147204 1,175,036  1,098.627
Operating Return on Average
Stockholders’ Equity, GAAP Basis 49.9% 34.5% 32.0% 17.8% 29.4% 43.0%
Adjusted Operating Return on
Average Stockholders’ Equity? 44.7% 35.8% 34.6% 33.7% 30.2% 28.9%
Operating Return on Average
Invested Capital, GAAP Basis 26.7% 19.2% 18.3% 10.7% 16.1% 22.1%
Adjusted Operating Return on
Average Invested Capital® 24.1% 19.9% 19.7% 18.7% 16.5% 15.4%
Full-time Employees 13,700 13,100 13,700 14,400 14,300 13,900
Stockholders’ Data
Outstanding Shares of Common
Stock and Class B Stock at
Year-end" 246,588 259,059 268,440 271,278 272,563 276,919
Market Price of Common Stock
at Year-end 18.5% $ 55.54 38.50 33.72 33.85 32.19 2372
Range During Year $56.75-37.28 39.33-30.35 39.75-28.23 35.08-27.57 33.22-18.88 32.44-22.88



(a) All years have been restated in accordance with final FASB Emerging Issues Task Force consensuses reached on various
issues regarding the reporting of certain sales incentives.

(b) Includes the gain on the sale of gum brands in 2003, the gain on the sale of the Luden’s throat drops business in 2001
and the gain on the sale of the Company’s pasta business in 1999.

(¢) All shares and per share amounts have been adjusted for the two-for-one stock split effected in the form of a 100 percent
stock dividend distributed on June 15, 2004 to stockholders of record as of May 25, 2004.

{d) Net Income as a Percent of Net Sales, Operating Return on Average Stockholders’ Equity and Operating Return on Average
Invested Capital have been calculated using Net Income, excluding the after-tax impacts of the elimination of amortization
of intangibles for all years, the reduction of the provision for income taxes resulting from the adjustment of the income
tax contingency reserves in 2004, the after-tax effect of the 2003, 2002 and 2001 Business Realignment and Asset
Impairments Charges, the after-tax effect of incremental expenses to explore the possible sale of the Company in 2002,
the 2003, 2001 and 1999 Gain on the Sale of Businesses and the 2000 gain on the sale of certain Corporate aircraft.

Item 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OVERVIEW

The Company concluded a strong year in 2004. Operating results were consistent with management’s
strategies to profitably grow net sales, improve gross margin and carefully control selling, marketing
and administrative costs, resulting in balanced, consistent growth in earnings. The Company gained
market share in key classes of trade, introduced new product platforms that provide future growth
opportunities, offset substantial increases in the cost of major raw materials, primarily cocoa and
dairy products, and executed a $500 million share purchase from its major shareholder. The result
was record sales, profits and earnings per share for the year.

The Company’s long-term goals include increasing net sales 3%—4% per year, increasing gross margin
70-90 basis points per year, increasing earnings before interest and income taxes 7%—9% per year
and to increase earnings per share 9%-11% per year. These goals are intended to achieve balanced,
sustainable growth over time. In 2004, the Company exceeded all of these goals, except gross margin
expansion which was up 50 basis points, slightly less than the long-term goal.

The Company’s strategy to profitably grow net sales is based upon the introduction of innovative new
products and limited edition items utilizing its key brands, such as Hershey’s, Reese’s and Hershey's
Kisses. During 2004, sales gains included product introductions such as Hershey’s Kisses filled with
caramel, Swoops candies, Reese’s white chocolate peanut butter cups, Ice Breakers Liquid Ice mints,
Hershey’s 1Gram Sugar Carb bar, and Hershey’s Take5 candy bar.

The trends of key operating drivers, such as market share, are expected to continue to show positive
results. During 2004, the Company achieved gains in market share each quarter and strengthened
its confectionery category leadership position. Market share in measured channels increased 1.1
share points in the fourth quarter and .6 share points for the year. Measured channels include sales
in the food, drug, convenience store and mass merchandiser classes of trade, excluding sales to Wal-
Mart Stores, Inc.

Net sales increased approximately 6% in 2004, compared with 2003 net sales, which were
approximately 1% above 2002. The increase in 2004, and over the three-year period, primarily
resulted from higher unit sales volume due to the introduction of new products and limited edition
items, along with the impact of price increases, improved exchange rates on Canadian sales and, in
2004, improved trade promotion efficiency resulting in lower promotional spending as a percentage
of sales.

The Company’s strategy to expand gross margin is based upon obtaining price realization by
achieving a larger part of its sales growth in its most highly profitable products and channels,
improving the efficiency and effectiveness of its trade promotion programs and improving efficiencies
in its supply chain. The Company has alsoimplemented selected price increases and weight decreases
to help offset increases in raw material costs, particularly for cocoa and dairy products.




Gross margin increased to 39.5% in 2004 compared with 39.0% in 2003 and 37.8% in 2002. The
improvements in gross margin resulted from price increases, selected weight reductions and improved
supply chain efficiency over the three-year period, more than offsetting higher raw material costs.

Net income was $590.9 million in 2004 compared with $457.6 million in 2003. Net income per share-
diluted of $2.30 for 2004, was up 33% from $1.73 per share for 2003. This gain resulted from increased
income from operations, a non-recurring adjustment to the 2004 provision for income taxes, the impact
of lower weighted-average shares outstanding resulting from share repurchases during the year and the
impact of the cumulative effect of accounting changes recorded in 2003 associated with a change in
accounting for the Company’s leases of certain warehouse and distribution facilities. Net income and
income before the cumulative effect of accounting change for 2004 was favorably impacted by a $61.1
million adjustment to Federal and state income tax contingency reserves, as discussed below.

Net income was $457.6 million in 2003, which included total net business realignment charges of
$15.5 million after tax, an after-tax gain on the sale of certain gum brands of $5.7 million and the
cumulative effect of accounting change of $7.4 million. Net income in 2002 was $403.6 million, which
included total net business realignment charges of $21.5 million after tax and after-tax expenses of
$10.9 million related to the exploration of the sale of the Company.

The table below presents various items affecting the comparability of income over the three-year
period ended December 31, 2004. These items include a reduction of the income tax provision in 2004
as a result of adjustments to income tax contingency reserves, the impact of business rationalization
and realignment initiatives in 2003 and 2002, the gain on the sale of business in 2003 and charges
to explore the sale of the Company in 2002. The Company believes the presentation of income
excluding such items provides additional information to investors to facilitate the comparison of past
and present operations which are indicative of its ongoing operations. The Company excludes such
items in evaluating key measures of performance internally and in assessing the impact of known
trends and uncertainties on its business. The Company believes that this presentation provides a
more balanced view of the underlying dynamics of the business. Financial results including the
impact of the reduction to the provision for income taxes, business realignment and rationalization
charges, the gain on the sale of business and expenses related to the possible sale of the Company,
over the three-year period may be insufficient in facilitating a complete understanding of the business
as a whole and ascertaining the likelihood that past performance is indicative of future performance.

The business realignment initiatives are described below and in Note 4 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements and the reduction to the provision for income taxes as a result of adjustments to income
tax contingency reserves is described below and in Note 12.

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
In thousands of dollars except Per share- Per share- Per share-
per share amounts diluted diluted diluted

Income before cumulative effect of

accounting change $590,879 $2.30 $464,952 $1.76 $403,578 $1.47
Items affecting comparability after tax:
Business realignment and asset

impairments included in cost of sales —_ — 1,287 — 4,068 .01
Costs to explcre the sale of the Company

included in selling, marketing and

administrative expense — — — — 10,907 .04
Business realignment and asset

impairments, net —_ — 14,201 .05 17,441 .06
Gain on sale of business — — (5,706) (.02) — —
Tax provision adjustment (61,081 (.24) — — — —

Income excluding items affecting
comparability $529,798 $2.08 $474,734 $1.79 $435,994 $1.58
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Income per share-diluted excluding items affecting comparability increased 15% in 2004 and 13%
in 2003, refiecting the impact of the Company’s increased sales, improved gross margin, control of
selling, marketing and administrative costs and share repurchases during the period. This
performance also drove increases in operating return on average invested capital during the period,
as discussed under the heading Return Measures on page 32.

During 2005, the Company expects continued sales growth of 6%-7%, including growth at the top
end of its long-term 3%-4% goal for the ongoing business, enhanced by the first year impact of the
Mauna Loa and Grupo Lorena acquisitions.

The Company expects to continue to improve gross margin in 2005, despite higher input costs,
particularly for commodities, transportation and employee benefits. These costs will be more than
offset by price increases on its bar and packaged candy lines, announced in December 2004, that
average approximately 3% over the entire domestic product line, and continued improvements in
supply chain efficiency. Gross margin is expected to improve 30~40 basis points in 2005, including
growth approaching the lower end of the Company’s long-term goal of 70-90 basis points for the
ongoing business, reduced by the impact of integrating the lower margin Grupo Lorena and Mauna
Loa businesses.

The Company expects to achieve 2005 growth in earnings per share-diluted of 9%-11%, excluding
items affecting comparability, in line with its long-term goal. This growth will result from the sales
and gross margin increases discussed above, combined with continued control of selling, marketing,
and administrative costs and the impact of lower shares outstanding resulting from the share
repurchases in 2004.

The Company’s cash flow from operations is expected to remain strong. During 2005, the Company
will repay the $201.2 million of 6.7% Notes due in 2005 by utilizing cash provided from operations
and additional short-term borrowings.

Primary challenges in 2005 and beyond include profitable sales growth within the core confectionery
category and entry into the broader snack market. Focus will continue to be placed on higher margin
and faster growth channels. The achievement of the Company’s objectives for sales growth and
profitability will also be challenged by changes in the business and competitive environment which
will continue to be characterized by increased global competition and retailer consolidation, along
with social issues such as childhood obesity concerns. In 2005, the Company will continue to be faced
with achieving increased price realization and improved productivity in order to offset higher input
costs for ingredients, transportation and employee benefits. Successfully meeting these challenges
is critical to the Company’s achievement of its growth objectives.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Net Sales

Net sales increased $256.7 million, or 6%, from 2003 to 2004. Net sales were favorably impacted by
increased sales volume, especially within the United States, primarily driven by the introduction of
innovative new products and limited edition items. Net sales of the Company’s Canadian, Mexican
and Brazilian businesses also improved as a result of higher sales volume. Favorable foreign currency
exchange rates also resulted in increased sales for the Company’s international businesses,
particularly in Canada. The positive impact of increased unit sales volume contributed more than
75% of the consolidated net sales growth. Higher selling prices, a more efficient rate of promotional
spending and the acquisition of the Grupo Lorena business in Mexico also contributed to the net sales
increase. Sales were unfavorably affected by the divestiture of certain gum brands in September
2003, decreased sales of remaining gum brands, and higher returns, discounts and allowances,
relating primarily to the sales volume growth, along with lower export sales in Asia, particularly in
China and Taiwan.

Net sales increased $52.2 million, or 1%, from 2002 to 2003, resulting primarily from the selling price
increase, volume growth in sales of key confectionery brands refiecting the introduction of new
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products and limited edition items in the United States, and increased selling prices and sales
volume, as well as the impact of favorable currency exchange rates for the Company’s Canadian
business. These sales increases were substantially offset by higher promotional allowances, the
continued rationalization of certain under-performing products and brands, including the divestiture
of the Heide brands in June 2002, the discontinuance of the Company’s aseptically packaged drink
products in the United States in March 2002 and the divestiture of certain gum brands in September
2003, and by a prior year buy-in associated with the January 2003 price increase discussed below.
Net sales were also reduced by declines in export sales to Latin America and Asia, due primarily to
changes in distributor relationships in certain markets and the discontinuance of certain products.

In December 2002, the Company announced an increase of 11% in the price of standard-size candy
bars effective January 1, 2003, representing an average increase of approximately 3% over the entire
domestic product line. A buy-in prior to the January 1, 2003 price increase resulted in an approximate
1% to 2% increase in fourth quarter 2002 sales.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales increased $134.8 million, or 5%, from 2003 to 2004. The cost increase was primarily
caused by higher sales volume and higher raw material costs, principally associated with increased
prices for cocea and dairy products. These cost of sales increases were partially offset by lower costs
primarily resulting from product weight reductions and reduced costs for packaging materials.

Gross margin increased from 39.0% in 2003 to 39.5% in 2004. The margin expansion reflected
improved price realization, primarily from reduced product weights and reduced promotional
spending as a percentage of sales, as well as efficiency improvements in manufacturing operations.
The margin improvements were partially offset by increases in raw material costs.

Cost of sales decreased $16.3 million from 2002 to 2003. The cost decline was primarily caused by
the divestitures and rationalization of certain products and lower supply chain costs, principailly
associated with reduced costs for raw materials, packaging, shipping and distribution. Lower raw
material costs primarily for peanuts and dairy products were partially offset by higher costs for cocoa.
These cost reductions were offset somewhat by sales volume increases for key confectionery brands.
Cost of sales included costs associated with business realignment initiatives of $2.1 million and
$6.4 million in 2003 and 2002, respectively. Business realignment costs in 2003 related to the write-off
of certain inventories associated with discontinued products and, in 2002, reflected the relocation of
manufacturing equipment due to the rationalization and consolidation of production lines.

Gross margin increased from 37.8% in 2002 to 39.0% in 2003. The margin expansion reflected the
impact of the price increase, an improved sales mix and the aforementioned decrease in supply chain
costs. These margin improvements were partially offset by increases in promotional allowances.

Selling, Marketing and Administrative

Selling, marketing and administrative expenses for 2004 increased by $31.1 million, or 4%, from
2003. The increase was primarily attributable to higher employee compensation costs, increased
consumer promotion expenses, termination costs associated with the closing of certain warehouse
facilities, and litigation expenses associated with the introduction of Hershey’s SmartZone nutrition
bars. These increases were offset somewhat by lower advertising expenses and a reduction in
allowances for doubtful accounts, as described below. Selling, marketing and administrative
expenses as a percentage of sales, decreased from 19.6% in 2003 to 19.1% in 2004. During the fourth
guarter, the Company reached an agreement with Fleming Reclamation Creditor’s Trust, which
resolved most significant matters related to the bankruptcy of Fleming Companies, Inc., one of the
Company’s customers. Based on this agreement, the Company reduced its bad debt reserves by the
$5.0 million which had been added at the time of the bankruptcy announcement in April 2003.

Selling, marketing and administrative expenses for 2003 decreased by 2% from 2002, primarily
attributable to a charge of $17.2 million in 2002 related to the exploration of the sale of the Company.
Advertising and consumer promotion expenses were also lower in 2003 as a result of decisions to shift
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spending to promotional allowances, as discussed above, and more efficient agency contracts. These
cost reductions were offset somewhat by increased compensation and employee benefits costs,
packaging development and marketing research expenses.

On July 25, 2002, the Company confirmed that the Hershey Trust Company, as Trustee for the benefit
of Milton Hershey School (the “Milton Hershey School Trust”) which at that time controlled 77.6%
of the combined voting power of the Company’s Common Stock and Class B Stock, had informed the
Company that it had decided to diversify its holdings and in this regard wanted Hershey Foods
Corporation to explore a sale of the entire Company. On September 17, 2002, the Milton Hershey
School Trust informed the Company that it had elected not to sell its controlling interest and
requested that the process to explore a sale be terminated.

Business Realignment Initiatives

In July 2003, the Company announced a number of initiatives continuing its value-enhancing
strategy. These initiatives included realigning the sales organization and streamlining the supply
chain by divesting or eliminating certain non-strategic brands and products, and by production
line rationalization.

During 2003, these actions resulted in a net charge of approximately $17.2 million, or $.04 per share-
diluted. The $17.2 million net charge consisted of the write-off of certain inventories of $2.1 million
included in cost of sales, a net business realignment and asset impairments charge of $23.4 million
and an $8.3 million net gain resulting from the divestiture of certain brands.

The net business realignment and asset impairments charge of $23.4 million consisted of early
retirement and involuntary termination costs of $10.0 million, sales office closing and relocation costs
of $7.3 million, fixed asset impairment charges of $5.7 million, equipment removal costs of $.7 million
and a net gain of $.3 million relating to the elimination of non-strategic brands and products. In
determining the fixed asset impairment losses, fair value was estimated based on the expected
sales proceeds. Cash payments during 2003 reduced the liability balance, primarily relating to the
aforementioned charges for employee termination, sales office closing and relocation costs, to
$8.8 million as of December 31, 2003. Cash payments during 2004 reduced the liability balance to
$3.9 million as of December 31, 2004.

In late October 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a plan to improve the efficiency
and profitability of the Company’s operations. The plan included asset management improvements,
product line rationalization, supply chain efficiency improvements and a voluntary work force
reduction program (collectively, the “2001 business realignment initiatives”). Total costs for the 2001
business realignment initiatives recorded in 2002 and 2001 were $312.4 million.

During 2002, charges to cost of sales and business realignment and asset impairments were recorded
totaling $34.0 million before tax. The total included a charge to cost of sales of $6.4 million associated
with the relocation of manufacturing equipment and a net business realignment and asset
impairments charge of $27.6 million. Components of the net $27.6 million pre-tax charge included
a $28.8 million charge for pension settlement losses resulting from a voluntary work force reduction
program (“VWRP”), a $3.0 million charge for pension curtailment losses and special termination
benefits resulting from manufacturing plant closures, a $.1 million charge relating to involuntary
termination benefits and a $.1 million charge relating to the realignment of the domestic sales
organization, partially offset by a $4.4 million favorable adjustment reflecting higher than estimated
proceeds from the sale of certain assets. The major components of the 2001 business realignment
initiatives were campleted as of December 31, 2002. Remaining transactions primarily pertain to the
sale of certain real estate associated with the closure of facilities, as discussed below.

Product line rationalization plans included the sale or exit of certain businesses, the discontinuance
of certain non-chocolate confectionery products and the realignment of the Company’s sales
organizations. Costs associated with the realignment of the sales organizations related primarily to
sales office closings and terminating the use of certain sales brokers. During 2002, sales offices were
closed as planned and the use of certain sales brokers was discontinued which resulted in an
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additional charge of $.1 million. During the second quarter of 2002, the sale of a group of the
Company’s non-chocolate confectionery candy brands to Farley’s & Sathers Candy Company, Inc.
(“Farley’s & Sathers”) was completed. Included in the transaction were the Heide, Jujyfruits,
Wunderbeans and Amazin’ Fruit trademarked confectionery brands, as well as the rights to sell
Chuckles branded products, under license. Proceeds of $12.0 million associated with the sale of
certain confectionery brands to Farley’s & Sathers exceeded the 2001 estimates which resulted in
a $4.4 million favorable adjustment. Also during the second quarter of 2002, the Company
discontinued and subsequently licensed the sale of its aseptically packaged drink products in the
United States. Net sales for these brands were $11.6 million in 2002. The sale of certain confectionery
brands to Farley’s & Sathers resulted in the closure of a manufacturing facility in New Brunswick,
New Jersey which was being held for sale as of December 31, 2002. The manufacturing facility was
sold in May 2003. An additional charge of $.7 million relating to pension curtailment losses and
special termination benefits associated with the closure of the facility was recorded in 2002.

To improve supply chain efficiency and profitability, three manufacturing facilities, a distribution
center and certain other facilities were planned to be closed. These included manufacturing facilities
in Denver, Colorado; Pennsburg, Pennsylvania; and Palmyra, Pennsylvania and a distribution center
and certain minor facilities located in Oakdale, California. During the first quarter of 2002, the
manufacturing facility in Palmyra, Pennsylvania was closed and additional costs of $.1 million were
recorded, as incurred, relating to retention payments. During the second quarter, operations utilizing
the distribution center in Oakdale, California ceased. The manufacturing facilities in Denver,
Colorado and Pennsburg, Pennsylvania were closed in the fourth quarter of 2002. An additional
charge of $2.3 million relating to pension curtailment losses and special termination benefits
associated with the facility closures was recorded in 2002. The Denver, Colorado and the Pennsburg,
Pennsylvania facilities were being held for sale as of December 31, 2004. The Denver, Colorado facility
was sold in February 2005.

In October 2001, the Company offered the VWRP to certain eligible employees in the United States,
Canada and Puerto Rico in order to reduce staffing levels and improve profitability. The VWRP
consisted of an early retirement program which provided enhanced pension, post-retirement and
certain supplemental benefits and an enhanced mutual separation program which provided
increased severance and temporary medical benefits. A reduction of approximately 500 employees
occurred during 2002 as a result of the VWRP. Additional pension settlement costs of $28.8 million
were recorded in 2002, principally associated with lump sum payments of pension benefits.

(zain on Sale of Business

As part of the Company’s business realignment initiatives, the sale of a group of gum brands to
Farley’s & Sathers was completed in September 2003. The gum brands included Fruit Stripe chewing
gum, Rain-Blo gum balls and Super Bubble bubble gum. In the third quarter of 2003, the Company
received cash proceeds from the sale of $20.0 million and recorded a gain of $8.3 million before tax,
or $5.7 million after tax, as a result of the transaction.

Interest Expense, Net

Net interest expense for 2004 was $3.0 million higher than in 2003 primarily reflecting higher short-
term interest expense, partially offset by increased capitalized interest. The increase in short-term
interest expense was associated with commercial paper borrowings during 2004 for repurchases of
Common Stock, business acquisitions and other funding requirements. Net interest expense for 2003
was $2.8 million higher than in 2002, primarily reflecting lower interest income and higher fixed
interest expense, principally due to interest expense associated with the consolidation of three former
off-balance sheet arrangements for the leasing of certain warehouse and distribution facilities, as
discussed below.
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Income Taxes

The Company’s effective income tax rate was 29.3% in 2004, 36.6% in 2003 and 36.7% in 2002. The
effective income tax rate for 2004 is not comparable with the rates for 2003 and 2002 because the
Company’s provision for income taxes was reduced by the $61.1 million adjustment to income
tax contingency reserves recorded in the second quarter of 2004. The non-cash reduction of income
tax expense resulted from the settlement of Federal tax audits for the 1999 and 2000 tax years,
as well as the resolution of a number of state tax audit issues. Based upon the results of the
audits, the income tax contingency reserves were adjusted, resulting in a reduction of $61.1 million
in income tax expense. The income tax contingency reserve adjustments related primarily to the
deductibility and timing of certain expenses, interest on potential assessments, and acquisition and
divestiture matters.

The reduction in the 2004 provision for income taxes resulting from the adjustment to income tax
contingency reserves reduced the effective income tax rate by 7.3 percentage points. The decrease
in the effective income tax rate from 2002 to 2003 reflected the impact of the effective tax rates on
business rationalization and realignment initiatives and the gain on sale of business in 2003.

Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change

An after-tax charge of $7.4 million, or $.03 per share-diluted, was recorded in 2003 to reflect the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting for the Company’s leases of certain warehouse and
distribution facilities as discussed further under the heading Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements,
Contractual Obligations and Contingent Liabilities and Commitments.

Net Income

Net income was $590.9 million in 2004 compared with $457.6 million in 2003. Net income per share-
diluted of $2.30 for 2004, was up 33% from $1.73 per share for 2003 as a result of the reduction to
the 2004 provision for income taxes resulting from the adjustment to income tax contingency
reserves, increased income from operations and the impact of lower weighted-average shares
outstanding resulting from share repurchases during the year and the impact of the cumulative effect
of accounting change recorded in 2003.

Net income was $457.6 million in 2003 compared with $403.6 million in 2002. Net income per
share-diluted of $1.73 for 2003, was up 18% from $1.47 per share for 2002 as a result of increased
income from operations and the impact of lower weighted-average shares outstanding resulting from
share repurchases during the year. Income hefore the cumulative effect of accounting change was
$465.0 million for 2003, a 15% increase over 2002, Income per share-diluted before the cumulative
effect of accounting change was $1.76 for 2003, 20% higher than in 2002. Income before the
cumulative effect of accounting change for 2003 included total net business realignment charges of
$15.5 million after tax and a gain on the sale of certain gum brands of $5.7 million after tax.

Net income in 2002 was $403.6 million including total net business realignment charges of
$21.5 million after tax and after-tax expenses of $10.9 million related to the exploration of the sale
of the Company.

FINANCIAL CONDITION

The Company’s financial condition remained very strong during 2004. The capitalization ratio (total
short-term and long-term debt as a percent of stockholders’ equity, short-term and long-term debt)
increased to 55% as of December 31, 2004, from 43% as of December 31, 2003. The higher
capitalization ratio in 2004 primarily reflected additional borrowings to finance the purchase of
Common Stock from the Milton Hershey School Trust (described below) and the related decrease in
stockholders’ equity as a result of the additional Treasury Stock. The ratio of current assets to current
liabilities decreased to .9:1 as of December 31, 2004, from 1.9:1 as of December 31, 2003 primarily
reflecting a decrease in cash and cash equivalents, an increase in short-term borrowings and an
increase in the current portion of long-term debt, resulting from reclassification of $201.2 million of
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6.7% Notes due in 2005 and $76.8 million related to certain lease agreements. The Company expects
to satisfy these obligations using cash provided from operations and commercial paper borrowings.

In December 2004, the Company acquired Mauna Loa for $127.8 million. Mauna Loa is the leading
processor and marketer of macadamia snacks, with annual sales of approximately $80 million. In
October 2004, the Company’s Mexican subsidiary, Hershey Mexico, acquired Grupo Lorena, one of
Mexico’s top confectionery companies for $39.0 million. This business has annual sales of over
$30 million. Included in the acquisition was the Pelén Pelo Rico brand. Had the results of the
acquisitions been included in the consolidated results for the full year of 2004, the effect would not
have been material.

In July 2004, the Company purchased 11,281,589 shares of its Common Stock from the Milton
Hershey School Trust, in a privately negotiated transaction. The Company paid $44.32 per share, or
approximately $500.0 million for the shares and fees of $1.4 million associated with the transaction.

In September 2003, the Company completed the sale of certain gum brands to Farley’s & Sathers
for $20.0 million in cash as part of its business realignment initiatives. The gum brands included
Fruit Stripe chewing gum, Rain-Blo gum balls and Super Bubble bubble gum.

In June 2002, the Company completed the sale of certain confectionery brands to Farley’s & Sathers
for $12.0 million in cash as part of its 2001 business realignment initiatives. Included in the
transaction were the Heide, Jujyfruits, Wunderbeans and Amazin’ Fruit trademarked confectionery
brands, as well as the rights to sell Chuckles branded products, under license.

Assets

Total assets increased $215.0 million, or 6% as of December 31, 2004, primarily as a result of higher
inventories, deferred taxes, property, plant, and equipment, goodwill and other intangibles, partially
offset by a decrease in cash and cash equivalents. These increases were principally associated with
the acquisition of the Grupo Lorena and Mauna Loa businesses.

Current assets increased by $50.9 million principally reflecting increased inventories to support
higher anticipated sales in early 2005 prior to the effective date of selling price increases and
inventories of $24.3 million related to the acquired businesses. The increase of current deferred
income taxes was primarily related to the Mauna Loa acquisition and the tax effect on temporary
differences associated with accrued liabilities for promotional allowances, inventories and gains or
losses on derivatives included in other comprehensive income. The decrease in cash and cash
equivalents reflected increased funding requirements for share repurchases, payment of dividends,
capital additions and business acquisitions during the year.

Property, plant and equipment was higher than the prior year primarily due to capital additions of
$181.7 million and the acquisition of the Grupo Lorena and Mauna Loa businesses, partially offset
by depreciation expense of $171.2 million. Goodwill increased as a result of the business acquisitions,
partially offset by a $12.6 million adjustment to goodwill as a result of the adjustment to the Federal
and state tax contingencies. The increase in other intangibles primarily reflected the estimated value
of trademarks from the business acquisitions. The decrease in other assets primarily reflected
reduced pension assets as a result of pension expense recorded in 2004.

Liabilities

Total liabilities increased by $405.6 million as of December 31, 2004, primarily reflecting an increase
in short-term borrowings, partially offset by a reduction in deferred income tax liabilities resulting
from the adjustment to income tax contingency reserves, net of an increase associated with the
business acquisitions. The increase in accounts payable was due to the business acquisitions. Higher
accrued liabilities were primarily related to increased promotional allowances and employee
compensation in addition to $11.8 million associated with the business acquisitions. The increase in
short-term debt of $331.2 million reflected commercial paper borrowings primarily associated with
the repurchase of Common Stock from the Milton Hershey School Trust and the acquisition of the
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Grupo Lorena and Mauna Loa businesses, along with other funding requirements. The increase in
current portion of long-term debt and the corresponding decrease in long-term debt was associated
with the reclassification of $201.2 million of 6.7% Notes due in 2005 and $76.8 million related to
certain lease agreements. The increase in other long-term liabilities was primarily associated with
incentive compensation,

Capital Structure

The Company has two classes of stock outstanding, Common Stock and Class B Stock. Holders of
the Common Stock and the Class B Stock generally vote together without regard to class on matters
submitted to stockholders, including the election of directors, with the Common Stock having one vote
per share and the Class B Stock having ten votes per share. However, the Common Stock, voting
separately as a class, is entitled to elect one-sixth of the Board of Directors. With respect to dividend
rights, the Common Stock is entitled to cash dividends 10% higher than those declared and paid on
the Class B Stock.

In December 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors unanimously adopted a Stockholder Protection
Rights Agreement (“Rights Agreement”). The Company’s largest stockholder, the Milton Hershey
School Trust, supported the Rights Agreement. This action was not in response to any specific effort
to acquire control of the Company. Under the Rights Agreement, the Company’s Board of Directors
declared a dividend of one right (“Right”) for each outstanding share of Common Stock and Class B
Stock payable to stockholders of record at the close of business on December 26, 2000. The Rights
will at no time have voting power or receive dividends. The issuance of the Rights has no dilutive
effect, will not affect reported earnings per share, is not taxable and will not change the manner in
which the Company’s Common Stock is traded. The Rights Agreement is discussed further in Note
15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Historically, the Company’s major source of financing has been cash generated from operations. The
Company’s income and, consequently, cash provided from operations during the year are affected by
seasonal sales patterns, the timing of new product introductions, business acquisitions and
divestitures, and price changes. Sales have typically been highest during the third and fourth
quarters of the year, representing seasonal and holiday-related sales patterns. Generally,
seasonal working capital needs peak during the summer months and have been met by issuing
commercial paper.

Over the past three years, cash provided from operating activities totaled $2.0 billion, net of cash
contributions to pension plans of $436.4 million. Cash from operations combined with short-term
borrowings was sufficient to fund share repurchases, capital expenditures, capitalized software
additions, dividend payments and business acquisitions which totaled $2.3 billion. Total debt
increased during the period by $428.0 million, reflecting increased short-term borrowings, as
discussed above, in addition to an increase in long-term debt resulting from the consolidation of
Special Purpose Trusts (“SPTs”) associated with certain lease agreements in 2003, offset somewhat
by the repayment of long-term debt. Cash and cash equivalents decreased by $79.3 million during
the period.

The Company anticipates that capital expenditures and capitalized software additions will be in the
range of $175 million to $200 million per annum during the next several years primarily for continued
efficiency improvements in existing facilities and capacity expansion to support sales growth and new
products, along with continued improvement and enhancements of computer software. As of
December 31, 2004, the Company’s principal capital commitments included manufacturing capacity
expansion to support sales growth and new products, modernization and efficiency improvements
and selected enhancements of computer software.

As of December 31, 2004, the fair value of the Company’s pension plan assets exceeded benefits
obligations. Contributions totaling $8.0 million, $120.3 million and $308.1 million were made to the
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pension plans during 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, primarily to improve the funded status as
a result of negative returns on pension plan assets during 2002.

Under share repurchase programs which began in 1993, a total 0f 51,682,864 shares of Common Stock
have been repurchased for approximately $1.3 billion, including purchases from the Milton Hershey
School Trust of 8,000,000 shares for $103.1 million in 1993 and 3,159,558 shares for $100.0 million
in 1999. Of the shares repurchased, 1,056,000 shares were retired and 21,361,107 shares were
reissued to satisfy stock option obligations, Supplemental Retirement Contributions and employee
stock ownership trust (“ESOP”) obligations. Of the shares reissued, 16,765,409 shares were
repurchased in the open market to replace the reissued shares. Additionally, the Company has
purchased a total of 67,282,661 shares of its Common Stock to be held as Treasury Stock from the
Milton Hershey School Trust for $1.5 billion in privately negotiated transactions, including
11,281,589 shares for approximately $500 million in 2004. As of December 31, 2004, a total of
113,313,827 shares were held as Treasury Stock and $55.0 million remained available for
repurchases of Common Stock under the $500 million share repurchase program approved by the
Company’s Board of Directors in December 2002.

As of December 31, 2004, $250 million of debt securities remained available for issuance under an
August 1997 Form S-3 Registration Statement. Proceeds from any offering of the $250 million of debt
securities available under the shelf registration may be used for general corporate requirements,
which include reducing existing commercial paper borrowings, financing capital additions and share
repurchases, and funding future business acquisitions and working capital requirements.

In November 2004, the Company entered into a Five Year Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”)
with the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders listed on the respective
signature pages thereof (“Lenders”), Citibank, N.A., as administrative agent for the Lenders
(as defined therein), Bank of America, N.A., as syndication agent, UBS Loan Finance LLC, as
documentation agent, and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. and Banc of America Securities LLC, as
joint lead arrangers and joint book managers. The Credit Agreement establishes an unsecured
revolving credit facility under which the Company may borrow up to $900 million with the option
to increase borrowings by an additional $600 million with the concurrence of the Lenders. Funds
borrowed may be used for general corporate purposes, including commercial paper backstop and
business acquisitions. Advances other than competitive bid advances may be repaid without penalty
at any time prior to the last day of the Credit Agreement. Competitive bid advances must be paid
at maturity, and may not be prepaid. The Credit Agreement contains a financial covenant whereby
the ratio of (a) pre-tax income from continuing operations from the most recent four fiscal quarters
to (b) consolidated interest expense for the most recent four fiscal quarters may not be less than 2.0
to 1 at the end of each fiscal quarter. The Credit Agreement contains customary representations and
warranties and events of default. Payment of outstanding advances may be accelerated, at the option
of the Lenders, should the Company default in its obligations under the Credit Agreement.

With the execution of the Credit Agreement in November 2004, short-term and long-term committed
credit facilities previously maintained by the Company in the United States (together the “Prior
Facilities”) were terminated. The Prior Facilities consisted of the following: (x) Amended and
Restated Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of November 27, 2001 ($200 million) among the
Company, the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders listed on the signature
pages thereof, and Citibank, N.A. as administrative agent, Bank of America, N.A. as syndication
agent, and Salomon Smith Barney Inc. and Banc America Securities LLC, as joint lead arrangers
and joint book managers; (y) Amended and Restated 364-Day Credit Agreement dated as of
November 27, 2001 (as subsequently amended and renewed November 26, 2002 and November 25,
2003) ($200 million) among the Company, the banks, financial institutions and other institutional
lenders listed on the signature pages thereof, and Citibank, N.A. as administrative agent, Bank of
America, N.A. as syndication agent, and Salomon Smith Barney Inc. and Banc America Securities -
LLC, as joint lead arrangers and joint book managers; and (z) 364-Day Credit Agreement dated as
of July 28, 2004 ($500 million) among the Company, the banks, financial institutions and other
institutional lenders listed on the signature pages thereof, and Citibank, N.A. as administrative
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agent, Bank of America, N.A. as syndication agent, and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Banc
America Securities LLC, as jeint lead arrangers and joint book managers. The representations and
warranties, events of default, financial covenant and other terms of the Prior Facilities are
substantially similar to the provisions contained in the new Credit Agreement.

The Company also maintains lines of credit with domestic and international commercial banks,
under which it could borrow in various currencies up to approximately $60.3 million and $43.6 million
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The higher lines of credit as of December 31,
2004, were primarily associated with the Company’s businesses in Canada and China.

Cash Flow Activities

Over the past three years, cash from operating activities provided approximately $2.0 billion. Over
this period, cash used by or provided from accounts receivable and inventories has tended to fluctuate
as a result of sales during December and inventory management practices. The change in cash
required for or provided from other assets and liabilities between the years was primarily related
to hedging transactions, the timing of payments for accrued liabilities, including income taxes, and
variations in the funded status of pension plans. In 2004, the adjustment of deferred income taxes
primarily reflects the deferred tax benefit resulting from the $61.1 million adjustment to income tax
contingency reserves recorded in the second quarter of 2004 and an increase resulting from the
Mauna Loa acquisition.

Investing activities included capital additions, capitalized software additions, and several
business acquisitions and divestitures. Capital additions during the past three years included the
purchase of manufacturing equipment, and expansion and modernization of existing facilities.
Capitalized software additions over the past three years were associated primarily with the ongoing
enhancement of information systems.

In December 2004, the Company acquired Mauna Loa, a leading processor and marketer of macadamia
snacks, for $127.8 million and in October 2004, the Company’s Mexican subsidiary, Hershey Mexico,
acquired Grupo Lorena, one of Mexico’s top confectionery companies, for $39.0 million.

In July 2004, the Company purchased 11,281,589 shares of its Common Stock from the Milton
Hershey School Trust in a privately negotiated transaction. The Company paid $44.32 per share, or
approximately $500.0 million, for the shares and fees of $1.4 million associated with the transaction.

In August 2003, the Company completed the sale of a group of gum brands to Farley’s & Sathers for
$20.0 million in cash as part of its business realignment initiatives and in June 2002, the Company
completed the sale of certain confectionery brands to Farley’s & Sathers for $12.0 million in cash as
part of its 2001 business realignment initiatives.

Financing activities included debt borrowings and repayments, payments of dividends, the exercise
of stock options, incentive plan transactions and the repurchase of Common Stock. During the past
three years, short-term borrowings in the form of commercial paper or bank borrowings were used
to fund seasonal working capital requirements and finance share repurchase programs, including the
purchase of Common Stock from the Milton Hershey School Trust. During the past three years, a
total of 20,138,634 shares of Common Stock have been repurchased for $1.0 billion. Cash used for
incentive plan transactions of $325.8 million during the past three years was partially offset by cash
received from the exercise of stock options of $221.2 million. Cash used by incentive plan transactions
reflected purchases of the Company’s Common Stock in the open market to replace Treasury Stock
issued for stock options exercises. The Company intends to repurchase shares to replace shares issued
for stock options exercises. The value of shares purchased in a given period will vary based upon stock
options exercises over time and market conditions. As of December 31, 2004, approximately 1.9
million shares issued for stock options exercises in 2004 and 2003 remained to be repurchased. Most
of these shares were repurchased in early 2005.

Net cash provided from operating activities was $797.5 million for 2004, an increase of $204.5 million
compared with the prior year. The primary contributors to the increase were higher net income
and increases in cash provided from other assets and liabilities and accounts receivable. These
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increases were partially offset by a decrease in cash flows related to deferred income taxes, principally
reflecting the deferred tax benefit resulting from the income tax contingency reserve adjustment
of $73.7 million in the second quarter of 2004, and cash used as a result of higher inventories as
of December 31, 2004, to support higher sales anticipated in early 2005 prior to the effective date
of selling price increases.

Cash provided from changes in other assets and liabilities was $132.8 million in 2004 compared with
a use of cash of $81.4 million in 2003. The change in cash flows reflected reduced cash contributions
to the Company’s pension plans which were $112.2 million lower in 2004 compared with 2003,
increased cash provided from commodity transactions, primarily reflecting higher commodity futures
market prices in 2004, and cash provided from higher liabilities primarily associated with incentive
plans in 2004. An increase in cash provided by accounts receivable in 2004 compared with cash used
by accounts receivable in 2003 was primarily attributable to improved cash collections.

Net cash provided from operating activities was $592.9 million for 2003, a decrease of $32.4 million
compared with 2002. The primary contributors to the decrease were reductions in cash provided from
deferred income taxes and higher accounts receivable balances at year-end. The decrease in cash
provided from deferred income taxes principally reflected the tax impact of the lower pension plan
contributions in 2003 versus 2002.

The decreases above were partially offset by higher net income and increases in cash provided from
other assets and liabilities and accounts payable. Cash used by other assets and liabilities was $81.4
million in 2003 compared with $106.5 million in 2002. The reduction in the use of cash reflected
reduced cash contributions to the Company’s pension plans which were $187.8 million lower in 2003
compared with 2002, decreased cash provided from commodity transactions primarily reflecting
lower commodity futures market prices in 2003, and an increase in cash provided by higher liabilities
primarily associated with selling and marketing programs in 2003. The increase in cash provided
from accounts payable reflected the timing of payments.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements, Contractual Obligations and Contingent Liabilities
and Commitments

The following table summarizes the Company’s contractual cash obligations by year:

Payments Due by Year

(In thousands of dollars)

Contractual
Obligations 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total
Unconditional

Purchase

Obligations $ 796,500 $291,700 $ 33,100 $ 7,500 $3,700 $ —  $1,132,500
Non-cancelable

Operating Leases 12,679 12,188 11,263 8,654 5,034 11,645 61,363
Long-term Debt 279,043 142 191,008 147 150 499,155 969,645

Total Obligations $1,088,122 $304,030 $235,371 $16,301 $8,884 $510,800 $2,163,508

In entering into contractual obligations, the Company has assumed the risk which might arise from
the possible inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their contracts. The Company’s risk is
limited to replacing the contracts at prevailing market rates. The Company does not expect any
significant losses as a result of counterparty defaults.

The Company has entered into certain obligations for the purchase of raw materials. Purchase
obligations primarily reflect forward contracts for the purchase of raw materials from third-party
brokers and dealers to minimize the effect of future price fluctuations. Total obligations for each year
are comprised of fixed price contracts for the purchase of commodities and unpriced contracts that
have been valued using market prices as of December 31, 2004. The cost of commodities associated
with the unpriced contracts is variable as market prices change over future periods. However, the
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variability of such costs is mitigated to the extent of the Company’s futures price cover for those
periods. Accordingly, increases or decreases in market prices will be offset by gains or losses on
commodity futures contracts to the extent that the unpriced contracts are hedged as of December 31,
2004 and in future periods. Taking delivery of the specific commodities for use in the manufacture
of finished goods satisfies these obligations. For each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004, such obligations were fully satisfied by taking delivery of and making payment -
for the specific commodities.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB No. 51 (“Interpretation No. 467).
Interpretation No. 46 addresses consolidation by business enterprises of special-purpose entities
(“SPHEs”), such as SPTs, to which the usual condition for consolidation described in Accounting
Research Bulletin No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, does not apply because the SPEs have
no voting interests or otherwise are not subject to control through ownership of voting interests.

The Company adopted Interpretation No. 46 as of June 30, 2003, resulting in the consolidation of
three off-balance sheet arrangements with SPTs. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Company
had no off-balance sheet arrangements. The consolidation of the SPTs resulted in an adjustment to
record the cumulative effect of the accounting change of approximately $7.4 million, or $.03 per share-
diluted, in the third quarter of 2003, reflecting the after-tax effect of accumulated depreciation for
these facilities from lease inception through June 29, 2003. Additionally, the consolidation of these
entities resulted in a net increase to property, plant and equipment of approximately $107.7 million,
with a corresponding increase to long-term debt of $115.5 million and to other long-term liabilities
of $4.4 million, reflecting the third party equity interest associated with the lease arrangements.
Prior to June 30, 2003, expenses associated with the lease arrangements were classified as rent
expense and included in cost of sales in the Consolidated Statements of Income. Subsequent to the
consolidation of these entities, expenses were classified as interest expense associated with the
corresponding long-term debt. The consolidation of these entities resulted in an increase to interest
expense of $2.8 million in 2003, offset by a decrease in rental expense for these facilities included
in cost of sales. An increase in depreciation expense of $2.6 million in 2003 also resulted from the
consolidation of these entities, with a total of $5.4 million of depreciation expense recorded in 2004.

During 1999 and 2000, the Company entered into off-balance sheet arrangements for the leasing of
certain warehouse and distribution facilities. These off-balance sheet arrangements enabled the
Company to lease these facilities under more favorable terms than other leasing alternatives. The
lease arrangements are with SPTs whereby the Company leases warehouse and distribution facilities
in Redlands, California; Atlanta, Georgia; and Hershey, Pennsylvania, as discussed below. The SPTs
were formed to facilitate the acquisition and subsequent leasing of the facilities to the Company. The
SPTs financed the acquisition of the facilities by issuing notes and equity certificates to independent
third-party financial institutions. The independent third-party financial institutions that hold the
equity certificates are the owners of the SPTs. The owners of the SPTs have made substantive residual
equity capital investments in excess of 3% which will be at risk during the entire term of each lease.
Accordingly, the Company did not consolidate the SPTs prior to June 30, 2003 because all of the
conditions for consolidation had not been met.

In December 2000, the Company entered into a lease agreement with the owner of the warehouse
and distribution facility in Redlands, California. The lease term was approximately ten years, with
occupancy to begin upon completion of the facility. The lease agreement contained an option for the
Company to purchase the facility. In January 2002, the Company assigned its right to purchase the
facility to an SPT that in turn purchased the completed facility and leased it to the Company under
a new lease agreement. The lease term is five years, with up to four renewal periods of five years
each with the consent of the lessor. The cost incurred by the SPT to acquire the facility, including
land, was $40.1 million.

In October 2000, the Company entered into a lease agreement with an SPT for the leasing of a
warehouse and distribution facility near Atlanta, Georgia. The lease term is five years, with up to

22




four renewal periods of five years each with the consent of the lessor. The cost incurred by the SPT
to acquire the facility, including land, was $18.2 million.

In July 1999, the Company entered into a lease agreement with an SPT for the construction and
leasing of a warehouse and distribution facility located on land owned by the Company near Hershey,
Pennsylvania. Under the agreement, the lessor paid construction costs totaling $61.7 million. The
lease term is six years, including the one-year construction period, with up to four renewal periods
of five years each with the consent of the lessor.

Aside from the residual guarantees and instrument guarantees associated with the individual
leasing arrangements, as discussed below, the Company has provided no other guarantees or
capitalization of these entities. The Company has not collateralized the obligations in connection with
these leases. The Company has no obligations with respect to refinancing of the lessor’s debt, would
incur no significant penalties which would result in the reasonable assurance of continuation of the
leases and has no significant guarantees other than the residual and instrument guarantees
discussed below. There are no other material commitments or contingent liabilities associated with
the leasing arrangements. The Company’s transactions with the SPTs are limited to the lease
agreements. The Company does not anticipate entering into any other arrangements involving SPEs.

The leases include substantial residual guarantees by the Company for a significant amount of the
financing and options to purchase the facilities at original cost. Pursuant to instrument guarantees,
in the event of a default under the lease agreements, the Company guaranteed to the note holders
and certificate holders payment in an amount equal to all sums then due under the leases.

There are no penalties or other disincentives under the lease agreements if the Company decides not
to renew any of the three leases. The terms for each renewal period under each of the three lease
arrangements are identical to the initial terms and do not represent bargain lease terms.

If the Company were to exercise its options to purchase the three facilities at original cost at the end
of the respective initial lease terms, the Company could purchase the facilities for a total of
approximately $120.0 million, $79.9 million for the Pennsylvania and Georgia facilities in 2005 and
$40.1 million for the California facility in 2007. If the Company chooses not to renew the leases or
purchase the assets at the end of the lease terms, the Company is obligated under the residual
guarantees for approximately $103.2 million in total for the three leases. Additionally, the Company
is obligated to re-market each property on the lessor’s behalf and, upon sale, distribute a portion of
the proceeds to the note holders and certificate holders up to an amount equal to the remaining debt
and equity certificates and to pay closing costs. If the Company chooses not to renew or purchase the
assets at the end of the lease terms, the Company does not anticipate a material disruption to
operations, since such facilities are not unique, facilities with similar racking and storage capabilities
are available in each of the areas where the facilities are located, there are no significant leasehold
improvements that would be impaired, there would be no adverse tax consequences, the financing
of replacement facilities would not be material to the Company’s cash flows and costs related to
relocation would not be significant to income.

The facility located near Hershey, Pennsylvania was constructed on land owned by the Company. The
Company entered into a ground lease with the lessor, an SPT. The initial term of the ground lease
extends to the date that is the later of (i) the date the facility lease is no longer in effect, or (ii) the
date when the Company satisfies the residual guarantee associated with the lease. An additional
term for the ground lease begins upon the end of the initial ground lease term and ends upon the
later of the date all sums required to be paid under the lease agreement are paid in full and the 75th
anniversary of the ground lease commencement date. If the Company chooses not to renew the
building lease or purchase the building, it must re-market the building on the lessor’s behalf subject
to the ground lease, which will continue in force until the earlier of the date all sums required to be
paid under the lease agreement are paid in full and the 75th anniversary of the ground lease inception
date. The lease of the warehouse and distribution facility does not include any provisions which would
require the Company to sell the land to the SPT.
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The Company’s provision for income taxes, accrued income taxes and deferred income taxes are based
upon income, statutory tax rates, the legal structure of the Company and interpretation of tax laws.
As a matter of course, the Company is regularly audited by Federal, state and foreign tax authorities.
From time to time, these audits result in assessments of additional tax. The Company maintains
reserves for such assessments. The reserves are determined based upon the Company’s judgment of
assessment risk and are adjusted, from time to time, based upon changing facts and circumstances,
such as receiving audit assessments or clearing of an item for which a reserve has been established.

A settlement of Federal tax audits for the 1999 and 2000 tax years, as well as the resolution of a
number of state tax audit issues were concluded during the second quarter of 2004. Based upon the
results of the audits, the income tax contingency reserves were adjusted resulting in a reduction
of income tax reserves by $73.7 million, reflecting a reduction of the provision for income taxes by
$61.1 million and a reduction to goodwill of $12.6 million. The income tax contingency reserve
adjustments related primarily to the deductibility and timing of certain expenses, interest on
potential assessments, and acquisition and divestiture matters. Assessments of additional
tax require use of the Company’s cash. The Company is not aware of any significant income
tax assessments.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND MARKET RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH DERIVATIVE
INSTRUMENTS

The Company utilizes certain derivative instruments, from time to time, including interest rate
swaps, foreign currency forward exchange contracts and options, and commodities futures contracts,
to manage interest rate, currency exchange rate and commodity market price risk exposures. Interest
rate swaps and foreign currency contracts and options are entered into for perieds consistent with
related underlying exposures and do not constitute positions independent of those exposures.
Commodities futures contracts are entered into for varying periods and are intended to be and are
effective as hedges of market price risks associated with anticipated raw material purchases, energy
requirements and transportation costs. The Company does not hold or issue derivative instruments
for trading purposes and is not a party to any instruments with leverage or prepayment features.
In entering into these contracts, the Company has assumed the risk that might arise from the possible
inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their contracts. The Company does not expect any
significant losses as a result of counterparty defaults.

The Company accounts for derivative instruments in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as
amended (“SFAS No. 133, as amended”). SFAS No. 133, as amended, provides that the effective
portion of the gain or loss on a derivative instrument designated and qualifying as a cash flow hedging
instrument be reported as a component of other comprehensive income and be reclassified into
earnings in the same pericd or periods during which the transaction affects earnings. The remaining
gain or loss on the derivative instrument, if any, must be recognized currently in earnings. For a
derivative designated as hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or
liability or a firm commitment (referred to as a fair value hedge), the gain or loss must be recognized
in earnings in the period of change together with the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item
attributable to the risk being hedged. The effect of that accounting is to reflect in earnings the extent
to which the hedge is not effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value. All derivative
instruments currently utilized by the Company, including variable to fixed interest rate swaps,
foreign exchange contracts and options and commodities futures contracts, are designated and
accounted for as cash flow hedges. The Company adopted SFAS No. 133, as amended, as of January 1,
2001. Additional information with regard to accounting policies associated with derivative
instruments is contained in Note 6 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.
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The information below summarizes the Company’s market risks associated with long-term debt and
derivative instruments outstanding as of December 31, 2004. This information should be read in
conjunction with Note 1, Note 6 and Note 8 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Long-Term Debt

The table below presents the principal cash flows and related interest rates by maturity date for long-
term debt, including the current portion, as of December 31, 2004. The fair value of long-term debt
was determined based upon quoted market prices for the same or similar debt issues.

Maturity Date

(In thousands of dollars except for rates)

Fair
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009  Thereafter Total Value
Long-term Debt $279,043 $142 $191,008 $147 $150 $499,155 $969,645 $1,094,281

Interest Rate 59% 2.0% 6.3% 20% 2.0% 7.4% 6.8%

Interest rates on variable rate obligations were calculated using the rate in effect as of December 31,
2004. Interest rates on certain long-term debt have been converted from variable to fixed rates as
discussed under the heading Interest Rate Swaps below.

Interest Rate Swaps

In order to minimize its financing costs and to manage interest rate exposure, the Company, from
time to time, enters into interest rate swap agreements. In October 2003, the Company entered into
interest rate swap agreements to effectively convert interest payments on long-term debt from fixed
to variable rates. Interest payments on $200.0 million of 6.7% Notes due in October 2005 and $150.0
million ¢f 6.95% Notes due in March 2007 were converted from the respective fixed rates to variable
rates based on the London Interbank Offered Rate, LIBOR. In March 2004, the Company terminated
these agreements, resulting in cash receipts totaling $5.2 million, with a corresponding increase to
the carrying value of the long-term debt. This increase is being amortized over the remaining term
of the respective long-term debt as a reduction to interest expense. In February 2001, the Company
entered into interest rate swap agreements that effectively converted variable-interest-rate
payments on certain leases from a variable to a fixed rate of 6.1%.

The fair value of interest rate swaps is defined as the difference in the present values of cash flows
calculated at the contracted interest rates and at current market interest rates at the end of the
period. The fair value of the swap agreements is calculated quarterly based upon the quoted market
price for the same or similar financial instruments. The fair value of the variable to fixed interest
rate swaps was a liability of $1.7 million and $5.2 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The potential net loss in fair value of interest rate swaps of ten percent resulting from
a hypothetical near-term adverse change in market rates was $.2 million and $.5 million as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company’s risk related to the interest rate swap
agreements is limited to the cost of replacing the agreements at prevailing market rates.

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts and Options

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts and options to hedge transactions
primarily related to firm commitments to purchase or forecasted purchases of equipment, certain raw
materials and finished goods denominated in foreign currencies and to hedge payment of forecasted
intercompany transactions with its subsidiaries outside the United States. These contracts reduce
currency risk from exchange rate movements, Foreign currency price risks are hedged generally for
periods from 3 to 24 months.

Foreign exchange forward contracts and options are intended to be and are effective as hedges of
identifiable, foreign currency commitments. Foreign exchange forward contracts are designated as
cash flow hedging derivatives and the fair value of such contracts is recorded on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets as either an asset or liability. Gains and losses on these contracts are recorded as
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a component of other comprehensive income and are reclassified into earnings in the same period
during which the hedged transaction affects earnings.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had foreign exchange forward contracts and options maturing
primarily in 2005 and 2006 to purchase $103.1 million in foreign currency, primarily Australian
dollars, Canadian dollars and euros, and to sell $30.8 million in foreign currency, primarily Mexican
pesos and Japanese yen, at contracted forward rates.

As of December 31, 2003, the Company had foreign exchange forward contracts and options maturing
primarily in 2004 and 2005 to purchase $57.7 million in foreign currency, primarily Canadian dollars,
and to sell $18.0 million in foreign currency, primarily Japanese yen, at contracted forward rates.

The fair value of foreign exchange contracts and options is defined as the amount of the difference
between contracted and current market foreign currency exchange rates as of the end of the period.
On a quarterly basis, the fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts and options is estimated
by obtaining market quotes for future contracts with similar terms, adjusted where necessary for
maturity differences. The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts and options was an asset
of $4.4 million and $1.6 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The potential net
loss in fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts and options of ten percent resulting from a
hypothetical near-term adverse change in market rates was $.4 million and $.2 million as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The Company’s risk related to the foreign exchange
contracts and options is limited to the cost of replacing the contracts at prevailing market rates.

Commodity Price Risk Management

The Company’s most significant raw material requirements include cocoa, sugar, milk, peanuts and
almonds. The Company attempts to minimize the effect of future price fluctuations related to the
purchase of these raw materials primarily through forward purchasing to cover future
manufacturing requirements, generally for periods from 3 to 24 months. With regard to cocoa, sugar,
corn sweeteners, natural gas, fuel oil and certain dairy products, price risks are also managed by
entering into futures contracts. At the present time, active futures contracts are not available for use
in pricing the Company’s other major raw material requirements. Futures contracts are used in
combination with forward purchasing of cocoa, sugar, corn sweetener, natural gas and certain dairy
product requirements principally to take advantage of market fluctuations that provide more
favorable pricing opportunities and flexibility in sourcing these raw material and energy
requirements. Fuel oil futures contracts are used to minimize price fluctuations associated with the
Company’s transportation costs. The Company’s commodity procurement practices are intended to
reduce the risk of future price increases, but also may potentially limit the ability to benefit from
possible price decreases.

The cost of cocoa beans and the prices for the related commodity futures contracts historically have
been subject to wide fluctuations attributable to a variety of factors, including the effect of weather
on crop yield, other imbalances between supply and demand, currency exchange rates, political
unrest in producing countries and speculative influences. After declining from an eighteen-year high
in February 2003, cocoa continued to trade at relatively high price levels during 2004. Continued civil
unrest in the world’s largest cocoa-producing country, the Ivory Coast, resulted in volatile market
conditions, but has not materially affected the harvesting and marketing of the cocoa crop. The
Company’s costs during 2005 and beyond will not necessarily reflect market price fluctuations
because of its forward purchasing practices, premiums and discounts reflective of relative values,
varying delivery times, and supply and demand for specific varieties and grades of cocoa beans. The
Company’s costs for cocoa will increase in 2005; however, the Company expects to achieve its long-
term goals for growth and profitability by a combination of selling price increases, supply chain cost
reductions and strict control of other costs to offset cost increases and respond to changes in the
competitive environment.
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Commuodities Futures Contracts

In connection with the purchasing of cocoa, sugar, corn sweeteners, natural gas, fuel oil and certain
dairy products for anticipated manufacturing requirements and to hedge transportation costs, the
Company enters into commodities futures contracts as deemed appropriate to reduce the effect of
price fluctuations. Exchange traded futures contracts are used to fix the price of physical forward
purchase contracts. Cash transfers reflecting changes in the value of futures contracts (unrealized
gains and losses) are made on a daily basis. The Company accounts for commodities futures contracts
in accordance with SFAS No. 133, as amended, and accordingly, cash transfers are reported as a
component of other comprehensive income. Such cash transfers will be offset by higher or lower cash
requirements for payment of invoice prices of raw materials, energy requirements and transportation
costs in the future. Futures being held in excess of the amount required to fix the price of unpriced
physical forward contracts are effective as hedges of anticipated purchases.

The following sensitivity analysis reflects the market risk of the Company to a hypothetical adverse
market price movement of ten percent, based on the Company’s net commodity positions at four dates
spaced equally throughout the year. The Company’s net commodity positions consist of the excess
of futures contracts held over unpriced physical forward contracts for the same commodities, relating
to cocoa, sugar, corn sweeteners, natural gas, fuel oil and certain dairy products. Inventories, priced
forward contracts and estimated anticipated purchases not yet contracted for were not included in
the sensitivity analysis calculations. A loss is defined, for purposes of determining market risk, as
the potential decrease in fair value or the opportunity cost resulting from the hypothetical adverse
price movement. The fair values of net commodity positions were based upon quoted market
prices or estimated future prices including estimated carrying costs corresponding with the future
delivery period.

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003

In millions of dollars Market Risk Market Risk
Fair (Hypothetical Fair (Hypothetical
Value 10% Change) Value 10% Change)

Highest long position $128.2 $12.8 $115.0 $11.5

Lowest long position (30.1) 3.0 (14.3) 14

Average position (long) 62.7 6.3 54.9 5.5

The increase in fair values from 2003 to 2004 primarily reflected an increase in commodity prices
during 2004. The negative positions primarily resulted as unpriced physical forward contract futures
requirements exceeded the amount of commodities futures being held at certain points in time during
the years.

Sensitivity analysis disclosures represent forward-looking statements, which are subject to certain
risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those presently
anticipated or projected. The important factors that could affect the sensitivity analysis disclosures
include significant increases or decreases in market prices reflecting fluctuations attributable to the
effect of weather on crop yield, other imbalances between supply and demand, currency exchange
rates, political unrest in producing countries and speculative influences in addition to changes in the
Company’s hedging strategies.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND OTHER CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and revenues and expenses
during the period. Significant accounting policies employed by the Company, including the use of
estimates, are presented in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Critical accounting estimates involved in applying the Company’s accounting policies are those that
require management to make assumptions about matters that are highly uncertain at the time the
accounting estimate was made and those for which different estimates reasonably could have been
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used for the current period, or changes in the accounting estimate that are reasonably likely to occur
from period to period, and would have a material impact on the presentation of the Company’s
financial condition, changes in financial condition or results of operations. The Company’s most
critical accounting estimates, discussed below, pertain to accounting policies for accounts
receivable—trade, accrued liabilities and pension and other post-retirement benefit plans.

Accounts Receivable—Trade

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to customers that satisfy pre-defined
credit criteria. The Company believes that it has little concentration of credit risk due to the diversity
of its customer base. Accounts Receivable—Trade, as shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets,
were net of allowances and anticipated discounts. An allowance for doubtful accounts is determined
through analysis of the aging of accounts receivable at the date of the financial statements,
assessments of collectibility based on historical trends and an evaluation of the impact of current and
projected economic conditions. The Company monitors the collectibility of its accounts receivable on
an ongoing basis by analyzing the aging of its accounts receivable, assessing the credit worthiness
of its customers and evaluating the impact of reasonably likely changes in economic conditions that
may impact credit risks. Estimates with regard to the collectibility of accounts receivable are
reasonably likely to change in the future.

Over the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, the Company recorded expense averaging
approximately $1.4 million per year for potential uncollectible accounts, including a $5.0 million
provision in 2003 related to the estimate of probable exposure to the bankruptcy of one of the
Company’s customers, Fleming Companies, Inc. This provision was reversed in the fourth quarter
of 2004 upon the agreement with Fleming Reclamation Creditor’s Trust which resclved most
significant matters related to the bankruptcy. Write-offs of uncollectible accounts, net of recoveries,
averaged approximately $2.0 million over the same period. The provision for uncollectible accounts
is recognized as selling, marketing and administrative expense in the Consolidated Statements of
Income. Over the past three years, the allowance for doubtful accounts has ranged from 2% to 3%
of gross accounts receivable. If reasonably possible near-term changes in the most material
assumptions were made with regard to the collectibility of accounts receivable, the amounts by which
the annual provision would have changed would have resulted in a reduction in expense of
approximately $2.5 million to an increase in expense of approximately $1.4 million. Changes in
estimates for future uncollectible accounts receivable would not have a material impact on the
Company’s liquidity or capital resources.

Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities requiring the most difficult or subjective judgments include liabilities associated
with marketing promotion programs and potentially unsaleable products. The Company utilizes
numerous trade promotion programs. The costs of such programs are recognized as a reduction to
net sales with the recording of a corresponding accrued liability based on estimates at the time of
product shipment. The accrued liability for marketing promotions is determined through analysis
of programs offered, historical trends, expectations regarding customer and consumer participation,
sales and payment trends, and experience with payment patterns associated with similar programs
that had been previously offered. The estimated costs of these programs are reasonably likely to
change in the future as a result of changes in trends with regard to customer and consumer
participation, particularly for new programs and for programs related to the introduction of new
products. Promotional costs were $557.5 million, $551.2 million and $461.6 million in 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Reasonably possible near-term changes in the most material assumptions
regarding the cost of promotional programs would have resulted in changes ranging from a reduction
in such costs of approximately $12.0 million to an increase in costs of approximately $10.0 million,
with an increase or decrease to net sales and income before income taxes within that range. Over
the last three years, actual promotion costs have not deviated from the estimated amounts by more
than 4%. Changes in estimates related to the cost of promotion programs would not have a material
impact on the Company’s liquidity or capital rescurces.
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At the time of sale, the Company estimates a cost for the possibility that products will become aged
or unsaleable in the future. The estimated cost is included as a reduction to net sales. A related
accrued liability is determined using statistical analysis that incorporates historical sales trends,
seasonal timing and sales patterns, and product movement at retail. Estimates for costs associated
with unsaleable products may change as a result of inventory levels in the distribution channel,
current economic trends, changes in consumer demand, the introduction of new products and changes
in trends of seasonal sales in response to promotion programs. Over the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004, costs associated with aged or unsaleable products have amounted to
approximately 2% of gross sales. Reasonably possible near-term changes in the most material
assumptions regarding the estimates of such costs would have increased or decreased net sales and
income before income taxes in a range from $.5 million to $1.0 million. In each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2004, actual costs have not deviated from the Company’s
estimates by more than 1%. Reasonably possible near-term changes in the estimates of costs
associated with unsaleable products would not have a material impact on the Company’s liquidity
or capital resources.

Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors a number of defined benefit pension plans. The principal plans are the
Hershey Foods Corporation Retirement Plan and the Hershey Foods Corporation Retirement Plan
for Hourly Employees which are cash balance plans that provide pension benefits for most domestic
employees. The Company is monitoring legislative and regulatory developments regarding cash
balance plans, as well as recent court cases, for any impact on its plans. The Company also sponsors
two primary post-retirement benefit plans. The health care plan is contributory, with participants’
contributions adjusted annually, and the life insurance plan is non-contributory.

The Company’s policy is to fund domestic pension liabilities in accordance with the minimum and
maximum limits imposed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 and Federal
income tax laws, respectively. Non-domestic pension liabilities are funded in accordance with
applicable local laws and regulations. Plan assets are invested in a broadly diversified portfolio
consisting primarily of domestic and international common stocks and fixed income securities. Short-
term and long-term liabilities associated with benefit plans are primarily determined based on
actuarial calculations. These calculations are made considering payroll and employee data, including
age and years of service, along with actuarial assumptions at the date of the financial statements.
The Company takes into consideration long-term projections with regard to economic conditions,
including interest rates, return on assets and the rate of increase in compensation levels. With regard
to liabilities associated with other post-retirement benefit plans that provide health care and life
insurance, the Company takes into consideration the long-term annual rate of increase in the per
capita cost of the covered benefits. In compliance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, and Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 106, Employers’ Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than
Pensions, the discount rate assumption is reviewed and may be revised annually. The expected long-
term rate of return on assets assumption (“asset return assumption”) for funded plans is by its nature
of a longer duration and would be revised only when long-term asset return projections demonstrate
that need.

Pensicon Plans

The net periodic pension benefits cost for the Company sponsored plans was $33.6 million, $51.0
million and $29.8 million, respectively, in 2004, 2003 and 2002. For 2005, net periodic pension benefits
cost is expected to be comparable to 2004 primarily due to a higher than expected return on plan
assets during 2004 and cash contributions to the pension plans in 2005, offset by the lower 2005
discount rate. The recognized net actuarial losses will be higher in 2005 due to the lower discount
rate. Actuarial gains and losses may arise when actual experience differs from assumed experience
or when the actuarial assumptions used to value the plan’s obligations are revised from time to time.
The Company’s policy is to amortize only unrecognized net actuarial gains/losses in excess of 10%
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of the respective plan’s projected benefit obligation, or fair market value of assets, if greater. The
estimated recognized net actuarial loss component of net periodic pension benefits cost for 2005 is
$10.0 million based on the December 31, 2004 unrecognized net actuarial loss presented in Note 13,
Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefit Plans, of $243.9 million and an amortization period of
primarily between thirteen and fifteen years, the average remaining service period of active
employees expected to receive benefits under the plans (“average remaining service period”). Changes
to the assumed rates of participant termination, disability and retirement would impact the average
remaining service period. An increase in these rates would decrease the average remaining service
period and a decrease in these rates would have the opposite effect. However, changes to these
assumed rates are not anticipated at this time. The 2004 recognized net actuarial loss component
of net periodic pension benefits cost was $9.8 million. Projections beyond 2005 are dependent on a
variety of factors such as changes to the discount rate and the actual return on pension plan assets.

The Company used an average discount rate assumption of 6.0%, 6.3% and 6.9% for 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively, in the calculation of net periodic pension benefits cost for its plans. The use of a
different discount rate assumption can significantly impact net periodic pension benefits cost. A one
percentage point decrease in the discount rate assumption would have increased 2004 net periodic
pension benefits cost by $12.0 million and a one percentage point increase in the discount rate
assumption would have decreased 2004 net periodic pension benefits cost by $10.2 million. The
Company’s discount rate represents the estimated rate at which pension benefits could be effectively
settled. In order to estimate this rate, the Company considers the yields of high quality securities,
which are generally considered to be those receiving a rating no lower than the second highest given
by a recognized rating agency.

The Company reduced its average discount rate assumption to 5.7% for valuing obligations as of
December 31, 2004, from 6.0% as of December 31, 2003, due to the declining interest rate
environment. A one percentage point decrease in the discount rate assumption would have increased
the December 31, 2004 pension benefits obligations by $125.0 million and a one percentage point
increase in the discount rate assumption would have decreased the December 31, 2004 pension
benefits obligations by $106.1 million.

Asset return assumptions of 8.56%, 8.5% and 9.5% were used in the calculation of net periodic pension
benefits cost for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and the expected return on plan assets component
of net periodic pension benefits cost was based on the fair market value of pension plan assets. To
determine the expected return on plan assets, the Company considers the current and expected asset
allocations, as well as historical and expected returns on the categories of plan assets. The historical
geometric average return over the 17 years prior to December 31, 2004 was approximately 9.7%. The
actual return on assets was 10.7% during 2004, with gains during 2003 of approximately 21.1% and
losses during 2002 of (13.1)%. The use of a different asset return assumption can significantly impact
net periodic pension benefits cost. A one percentage point decrease in the asset return assumption
would have increased 2004 net periodic pension benefits cost by $9.0 million and a one percentage
point increase in the asset return assumption would have decreased 2004 net periodic pension
benefits cost by $9.0 million.

The Company’s pension asset investment policies specify ranges of pension asset allocation
percentages for each asset class. The ranges for the domestic pension plans were as follows: equity
securities, 40%—85%; debt securities, 15%—60%; and cash, 0%-10%. As of December 31, 2004, the
actual allocations were within the ranges. The level of volatility in pension plan asset returns is
expected to be in line with the overall volatility of the markets and weightings within the asset
classes disclosed.

For 2004 and 2003, the Company had no minimum funding requirements for the domestic plans and
minimum funding requirements for the non-domestic plans were not material. However, the Company
made contributions of $8.0 million in 2004 and $120.3 million in 2003 to improve the funded status. These
contributions were fully tax deductible. A one percentage point change in the discount rate or asset return
assumptions would not have changed the 2004 minimum funding requirements for the domestic plans.
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For 2005, there will be no minimum funding requirements for the domestic plans and minimum funding
requirements for the non-domestic plans will not be material. However, the Company contributed
$40.0 million to the domestic plans in January 2005 to improve the funded status.

Post-Retirement Benefit Plans

Other post-retirement benefits costs relate primarily to health care and life insurance benefits. Net
periodic other post-retirement benefits costs for the Company sponsored plans were $24.3 million,
$23.9 million and $23.7 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. For the calculation of net
periodic other post-retirement benefits costs, discount rate assumptions 0f 6.0%, 6.3% and 7.0% were
used for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The use of a different discount rate assumption can
significantly impact net periodic other post-retirement benefits costs. A one percentage point
decrease in the discount rate assumption would have increased 2004 net periodic other post-
retirement benefits costs by $1.5 million and a one percentage point increase in the discount rate
assumption would have decreased 2004 net periodic other post-retirement benefits costs by
$1.3 million.

The Company used discount rate assumptions of 5.7% and 6.0% to value the other post-retirement
benefits obligations as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. A one percentage point decrease
in the discount rate assumption would have increased the December 31, 2004 other post-retirement
benefits obligations by $36.4 million and a one percentage point increase in the discount rate
assumption would have decreased the December 31, 2004 other post-retirement benefits obligations
by $30.4 million.

On December 8, 2003, the President of the United States signed into law the Medicare Prescription
Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “2003 Medicare Act”). The 2003 Medicare
Act introduced a prescription drug benefit under Medicare (“Medicare Part D”) as well as a Federal
subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least
actuarially eguivalent to Medicare Part D. The Company believes that certain prescription drug
benefits offered under post-retirement health care plans will qualify for the subsidy under Medicare
Part D. The Federal subsidy to be provided by the 2003 Medicare Act reduced net periodic benefits
costs in 2004 by approximately $3.0 million and lowered the accumulated post-retirement benefits
obligation by approximately $25.2 million.

Other critical accounting policies employed by the Company include the following:

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Other intangible
assets consist primarily of trademarks, customer-related intangible assets and patents obtained
through business acquisitions. The useful lives of trademarks were determined to be indefinite and,
therefore, these assets are not being amortized. Customer-related intangible assets are being
amortized over their estimated useful lives of approximately ten years. Patents are being amortized
over their remaining legal lives of approximately sixteen years.

The impairment evaluation for goodwill is conducted annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that an asset might be impaired. The evaluation is performed by
using a two-step process. In the first step, the fair value of each reporting unit is compared with the
carrying amount of the reporting unit, including goodwill. The estimated fair value of the reporting
unit is generally determined on the basis of discounted future cash flows. If the estimated fair value
of the reporting unit is less than the carrying amount of the reporting unit, then a second step must
be completed in order to determine the amount of the goodwill impairment that should be recorded.
In the second step, the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is determined by allocating
the reporting unit’s fair value to all of its assets and liabilities other than goodwill (including any
unrecognized intangible assets) in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation. The resulting
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implied fair value of the goodwill that results from the application of this second step is then compared
to the carrying amount of the goodwill and an impairment charge is recorded for the difference.

The evaluation of the carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite lives is conducted annually,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset might be impaired.
The evaluation is performed by comparing the carrying amount of these assets to their estimated
fair value. If the estimated fair value is less than the carrying amount of the intangible assets with
indefinite lives, then an impairment charge is recorded to reduce the asset to its estimated fair value.
The estimated fair value is generally determined on the basis of discounted future cash flows.

The assumptions used in the estimate of fair value are generally consistent with the past performance
of each reporting unit and are also consistent with the projections and assumptions that are used
in current operating plans. Such assumptions are subject to change as a result of changing economic
and competitive conditions.

Goodwill was assigned to reporting units and transitional impairment tests were performed for
goodwill and other intangible assets during the first quarter 0f 2002 and the annual impairment tests
were performed in the fourth quarters of 2002, 2003 and 2004. No impairment of assets was
determined as a result of these tests.

Commodities Futures Contracts

In connection with the purchasing of cocoa, sugar, corn sweeteners, natural gas, fuel oil and certain
dairy products for anticipated manufacturing requirements and to hedge transportation costs,
the Company enters into commodities futures contracts as deemed appropriate to reduce the effect
of price fluctuations. Commodities futures contracts utilized by the Company are designated and
accounted for as cash flow hedges under SFAS No. 133, as amended. Additional information with
regard to accounting policies associated with derivative instruments is contained in Note 6,
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.

The net after-tax impact of cash flow hedging derivatives on comprehensive income (loss) reflected
a $16.3 million gain in 2004, a $20.2 million loss in 2003 and a $106.7 million gain in 2002. Net gains
and losses on cash flow hedging derivatives were primarily associated with commodities futures
contracts. Reclassification adjustments from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to
income, for gains or losses on cash flow hedging derivatives, were reflected in cost of sales.
Reclassification of gains of $26.1 million, $51.9 million, and $17.9 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, were associated with commodities futures contracts. Gains on commodities futures
contracts recognized in cost of sales as a result of hedge ineffectiveness were approximately
$.4 million, $.4 million and $1.5 million before tax for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. No gains or losses on cash flow hedging derivatives were reclassified from
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into income as a result of the discontinuance of a
hedge because it became probable that a hedged forecasted transaction would not occur. There were
no components of gains or losses on cash flow hedging derivatives that were recognized in income
because such components were excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. The amount of
net gains on cash flow hedging derivatives, including foreign exchange forward contracts and options,
interest rate swap agreements and commodities futures contracts, expected to be reclassified into
earnings in the next twelve months was approximately $18.7 million after tax as of December 31,
2004, which were principally associated with commodities futures contracts.

RETURN MEASURES

Operating Return on Average Stockholders’ Equity

The Company’s operating return on average stockholders’ equity, on a GAAP basis, was 49.9% in
2004. The Company’s adjusted operating return on average stockholders’ equity was 44.7% in 2004.
For the purpose of calculating the adjusted operating return on average stockholders’ equity, earnings
is defined as net income adjusted to reflect the impact of the elimination of the amortization of
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intangibles for all years and excluding the impact of the adjustment to income tax contingency
reserves on the provision for income taxes in 2004, the after-tax effect of the business realignment
initiatives in 2003, 2002 and 2001, the after-tax effect of incremental expenses to explore the possible
sale of the Company in 2002 and the after-tax gains on the sale of a group of the Company’s gum
brands in 2003, the sale of the Luden’s throat drops business in 2001, the sale of corporate aircraft
in 2000 and the sale of the pasta business in 1999. Over the most recent six-year period, the adjusted
return has ranged from 28.9% in 1999 to 44.7% in 2004.

Operating Return on Average Invested Capital

The Company’s operating return on average invested capital, on a GAAP basis, was 26.7% in 2004.
The Company’s adjusted operating return on average invested capital was 24.1% in 2004. Average
invested capital consists of the annual average of beginning and ending balances of long-term debt,
deferred income taxes and stockholders’ equity. For the purpose of calculating the adjusted operating
return on average invested capital, earnings is defined as net income adjusted to reflect the impact
of the elimination of the amortization of intangibles for all years and excluding the impact of the
adjustment to income tax contingency reserves on the provision for income taxes in 2004, the after-tax
effect of the business realignment initiatives in 2003, 2002 and 2001, the after-tax effect of
incremental expenses to explore the possible sale of the Company in 2002, the after-tax gains on the
sale of a group of the Company’s gum brands in 2003, the sale of the Luden’s throat drops business
in 2001, the sale of corporate aircraft in 2000, and the sale of the pasta business in 1999, and the
after-tax effect of interest on long-term debt. Over the most recent six-year period, the adjusted return
has ranged from 15.4% in 1999 to 24.1% in 2004.

OUTLOOK

The outlook section contains a number of forward-looking statements, all of which are based on
current expectations. Actual results may differ materially. Key risks to achieving future performance
include: the continued ability to accelerate the introduction of new products, while balancing the
rationalization of under-performing items; customer and consumer acceptance of announced price
increases; achievement of targeted cost improvements; successful resolution of upcoming labor
contract negotiations; intensified competitive activity in certain markets; changes to customers’
businesses and in the retail environment; changes in the regulatory environment, which includes tax
laws as well as initiatives which could restrict or limit certain product sales; the ability to improve
profitability of international businesses which are subject to certain volatility with regard to the
economic and foreign currency exchange environment in certain countries; and the risk of increases
in raw material and other costs.

During the three years ended December 31, 2004, the Company significantly improved operating
results as it implemented its strategies. Over the long-term these strategies seek to deliver average
net sales growth of 3%—4% per year, gross margin improvement of 70-90 basis points per year, 7%—-9%
annual growth in earnings before interest expense and income taxes (“EBIT”) and 9%~11% earnings
per share-diluted (“EPS”) growth per year.

The Company expects continued sales growth in 2005 to be 6%-7%, including growth at the top end
of its long-term goal for the ongoing business, enhanced by the first year impact of the Mauna Loa
and Grupo Lorena acquisitions. The Company will continue to introduce new items and limited
edition line extensions. During 2005 these will include a full year of sales for the following items that
were introduced in 2004: Hershey’s Kisses brand filled with caramel milk chocolates, Ice Breakers
Liquid Ice mints, Hershey’s Snack Barz rice and marshmallow bars, Hershey’s SmartZone nutrition
bars, Takes candy bars, Hershey’s, Almond Joy, York and Reese’s cookies, Reese’s Pieces candy with
peanuts, and Reese’s Big Cup, previously sold as a limited edition item.

Geographically, net sales growth is expected to be concentrated primarily in North America. Growth
outside North America will be focused on limited geographic areas offering attractive market
opportunities.

33



Gross margin is expected to improve 3040 basis points in 2005, including growth approaching the
lower end of the Company’s long-term goal of 70-90 basis points for the ongoing business, reduced
by the impact of integrating the lower margin Grupo Lorena and Mauna Loa businesses. Margin
improvement is affected by various factors, including selling prices, promotional allowances, raw
material costs, supply chain efficiencies and the mix of products sold in any period. During 2005,
improved price realization resulting from a combination of selling price increases and product weight
changes, combined with improved supply chain efficiencies will more than offset higher input costs,
primarily for raw materials, transportation and employee benefits.

EBIT is expected to grow within the range of the long-term goal in 2005, as a result of the net sales
growth and gross margin expansion, combined with careful control of selling, marketing and
administrative costs.

Net income and EPS in 2004 benefited from the non-recurring adjustment to income tax contingency
reserves, which reduced the tax rate and income tax expense. In 2005, the tax rate will return to a
more normal rate, estimated at 36.6%, offsetting the EBIT gains and resulting in relatively flat net
income and EPS versus 2004. Excluding the impact of this non-recurring adjustment, net income and
EPS are expected to increase within the range of the Company’s long-term goals.

The Company expects strong cash flows from operating activities in 2005. Net cash provided from
operating activities is expected to exceed cash requirements for capital additions, capitalized
software additions and anticipated dividend payments. The Company will continue to monitor the
funded status of pension plans based on market performance and make future contributions as
appropriate. The plans were sufficiently funded at the end of 2004, however, in January 2005, a
contribution of $40.0 million was made to improve the funded status of the domestic plans. The
Company’s cash flow from operations is expected tc remain strong. During 2005, the Company will
repay the $201.2 million of 6.7% Notes due in 2005 by utilizing cash provided from operations and
additional short-term borrowings.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R,
Share-Based Payment, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 123 and 95 (“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS
No. 123R addresses the accounting for transactions in which an enterprise exchanges its valuable
equity instruments for employee services. It also addresses transactions in which an enterprise
incurs liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments or that may
be settled by the issuance of those equity instruments in exchange for employee services. For public
entities, the cost of employee services received in exchange for equity instruments, including
employee stock options, would be measured based on the grant-date fair value of those instruments.
That cost would be recognized as compensation expense over the requisite service period (often the
vesting period). Generally, no compensation cost would be recognized for equity instruments that
do not vest.

SFAS No. 123R is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2005. SFAS No. 123R will apply to
awards granted, modified, or settled in cash on or after that date. Companies may choose from one
of three methods when transitioning to the new standard, which may include restatement of prior
annual and interim periods. The impact on EPS of expensing stock options will be dependent upon
the method to be used for valuation of stock options and the transition method determined by the
Company. The total impact on an annualized basis could range from approximately $.06 to $.08 per
share-diluted, assuming option grants continue at the same level as in 2004.




In November 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 151, Inventory
Costs, an amendment of ARB No. 43, Chapter 4 (“SFAS No. 1517). SFAS No. 151 amends the guidance
in ARB No. 43, Chapter 4, “Inventory Pricing,” to clarify the accounting for abnormal amounts of idle
facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage). Paragraph 5 of ARB No. 43,
Chapter 4, previously stated that “...under some circumstances, items such as idle facility expense,
excessive spoilage, double freight, and rehandling costs may be so abnormal as to require treatment
as current period charges...” SFAS No. 151 requires that those items be recognized as current-period
charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of “so abnormal.” In addition, SFAS No. 151
requires that allocation of fixed production overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the
normal capacity of the production facilities, The Company does not expect any significant changes
to its financial accounting and reporting as a result of the implementation of SFAS No. 151,

Item 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET
RISK

The information required by this item with respect to market risk is set forth in the section entitled
“Accounting Policies and Market Risks Associated with Derivative Instruments,” found on pages 24
through 27.

Item 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
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RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Hershey Foods Corporation is responsible for the financial statements and other financial
information contained in this report. The Company believes that the financial statements have
been prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles appropriate under
the circumstances to reflect in all material respects the substance of applicable events and
transactions. In preparing the financial statements, it is necessary that management make informed
estimates and judgments. The other financial information in this annual report is consistent with
the financial statements.

The Company maintains a system of internal accounting controls designed to provide reasonable
assurance that financial records are reliable for purposes of preparing financial statements and that
assets are properly accounted for and safeguarded. The concept of reasonable assurance is based on
the recognition that the cost of the system must be related to the benefits to be derived. The Company
believes its system provides an appropriate balance in this regard. The Company maintains an
Internal Audit Department which reviews the adequacy and tests the application of internal
accounting controls.

The 2004, 2003 and 2002 financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent
registered public accounting firm. KPMG LLP’s report on the Company’s 2004 and 2003 financial
statements is included on page 37.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company, consisting solely of independent, non-
management directors, meets regularly with the independent auditors, internal auditors and
management to discuss, among other things, the audit scopes and results. KPMG LLP and the
internal auditors both have full and free access to the Audit Committee, with and without the
presence of management.

L. D

Richard H. Lenny David J. West
Chairman of the Board, President Senior Vice President
and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Hershey Foods Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hershey Foods Corporation and
subsidiaries (the “Corporation”) as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated
statements of income, cash flows and stockholders’ equity for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the Corporation’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and’
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles.
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Hershey Foods Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004
and 2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 2, the Corporation adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board
Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB No. 51,
on June 30, 2003.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ), and our
report dated March 3, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment of, and
the effective operation of, internal control over financial reporting,.

KPMes P

New York, New York
March 3, 2005
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HERSHEY FOODS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
In thousands of dollars except per share amounts
Net Sales $4,429,248 $4,172,551 $4,120,317
Costs and Expenses:
Cost of sales 2,679,531 2,544,726 2,561,052
Selling, marketing and administrative 847,540 816,442 833,426
Business realignment and asset impairments, net —_ 23,357 27,552
Gain on sale of business — (8,330) —
Total costs and expenses 3,527,071 3,376,195 3,422,030
Income before Interest and Income Taxes 902,177 796,356 698,287
Interest expense, net 66,533 63,629 60,722
Income before Income Taxes 835,644 732,827 637,565
Provision for income taxes 244,765 267,875 233,987
Income before Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Change 590,879 464,952 403,578
Cumulative effect of accounting change,
net of $4,933 tax benefit — 7,368 —
Net Income $ 590,879 $ 457,584 $ 403,578
Earnings Per Share—Basic—Common Stock
Income before Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Change $ 2.38 $ 1.81 $ 1.51
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
net of $.02 Tax Benefit — .03 —
Net Income $ 2.38 3 1.78 3 1.51
Earnings Per Share—Basic—Class B Common Stock
Income before Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Change $ 217 $ 1.64 % 1.37
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
net of $.02 Tax Benefit — .03 —
" Net Income $ 2.17 $ 1.61 $ 1.37
Earnings Per Share—Diluted
Income before Cumulative Effect of
Accounting Change $ 230 % 1.76 $ 1.47
Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change,
net of $.02 Tax Benefit — .03 —
Net Income $ 2.30 $ 1.73 $ 1.47
Cash Dividends Paid Per Share:
Common Stock $ 8350 $ 7228 4 .6300
Class B Common Stock 71576 .6526 5875

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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HERSHEY FOODS CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31, 2004 2003
In thousands of dollars
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 54,837 $ 114,793
Accounts receivable—trade 408,930 407,612
Inventories 557,180 492,859
Deferred income taxes 46,503 13,285
Prepaid expenses and other 114991 103,020
Total current assets 1,182,441 1,131,569
Property, Plant and Eguipment, Net 1,682,698 1,661,939
Goodwill 463,947 388,960
Other Intangibles 125,233 38,511
Other Assets 343,212 361,561
Total assets $ 3,797,531 $ 3,582,540
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 148,686 $ 132,222
Accrued liabilities 472,096 416,181
Accrued income taxes 42,280 24,898
Short-term debt 343,277 12,032
Current portion of long-term debt 279,043 477
Total current liabilities 1,285,382 585,810
Long-term Debt 690,602 968,499
Other Long-term Liabilities 403,356 370,776
Deferred Income Taxes 328,889 377,589
Total liabilities 2,708,229 2,302,674
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred Stock, shares i1ssued: none in 2004 and 2003 — —
Common Stock, shares issued: 299,060,235 in 2004
and 149,528,776 on a pre-split basis in 2003 299,060 149,528
Class B Common Stock, shares issued: 60,841,509 in
2004 and 30,422,096 on a pre-split basis in 2003 60,841 30,422
Additional paid-in capital 28,614 4,034
Unearned ESOP compensation (6,387) (9,580)
Retained earnings 3,469,169 3,263,988
Treasury—Common Stock shares, at cost:
113,313,827 in 2004 and 50,421,139 on a pre-split
basis in 2003 (2,762,304) (2,147,441)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 309 (11,085)
Total stockholders’ equity 1,089,302 1,279,866
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 3,797,531 $ 3,582,540

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these balance sheets.
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HERSHEY FOODS CORPORATION
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
In thousands of dollars
Cash Flows Provided from (Used by)
Operating Activities
Net income $ 590,879 $ 457,584 $ 403,578
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
provided from operations:
Depreciation and amortization 189,665 180,567 177,908
Deferred income taxes {81,931) 38,895 137,817
Gain on sale of business, net of tax of $2,624 —_ (5,706) —
- Business realignment initiatives, net of tax
of $9,988 and $12,470, respectively —_ 15,488 21,509
Cumulative effect of accounting change,
net of tax of $4,933 —_ 7,368 —
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effects
from business acquisitions and divestitures:
Accounts receivable—trade 17,319 (36,636) (9,250)
Inventories (40,043) 9,095 8,843
Accounts payable (11,266) 7,715 (8,542)
Other assets and liabilities 132,827 (81,427) (106,520)
Net Cash Provided from Operating Activities 797,450 592,943 625,343
Cash Flows Provided from (Used by)
Investing Activities
Capital additions (181,728) (218,650) (132,736)
Capitalized software additions (14,158) (18,404) (11,836)
Business acquisitions (166,859) — —
Proceeds from divestitures —_ 20,049 12,000
Net Cash (Used by) Investing Activities (362,745) (217,005) (132,572)
Cash Flows Provided from (Used by)
Financing Activities
Net change in short-term borrowings 331,245 897 4,130
Long-term borrowings — 3,194 304
Repayment of long-term debt (883) (18,633) (9,578)
Cash dividends paid (205,747) (184,686) (167,821)
Exercise of stock options 79,634 55,120 86,491
Incentive plan transactions (81,933) (85,347) (158,507)
Repurchase of Common Stock (616,977 (329,433) (84,194)
Net Cash (Used by) Financing Activities {494,661) (558,888) (329,175)
(Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (59,956) (182,950) 163,596
Cash and Cash Equivalents as of January 1 114,793 297,743 134,147
Cash and Cash Equivalents as of December 31 $ 54,837 $ 114,793 $ 297,743
Interest Paid $ 66,151 $ 65,347 $ 64,343
Income Taxes Paid 289,607 207,672 57,495

The notes to consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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HERSHEY FOODS CORPORATION
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Significant accounting policies employed by the Company are discussed below and in other notes to
the consolidated financial statements.

Items Affecting Comparability

The Company’s effective income tax rate was 29.3% in 2004, 36.6% in 2003 and 36.7% in 2002. The
effective income tax rate for 2004 is not comparable with the effective income tax rates for 2003 and
2002 because the Company’s provision for income taxes was benefited by a $61.1 million adjustment
to income tax contingency reserves recorded in the second quarter of 2004. The non-cash reduction
of income tax expense resulted from the settlement of Federal tax audits for the 1999 and 2000 tax
years, as well as the resolution of a number of state tax audit issues. Based upon the results of the
audits, the income tax contingency reserves were adjusted, resulting in a reduction of income tax
reserves by $73.7 million reflecting a reduction of the provision for income taxes by $61.1 million and
a reduction to goodwill of $12.6 million. The income tax contingency reserve adjustments related
primarily to the deductibility and timing of certain expenses, interest on potential assessments, and
acquisition and divestiture matters.

The consolidated financial statements include the impact of the Company’s business realignment
initiatives as described in Note 4. Cost of sales included pre-tax charges resulting from the business
realignment initiatives of $2.1 million and $6.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Additionally, selling, marketing and administrative expenses for the year ended
December 31, 2002, included expenses of $17.2 million associated with the exploration of the potential
sale of the Company.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 46,
Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an interpretation of ARB No. 51 (“Interpretation No. 46”),
Interpretation No. 46 addresses consolidation by business enterprises of special-purpose entities
(“SPEs”) to which the usual condition for consolidation described in Accounting Research Bulletin
No. 51, Consolidated Financial Statements, does not apply because the SPEs have no voting interests
or otherwise are not subject to control through ownership of voting interests. The Company adopted
Interpretation No. 46 as of June 30, 2003. Additional information regarding the adoption of
Interpretation No. 46 is contained in Note 2, Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change.

Principles of Ccensolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries and entities in which it has a controlling financial interest after the elimination of
intercompany accounts and transactions. The Company has a controlling financial interest if it owns
a majority of the outstanding voting common stock or has significant control over an entity through
contractual or economic interests in which the Company is the primary beneficiary.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and revenues and expenses
during the reporting period. Critical accounting estimates involved in applying the Company’s
accounting policies are those that require management to make assumptions about matters that are
highly uncertain at the time the accounting estimate was made and those for which different




estimates reasonably could have been used for the current period, or changes in the accounting
estimate that are reasonably likely to occur from period to period, and would have a material impact
on the presentation of the Company’s financial condition, changes in financial condition or results
of operations. The Company’s most critical accounting estimates pertain to accounting policies for
accounts receivable—trade, accrued liabilities and pension and other post-retirement benefit plans.

Revenue Recognition

The Company records sales when all of the following criteria have been met: a valid customer order
with a fixed price has been received; a delivery appointment with the customer has been made; the
product has been shipped in accordance with the delivery appointment within the required lead time;
there is no further significant obligation to assist in the resale of the product; and collectibility is
reasonably assured. Net sales include revenue from the sale of finished goods and royalty income,
net of allowances for trade promotions, consumer coupon programs and other sales incentives, and
allowances and discounts associated with aged or potentially unsaleable products. Trade promotions
and sales incentives primarily include reduced price features, merchandising displays, sales growth
incentives, new item allowances and cooperative advertising.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales represents costs directly related to the manufacture and distribution of the Company’s
products. Primary costs include raw materials, packaging, direct labor, overhead, shipping and
handling, warehousing and the depreciation of manufacturing, warehousing and distribution
facilities. Manufacturing overhead and related expenses include salaries, wages, employee benefits,
utilities, maintenance and property taxes.

Selling Marketing and Administrative

Selling, marketing and administrative expenses represent costs incurred in generating revenues and
in managing the business of the Company. Such costs include advertising and other marketing
expenses, salaries, employee benefits, incentive compensation, research and development, travel,
office expenses, amortization of capitalized software and depreciation of administrative facilities.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid debt instruments, time deposits and money market
funds with original maturities of three months or less. The fair value of cash and cash equivalents
approximates the carrying amount.

Commodities Futures Contracts

In connection with the purchasing of cocoa, sugar, corn sweeteners, natural gas, fuel oil and certain
dairy products for anticipated manufacturing requirements and to hedge transportation costs, the
Company enters into commodities futures contracts as deemed appropriate to reduce the effect of
price fluctuations.

The Company accounts for commodities futures contracts in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as
amended (“SFAS No. 133, as amended”). SFAS No. 133, as amended, provides that the effective
portion of the gain or loss on a derivative instrument designated and qualifying as a cash flow hedging
instrument be reported as a component of other comprehensive income and be reclassified into
earnings in the same period or periods during which the transaction affects earnings. The remaining
gain or loss on the derivative instrument, if any, must be recognized currently in earnings. For a
derivative designated as hedging the exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or
liability or a firm commitment (referred to as a fair value hedge), the gain or loss must be recognized
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in earnings in the period of change together with the offsetting loss or gain on the hedged item
attributable to the risk being hedged. The effect of that accounting is to reflect in earnings the extent
to which the hedge is not effective in achieving offsetting changes in fair value. All derivative
instruments currently utilized by the Company, including commodities futures contracts, are
designated and accounted for as cash flow hedges. Additional information with regard to accounting
policies associated with derivative instruments is contained in Note 6, Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities. '

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost and are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows: 3 to 15 years for machinery and equipment; and
25 to 40 years for buildings and related improvements. Maintenance and repair expenditures are
charged to expense as incurred. Applicable interest charges incurred during the construction of new
facilities and production lines are capitalized as one of the elements of cost and are amortized over
the assets’ estimated useful lives.

The Company reviews long-lived assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to
be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of long-lived assets to future
undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated, in accordance with Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets. If
such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment recognized is measured by the amount
by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. Assets to be disposed
of are reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

The Company accounts for goodwill and other intangible assets in accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Other intangible
assets primarily consist of trademarks, customer-related intangible assets and patents obtained
through business acquisitions. The useful lives of trademarks were determined to be indefinite and,
therefore, these assets are not being amortized. Customer-related intangible assets are being
amortized over their estimated useful lives of approximately ten years. Patents are being amortized
over their remaining legal lives of approximately sixteen years.

The impairment evaluation for goodwill is conducted annually, or more frequently, if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that an asset might be impaired. The evaluation is performed by
using a two-step process. In the first step, the fair value of each reporting unit is compared with the
carrying amount of the reporting unit, including goodwill. The estimated fair value of the reporting
unit is generally determined on the basis of discounted future cash flows. If the estimated fair value
of the reporting unit is less than the carrying amount of the reporting unit, then a second step must
be completed in order to determine the amount of the goodwill impairment that should be recorded.
In the second step, the implied fair value of the reporting unit’s goodwill is determined by allocating
the reporting unit’s fair value to all of its assets and liabilities other than goodwill (including any
unrecognized intangible assets) in a manner similar to a purchase price allocation. The resulting
implied fair value of the goodwill that results from the application of this second step is then compared
to the carrying amount of the goodwill and an impairment charge is recorded for the difference.

The impairment evaluation of the carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite lives is
conducted annually, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset
might be impaired. The evaluation is performed by comparing the carrying amount of these assets
to their estimated fair value. If the estimated fair value is less than the carrying amount of the
intangible assets with indefinite lives, then an impairment charge is recorded to reduce the asset to
its estimated fair value. The estimated fair value is generally determined on the basis of discounted
future cash flows.
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The assumptions used in the estimate of fair value are generally consistent with the past performance
of each reporting unit and are also consistent with the projections and assumptions that are used
in current operating plans. Such assumptions are subject to change as a result of changing economic
and competitive conditions.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income (loss) is reported on the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’
Equity and accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is reported on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. Additional information regarding comprehensive income is contained in Note 7,
Comprehensive Income.

Results of operations for foreign entities are translated using the average exchange rates during the
period. For foreign entities, assets and liabilities are translated to U.S. dollars using the exchange
rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Resulting translation adjustments are recorded as a
component of other comprehensive income (loss), “Foreign Currency Translation Adjustments.”

A minimum pension liability adjustment is required when the actuarial present value of accumulated
pension plan benefits exceeds plan assets and accrued pension liabilities, less allowable intangible
assets. Minimum pension liability adjustments, net of income taxes, are recorded as a component of
other comprehensive income (loss), “Minimum Pension Liability Adjustments.”

Gains and losses on cash flow hedging derivatives, to the extent effective, are included in other
comprehensive income (loss). Reclassification adjustments reflecting such gains and losses are
ratably recerded in income in the same period as the hedged items affect earnings. Additional
information with regard to accounting policies associated with derivative instruments is contained
in Note 6, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.

Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts and Options

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts and options to hedge transactions
primarily related to firm commitments to purchase or forecasted purchases of equipment, certain raw
materials and finished goods denominated in foreign currencies, and to hedge payment of forecasted
intercompany transactions with its subsidiaries outside the United States. These contracts reduce
currency risk from exchange rate movements.

Foreign exchange forward contracts and options are intended to be and are effective as hedges of
identifiable foreign currency commitments and forecasted transactions. Foreign exchange forward
contracts and options are designated as cash flow hedging derivatives and the fair value of
such contracts is recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as either an asset or liability.
Gains and losses on these contracts are recorded as a component of other comprehensive income and
are reclassified into earnings in the same period during which the hedged transaction affects
earnings. Additional information with regard to accounting policies for derivative instruments,
including foreign exchange forward contracts and options, is contained in Note 6, Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.

License Agreements

The Company has entered into license agreements under which it has access to certain trademarks
and proprietary technology, and manufactures and/or markets and distributes certain products. The
rights under these agreements are extendible on a long-term basis at the Company’s option subject
to certain conditions, including minimum sales levels, which the Company has met. License fees and
royalties, payable under the terms of the agreements, are expensed as incurred and included in
selling, marketing and administrative expenses.
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Research and Development

The Company expenses research and development costs as incurred. Research and development
expense was $23.2 million, $24.5 million and $23.4 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, and
is included in selling, marketing and administrative expenses.

Advertising

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred. Advertising expense included in selling,
marketing and administrative expenses was $137.9 million, $145.4 million and $162.9 miilion
in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Prepaid advertising as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, was
$1.5 million and $4.2 million, respectively.

Computer Software

The Company capitalizes costs associated with software developed or obtained for internal use when
both the preliminary project stage is completed and it is probable that computer software being
developed will be completed and placed in service. Capitalized costs include only (i) external direct
costs of materials and services consumed in developing or obtaining internal-use software, (ii) payroll
and other related costs for employees who are directly associated with and who devote time to the
internal-use software project and (ili) interest costs incurred, when material, while developing
internal-use software. Capitalization of such costs ceases no later than the point at which the project
is substantially complete and ready for its intended purpose.

The unamortized amount of capitalized software as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, was $36.1 million
and $39.3 million, respectively. Software costs are amortized using the straight-line method over the
shorter of five years or the expected life of the software. Accumulated amortization of capitalized
software was $116.5 million and $99.1 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The Company reviews the carrying value of software and development costs for impairment in
accordance with its policy pertaining to the impairment of long-lived assets. Generally, measurement
of impairment occurs when internal use computer software is not expected to provide substantive
service potential, a significant change occurs in the extent or manner in which the software is used
or is expected to be used, a significant change is made or will be made to the software program, or
costs of developing or modifying internal-use computer software significantly exceed the amount
originally expected to develop or modify the software.

Employee Stock Options

The Company currently sponsors two stock-based employee compensation plans, which are described
more fully in Note 16, Stock Compensation Plans. The Company applies the recognition and
measurement principles of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees, and related Interpretations in accounting for those plans. No employee compensation
expense for stock options is reflected in net income as all stock options granted under those plans
had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.
The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share in each period if the
Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 128, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS No. 123”), to stock-based
employee compensation.




For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
In thousands of dollars except per share amounts

Net income, as reported $590,879 $457,584 $403,578
Deduct: Employee stock option expense (15,091) (15,869) (12,421)
Add: Other stock-based employee

compensation expense 2,113 232 —

Net Deduction: Total stock-based employee
compensation expense determined under fair
value method, net of related tax effects (12,978) (15,637) (12,421)

Pro forma net income $577,901 $441,947 $391,157

Earnings per share:
Basic—as reported

Common Stock $ 238 $ 1.78 $ 151
Class B Stock $ 217 $ 161 $ 137
Basic—pro forma
Common Stock $ 2.33 $ 1.72 $ 147
Class B Stock $ 212 $ 156 $ 1.32
Diluted—as reported $ 2.30 $ 173 $ 147
Deduct: Employee stock option expense (0.06) (0.06) (0.05)
Add: Other stock-based employee

compensation expense 0.01 — —

Net deduction: Earnings per share impact of total
stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value method (0.05) (0.06) (0.05)

Diluted—pro forma $ 225 $  1.67 $ 142

The pro forma net income and diluted-pro forma earnings per share increase from other stock-based
employee compensation expense represent the impact of certain performance stock units (“PSUs")
granted in 2003 which require the final award to be paid in shares of the Company’s Common
Stock. The expense for these PSUs under the fair value provisions of SFAS No. 123 would have been
based on grant date fair value. However, actual expense is adjusted for changes in the price of the
Company’s Common Stock based on the guidance in FASB Interpretation No. 28, Accounting for Stock
Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans. As a result, actual expense
in 2004 and 2003 was higher than the pro forma expense calculated under the fair value provisions
of SFAS No. 123 due to the increase in the price of the Company’s Common Stock since the grant date.

The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes option-
pricing model with the following weighted-average assumptions used for grants in 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively: dividend yields of 2.0%, 2.0% and 1.9%; expected volatility of 26%, 28% and 28%;
risk-free interest rates of 3.7%, 3.6% and 4.7%; and expected lives of 6.5 years, 6.4 years and 6.4 years.

In December 2004, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123R, Share-
Based Payment, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 123 and 95 (“SFAS No. 123R”). SFAS
No. 123R addresses the accounting for transactions in which an enterprise exchanges its valuable
equity instruments for employee services. It also addresses transactions in which an enterprise
incurs liabilities that are based on the fair value of the enterprise’s equity instruments or that may
be settled by the issuance of those equity instruments in exchange for employee services. For public
entities, the cost of employee services received in exchange for equity instruments, including
employee stock options, would be measured based on the grant-date fair value of those instruments.
That cost would be recognized as compensation expense over the requisite service period (often the
vesting period). Generally, no compensation cost would be recognized for equity instruments that
do not vest.
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SFAS No. 123R is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2005. SFAS No. 123R will apply to
awards granted, modified, or settled in cash on or after that date. Companies may choose from one
of three methods when transitioning to the new standard, which may include restatement of prior
annual and interim periods. The impact on earnings per share-diluted of expensing stock options will
be dependent upon the method to be used for valuation of stock options and the transition method
determined by the Company. The total impact on an annualized basis could range from approximately
$.06 to $.08 per share-diluted, assuming option grants continue at the same level as in 2004.

2. CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF ACCOUNTING CHANGE

The Company adopted Interpretation No. 46 as of June 30, 2003, resulting in the consolidation of three
off-balance sheet arrangements with special-purpose trusts (“SPTs”) for the leasing of certain warehouse
and distribution facilities. The consolidation of these entities resulted in an adjustment to record the
cumulative effect of the accounting change of approximately $7.4 million, or $.03 per share-diluted, in
the third quarter of 2003 reflecting the after-tax effect of accumulated depreciation for these facilities
from lease inception through June 29, 2003. Additionally, the consolidation of these entities resulted in
a net increase to property, plant and equipment of approximately $107.7 million, with a corresponding
increase to long-term debt of $115.5 million and to other long-term liabilities of $4.4 million, reflecting
the third party equity interest associated with the lease arrangements. Prior to June 30, 2003, expenses
associated with the lease arrangements were classified as rent expense and included in cost of sales in
the Consolidated Statements of Income. Subsequent to the consolidation of these entities, expenses were
classified as interest expense associated with the corresponding long-term debt. An increase in
depreciation expense of $2.6 million in 2003 also resulted from the consolidation of these entities, with
a total of $5.4 million of depreciation expense recorded in 2004.

3. ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES

In December 2004, the Company acquired Mauna Loa Macadamia Nut Corporation (“Mauna Loa”)
for $127.8 million. Mauna Loa is the leading processor and marketer of macadamia snacks with
annual sales of approximately $80 million.

In October 2004, the Company’s Mexican subsidiary, Hershey Mexico, acquired Grupo Lorena, one
of Mexico’s top confectionery companies, for $39.0 million. This business has annual sales of over
$30 million. Included in the acquisition was the Pelén Pelo Rico brand.

In accordance with the purchase method of accounting, the purchase prices of the acquisitions were
allocated to the underlying assets and liabilities at the dates of the acquisition based on their
preliminary estimated respective fair values which may be revised at a later date. The Company is
in the process of obtaining valuations for the acquired net assets. Total liabilities assumed were
$67.8 million. Results subsequent to the dates of acquisition were included in the consolidated
financial statements. Had the results of the acquisitions been included in the consolidated results
for the full year of 2004 the effect would not have been material.

In September 2003, the Company completed the sale of certain gum brands to Farley’s & Sathers
Candy Company, Inc. (“Farley’s & Sathers”) for $20.0 million in cash as part of its business
realignment initiatives. In the third quarter of 2003, the Company recorded a gain on the sale of
$8.3 million before tax, $5.7 million after tax. The gum brands included Fruit Stripe chewing gum,
Rain-blo gum balls and Super Bubble bubble gum.

In June 2002, the Company completed the sale of certain confectionery brands to Farley’s & Sathers for
$12.0 million in cash as part of its 2001 business realignment initiatives. In the second quarter of 2002,
the Company recorded a gain of $4.4 million before tax, $2.8 million after tax, due to the transaction.
The gain was included as an adjustment to the Company’s business realignment and asset impairments
charge. Included in the transaction were the Heide, Jujyfruits, Wunderbeans and Amazin’ Fruit
trademarked confectionery brands, as well as the rights to sell Chuckles branded products, under license.




4. BUSINESS REALIGNMENT INITIATIVES

In July 2003, the Company announced a number of initiatives continuing its value-enhancing
strategy. These initiatives included realigning the sales organization and streamlining the supply
chain by divesting or eliminating certain non-strategic brands and products, and by production
line rationalization.

During 2003, these actions resulted in a net charge of approximately $17.2 million, or $.04 per share-
diluted. The $17.2 million net charge consisted of the write-off of certain inventories of $2.1 million
included in cost of sales, a net business realignment and asset impairments charge of $23.4 million
and an $8.3 million net gain resulting from the divestiture of certain brands.

The net business realignment and asset impairments charge of $23.4 million consisted of early
retirement and involuntary termination costs of $10.0 million, sales office closing and relocation costs
of $7.3 million, fixed asset impairment charges of $5.7 million, equipment removal costs of $.7 million
and a net gain of $.3 million relating to the elimination of non-strategic brands and products. In
determining the fixed asset impairment losses, fair value was estimated based on the expected sales
proceeds. Cash payments during the third and fourth quarters of 2003 reduced the liability balance,
primarily relating to the aforementioned charges for employee termination, sales office closing and
relocation costs, to $8.8 million as of December 31, 2003. Cash payments during 2004 reduced the
liability balance to $3.9 million as of December 31, 2004.

In late October 2001, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a plan to improve the efficiency
and profitability of the Company’s operations. The plan included asset management improvements,
product line rationalization, supply chain efficiency improvements and a voluntary work force
reduction program (collectively, the “2001 business realignment initiatives”). Total costs for the 2001
business realignment initiatives recorded in 2002 and 2001 were $312.4 million.

During 2002, charges to cost of sales and business realignment and asset impairments were recorded
totaling $34.0 million before tax. The total included a charge to cost of sales of $6.4 million associated
with the relocation of manufacturing equipment and a net business realignment and asset
impairments charge of $27.6 million. Components of the net $27.6 million pre-tax charge included
a $28.8 millien charge for pension settlement losses resulting from a voluntary work force reduction
program (“VWRP”), a $3.0 million charge for pension curtailment losses and special termination
benefits resulting from manufacturing plant closures, a $.1 million charge relating to involuntary
termination benefits and a $.1 million charge relating to the realignment of the domestic sales
organization, partially offset by a $4.4 million favorable adjustment reflecting higher than estimated
proceeds from the sale of certain assets. The major components of the 2001 business realignment
initiatives were completed as of December 31, 2002. Remaining transactions primarily pertain to the
sale of certain real estate associated with the closure of facilities, as discussed below.

Rationalization plans included the sale or exit of certain product lines, the discontinuance of certain
non-chocolate confectionery products and the realignment of the Company’s sales organizations.
Costs associated with the realignment of the sales organizations related primarily to sales office
closings and terminating the use of certain sales brokers. During 2002, sales offices were closed as
planned and the use of certain sales brokers was discontinued which resulted in an additional charge
of $.1 million. During the second quarter of 2002, the sale of a group of the Company’s non-chocolate
confectionery candy brands to Farley’s & Sathers was completed. Included in the transaction were
the Heide, Jujyfruits, Wunderbeans and Amazin’ Fruit trademarked confectionery brands, as well as
the rights to sell Chuckles branded products, under license. Proceeds of $12.0 million associated with
the sale of certain confectionery brands to Farley’s & Sathers exceeded the 2001 estimates which
resulted in a $4.4 million favorable adjustment. The sale of certain confectionery brands to Farley’s
& Sathers resulted in the closure of a manufacturing facility in New Brunswick, New Jersey which
was being held for sale as of December 31, 2002. The manufacturing facility was sold in May 2003.
Also during the second quarter of 2002, the Company discontinued and subsequently licensed the
sale of its aseptically packaged drink products in the United States. Net sales for these brands were
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$11.6 million in 2002. An additional charge of $.7 million relating to pension curtailment losses and
special termination benefits associated with the closure of the facility was recorded in 2002.

To improve supply chain efficiency and profitability, three manufacturing facilities, a distribution center
and certain other facilities were planned to be closed. These included manufacturing facilities in Denver,
Colorado; Pennsburg, Pennsylvania; and Palmyra, Pennsylvania and a distribution center and certain
minor facilities located in Oakdale, California. During the first quarter of 2002, the manufacturing facility
in Palmyra, Pennsylvania was closed and additional costs of $.1 million were recorded, as incurred,
relating to retention payments. During the second quarter, operations utilizing the distribution center
in QOakdale, California ceased. The manufacturing facilities in Denver, Colorado and Pennsburg,
Pennsylvania were closed in the fourth quarter of 2002. An additional charge of $2.3 million relating to
pension curtailment losses and special termination benefits associated with the facility closures was
recorded in 2002. The Denver, Colorado and the Pennsburg, Pennsylvania facilities were being held for
sale as of December 31, 2004. The Denver, Colorado facility was sold in February 2005.

In October 2001, the Company offered the VWRP to certain eligible employees in the United States,
Canada and Puerto Rico in order to reduce staffing levels and improve profitability. The VWRP
consisted of an early retirement program which provided enhanced pension, post-retirement and
certain supplemental benefits and an enhanced mutual separation program that provided increased
severance and temporary medical benefits. A reduction of approximately 500 employees occurred
during 2002 as a result of the VWRP. Additional pensicn settlement costs of $28.8 million were
recorded in 2002, principally associated with lump sum payments of pension benefits.

5. COMMITMENTS

The Company has entered into certain obligations for the purchase of raw materials. Purchase
obligations primarily reflect forward contracts for the purchase of raw materials from third-party
brokers and dealers to minimize the effect of future price fluctuations. Total obligations for each year
are comprised of fixed price contracts for the purchase of commodities and unpriced contracts that
have been valued using market prices as of December 31, 2004. The cost of commodities associated
with the unpriced contracts is variable as market prices change over future periods. However, the
variability of such costs is mitigated to the extent of the Company’s futures price cover for those
periods. Accordingly, increases or decreases in market prices will be offset by gains or losses on
commodity futures contracts to the extent that the unpriced contracts are hedged as of December 31,
2004 and in future periods. Taking delivery of the specific commodities for use in the manufacture
of finished goods satisfies these obligations. For each of the three years in the period ended
December 31, 2004, such obligations were fully satisfied by taking delivery of and making payment
for the specific commodities.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had entered into purchase agreements with various suppliers.
Subject to the Company’s quality standards being met, the purchase obligations covered by these
agreements aggregated approximately $796.5 million in 2005, $291.7 million in 2006, $33.1 million
in 2007, $7.5 million in 2008 and $3.7 million in 2009.

As previously discussed in Note 2, Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change, the Company adopted
Interpretation No. 46 as of June 30, 2003, resulting in the consolidation of the three off-balance sheet
arrangements with SPTs. The consolidation of these entities resulted in an adjustment to record the
cumulative effect of the accounting change of approximately $7.4 million, or $.03 per share-diluted, in
the third quarter of 2003, reflecting the after-tax effect of accumulated depreciation for these facilities
from lease inception through June 29, 2003. Additionally, the consolidation of these entities resulted in
a net increase to property, plant and equipment of approximately $107.7 million, with a corresponding
increase to long-term debt of $115.5 million and to other long-term liabilities of $4.4 million, reflecting
the third party equity interest associated with the lease arrangements. Prior to June 30, 2003, expenses
associated with the lease arrangements were classified as rent expense and included in cost of sales in
the Consolidated Statements of Income. Subsequent to the consolidation of these entities, expenses
were classified as interest expense associated with the corresponding long-term debt. An increase in
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depreciation expense of $2.6 million in 2003 also resulted from the consolidation of these entities, with
a total of $5.4 million in depreciation expense recorded in 2004.

During 1999 and 2000 the Company entered into off-balance sheet arrangements for the leasing of
certain warehouse and distribution facilities. These off-balance sheet arrangements enabled the
Company to lease these facilities under more favorable terms than other leasing alternatives. The
lease arrangements are with SPTs whereby the Company leases warehouse and distribution facilities
in Redlands, California; Atlanta, Georgia; and Hershey, Pennsylvania, as discussed below. The SPTs
were formed to facilitate the acquisition and subsequent leasing of the facilities to the Company. The
SPTs financed the acquisition of the facilities by issuing notes and equity certificates to independent
third-party financial institutions. The independent third-party financial institutions that hold the
equity certificates are the owners of the SPTs. The owners of the SPTs have made substantive residual
equity capital investments in excess of 3%, which will be at risk during the entire term of each lease.
Accordingly, the Company did not consolidate the SPTs prior to June 30, 2003 because not all of the
conditions for consolidation had been met.

In December 2000, the Company entered into a lease agreement with the owner of the warehouse
and distribution facility in Redlands, California. The lease term was approximately ten years, with
occupancy to begin upon completion of the facility. The lease agreement contained an option for the
Company to purchase the facility. In January 2002, the Company assigned its right to purchase the
facility to an SPT that in turn purchased the completed facility and leased it to the Company under
a new lease agreement. The lease term is five years, with up to four renewal periods of five years
each with the consent of the lessor. The cost incurred by the SPT to acquire the facility, including
land, was $40.1 million.

In October 2000, the Company entered into a lease agreement with an SPT for the leasing of a
warehouse and distribution facility near Atlanta, Georgia. The lease term is five years, with up to
four renewal periods of five years each with the consent of the lessor. The cost incurred by the SPT
to acquire the facility, including land, was $18.2 million.

In July 1999, the Company entered into a lease agreement with an SPT for the construction and
leasing of a warehouse and distribution facility located on land owned by the Company near Hershey,
Pennsylvania. Under the agreement, the lessor paid construction costs totaling $61.7 million. The
lease term is six years, including the one-year construction period, with up to four renewal periods
of five years each with the consent of the lessor.

Aside from the residual guarantees and instrument guarantees associated with the individual
leasing arrangements, as discussed below, the Company has provided no other guarantees or
capitalization of these entities. The Company has not collateralized the obligations in connection with
these leases. The Company has no obligations with respect to refinancing of the lessor’s debt, would
incur no significant penalties that would result in the reasonable assurance of continuation of the
leases and has no significant guarantees other than the residual and instrument guarantees
discussed below. There are no other material commitments or contingent liabilities associated with
the leasing arrangements. The Company’s transactions with the SPTs are limited to the lease
agreements. The Company does not anticipate entering into any other arrangements involving SPEs.

The leases include substantial residual guarantees by the Company for a significant amount of the
financing and options to purchase the facilities at original cost. Pursuant to instrument guarantees,
in the event of a default under the lease agreements, the Company guaranteed to the note holders
and certificate holders payment in an amount equal to all sums then due under the leases.

There are no penalties or other disincentives under the lease agreements if the Company decides not
to renew any of the three leases. The terms for each renewal period under each of the three lease
arrangements are identical to the initial terms and do not represent bargain lease terms.

If the Company were to exercise its options to purchase the three facilities at original cost at the end
of the respective initial lease terms, the Company could purchase the facilities for a total of
approximately $120.0 million, $79.9 million for the Pennsyivania and Georgia facilities in 2005 and
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$40.1 million for the California facility in 2007. If the Company chooses not to renew the leases or
purchase the assets at the end of the lease terms, the Company is obligated under the residual
guarantees for approximately $103.2 million in total for the three leases. Additionally, the Company
is obligated to re-market each property on the lessor’s behalf and, upon sale, distribute a portion of
the proceeds to the note holders and certificate holders up to an amount equal to the remaining debt
and equity certificates and to pay closing costs. If the Company chooses not to renew or purchase the
assets at the end of the lease terms, the Company does not anticipate a material disruption to
operations, since such facilities are not unique, facilities with similar racking and storage capabilities
are available in each of the areas where the facilities are located, there are no significant leasehold
improvements that would be impaired, there would be no adverse tax consequences, the financing
of replacement facilities would not be material to the Company’s cash flows and costs related to
relocation would not be significant to income.

The facility located near Hershey, Pennsylvania was constructed on land owned by the Company. The
Company entered into a ground lease with the lessor, an SPT. The initial term of the ground lease
extends to the date that is the later of (i) the date the facility lease is no longer in effect, or (ii) the
date when the Company satisfies the residual guarantee associated with the lease. An additional
term for the ground lease begins upon the end of the initial ground lease term and ends upon the
later of the date all sums required to be paid under the lease agreement are paid in full and the 75th
anniversary of the ground lease commencement date. If the Company chooses not to renew the
building lease or purchase the building, it must re-market the building on the lessor’s behalf subject
to the ground lease, which will continue in force until the earlier of the date all sums required to be
paid under the lease agreement are paid in full and the 75th anniversary of the ground lease inception
date. The lease of the warehouse and distribution facility does not include any provisions that would
require the Company to sell the land to the SPT.

Rent expense was $29.1 million, $32.6 million and $34.6 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.
Rent expense pertains to all operating leases, which were principally related to certain
administrative buildings, warehouse and distribution facilities and transportation equipment.

Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases with a remaining term in
excess of one year as of December 31, 2004, totaled $61.4 million (2005—$12.6 million; 2006—$12.2
million; 2007—$11.3 million; 2008—$8.7 million; 2009—$5.0 million; 2010 and beyond—$11.6 million).

6. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

The Company adopted SFAS No. 133, as amended, as of January 1, 2001. SFAS No. 133, as amended,
requires the Company to recognize all derivative instruments as either assets or liabilities in the
balance sheet at fair value. The accounting for the change in fair value of the derivative depends on
whether the instrument gualifies for and has been designated as a hedging relationship and on the
type of hedging relationship. There are three types of hedging relationships: a cash flow hedge, a fair
value hedge and a hedge of foreign currency exposure of a net investment in a foreign operation. The
designation is based upon the exposure being hedged. All derivative instruments currently utilized
by the Company are designated and accounted for as cash flow hedges.

Objectives, Strategies and Accounting Policies Associated with
Derivative Instrumemnts

The Company utilizes certain derivative instruments, from time to time, including interest rate
swaps, foreign currency forward exchange contracts and options, and commodities futures contracts,
to manage variability in cash flows associated with interest rate, currency exchange rate and
commodity market price risk exposures. The interest rate swaps and foreign currency contracts are
entered into for periods consistent with related underlying exposures and do not constitute positions
independent of those exposures. Commodities futures contracts are entered into for varying periods,
are intended to be, and are effective as hedges of market price risks associated with anticipated raw
material purchases, energy requirements and transportation costs. If it is probable that hedged
forecasted transactions will not occur either by the end of the originally specified time period or within
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an additional two-month period of time, derivative gains and losses reported in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) on the Consolidated Balance Sheets are immediately reclassified into
earnings. Gains and losses on terminated derivatives designated as hedges are accounted for as part
of the originally hedged transaction. Gains and losses on derivatives designated as hedges of items
that mature or are sold or terminated, are recognized in income in the same period as the originally
hedged transaction was anticipated to affect earnings. The Company utilizes derivative instruments
for hedging purposes only and does not hold or issue derivative instruments for trading purposes.
In entering into these contracts, the Company has assumed the risk that might arise from the possible
inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their contracts. The Company does not expect any
significant losses as a result of counterparty defaults.

Interest Rate Swaps

In order to minimize its financing costs and to manage interest rate exposure, the Company, from
time to time, enters into interest rate swap agreements. In October 2003, the Company entered
into interest rate swap agreements to effectively convert interest payments on long-term debt from
fixed to variable rates. Interest payments on $200.0 million of 6.7% Notes due in October 2005 and
$150.0 million of 6.95% Notes due in March 2007 were converted from the respective fixed rates to
variable rates based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR”). In March 2004, the Company
terminated these agreements, resulting in cash receipts totaling $5.2 million, with a corresponding
increase to the carrying value of the long-term debt. This increase is being amortized over the
remaining term of the respective long-term debt as a reduction to interest expense.

In February 2001, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements that effectively
converted variable-interest-rate payments on certain leases from a variable to a fixed rate. Payments
on leases associated with the financing of construction of a warehouse and distribution facility near
Hershey, Pennsylvania for $61.7 million and the financing of the purchase of a warehouse and
distribution facility near Atlanta, Georgia for $18.2 million are variable based on LIBOR. Such
variable payments are forecasted transactions as defined by SFAS No. 133, as amended. The interest
rate swap agreements effectively converted the variable-interest-rate payments on the leases from
LIBOR to a fixed rate of 6.1%. Future changes in LIBOR are offset by changes in the value of the
interest rate swap agreements, resulting in interest expense at the fixed rate of 6.1%.

As previously discussed in Note 2, Cumulative Effect of Accounting Change, the Company adopted
Interpretation No. 46 as of June 30, 2003, resulting in the consolidation of the Company’s three off-
balance sheet arrangements with SPTs for the leasing of certain warehouse and distribution facilities.
The consolidation of those entities resulted in the recording of long-term debt of $59.4 million and
$17.5 million associated with the warehouse and distribution facilities near Hershey and Atlanta,
respectively, corresponding to the aforementioned interest rate swap agreements. As of June 30, 2003,
the Company designated a new hedging relationship contemporaneous with the discontinuance of the
pre-existing hedging relationship due to the consolidation of the two corresponding SPTs. Prospectively,
beginning on June 30, 2003, the interest rate differential on the interest rate swap agreements was
classified as an adjustment to interest expense.

The variable to fixed interest rate swap agreements qualify as cash flow hedges and the notional
amounts, interest rates and terms of the swap agreements are consistent with the underlying lease
agreements they are intended to hedge and, therefore, there is no hedge ineffectiveness. Gains and
losses on the interest rate swap agreements are included in other comprehensive income and are
recognized in cost of sales in the same period as the hedged interest payments affect earnings. The
fair value of variable to fixed interest rate swap agreements was a liability of $1.7 million and
$5.2 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and was included on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets as other long-term liabilities, with the offset reflected in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes.

Cash flows from interest rate swap agreements are classified as net cash provided from operating
activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. The Company’s risk related to the interest
rate swap agreements is limited to the cost of replacing the agreements at prevailing market rates.
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Foreign Exchange Forward Contracts and Options

The Company enters into foreign exchange forward contracts and options to hedge transactions
primarily related to firm commitments to purchase or forecasted purchases of equipment, certain raw
materials and finished goods denominated in foreign currencies, and to hedge payment of forecasted
intercompany transactions with its subsidiaries outside the United States. These contracts reduce
currency risk from exchange rate movements. Foreign currency price risks are hedged generally for
periods from 3 to 24 months.

Foreign exchange forward contracts and options are intended to be and are effective as hedges of
identifiable foreign currency commitments or forecasted transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. Since there is a direct relationship between the foreign currency derivatives and the
foreign currency denomination of the transactions, foreign currency derivatives are highly effective
in hedging cash flows related to transactions denominated in the corresponding foreign currencies.
These contracts meet the criteria for cash flow hedge accounting treatment and, accordingly, gains
and losses are included in other comprehensive income and are recognized in cost of sales or selling,
marketing and administrative expense in the same period that the hedged items affect earnings. In
entering into these contracts the Company has assumed the risk that might arise from the possible
inability of counterparties to meet the terms of their contracts. The Company does not expect any
significant losses as a result of counterparty defaults.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts and options was estimated by obtaining quotes for
future contracts with similar terms, adjusted where necessary for maturity differences. The fair value
of foreign exchange forward contracts and options was an asset of $4.4 million and $1.6 million as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, included on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as other current
assets with the offset reflected in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of income taxes.
Cash flows from foreign exchange forward contracts and options designated as hedges of foreign currency
price risks associated with the purchase of equipment are classified as net cash flows (used by) provided
from investing activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Cash flows from other foreign
exchange forward contracts and options are classified as net cash provided from operating activities.

Commodities Futures Contracts

In connection with the purchasing of cocoa, sugar, corn sweeteners, natural gas, fuel oil and certain
dairy products for anticipated manufacturing requirements and to hedge transportation costs, the
Company enters into commodities futures contracts as deemed appropriate to reduce the effect of
price fluctuations. Commodity price risks are hedged generally for periods from 3 to 24 months.
Commodities futures contracts meet the hedge criteria and are accounted for as cash flow hedges.
Accordingly, gains and losses are included in other comprehensive income and are recognized ratably
in cost of sales in the same period that the hedged raw material manufacturing requirements are
recorded in cost of sales.

In order to qualify as a hedge of commodity price risk, it must be demonstrated that the changes in fair
value of the commodities futures contracts are highly effective in hedging price risks associated with
commodity purchases for manufacturing requirements and with transportation costs. The assessment
of hedge effectiveness for commodities futures is performed on a quarterly basis by calculating the change
in switch values relative to open commodities futures contracts being held and the number of futures
contracts needed to price raw material purchases for anticipated manufacturing requirements and to
hedge transportation costs. Tracking changes in basis differentials as discussed below also monitors
effectiveness. The prices of commodities futures contracts reflect delivery to the same locations where
the Company takes delivery of the physical commodities and, therefore, there is no ineffectiveness
resulting from differences in location between the derivative and the hedged item. Commodities futures
contracts have been deemed to be highly effective in hedging price risks associated with corresponding
raw material purchases for manufacturing requirements and transportation costs.

Because of the rollover strategy used for commodities futures contracts, which is required by futures
market conditions, some ineffectiveness may result in hedging forecasted manufacturing requirements
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as futures contracts are switched from nearby contract positions to contract positions which are required
to fix the price of raw material purchases for manufacturing requirements. Hedge ineffectiveness may
also result from variability in basis differentials associated with the purchase of raw materials for
manufacturing requirements. Hedge ineffectiveness is measured on a quarterly basis and the ineffective

portion of gains or losses on commodities futures is recorded currently in cost of sales in accordance with
SFAS No. 133, as amended.

Exchange traded futures contracts are used to fix the price of physical forward purchase contracts.
Cash transfers reflecting changes in the value of futures contracts (unrealized gains and losses) are
made on a daily basis and are included in accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), net of
income taxes, on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Such cash transfers will be offset by higher or
lower cash requirements for payment of invoice prices of raw materials, energy requirements and
transportation costs in the future. Cash flows from commodities futures contracts are classified as
net cash provided from operating activities on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows. Futures
contracts being held in excess of the amount required to fix the price of unpriced physical forward
contracts are effective as hedges of anticipated manufacturing requirements for each commodity.
Physical commodity forward purchase contracts meet the SFAS No. 133, as amended, definition of
“normal purchases and sales” and, therefore, are not considered derivative instruments.

The net after-tax impact of cash flow hedging derivatives on comprehensive income (loss) reflected
a $16.3 million gain in 2004, a $20.2 million loss in 2003 and a $106.7 million gain in 2002. Net gains
and losses on cash flow hedging derivatives were primarily associated with commodities futures
contracts. Reclassification adjustments from accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) to
income, for gains or losses on cash flow hedging derivatives, were reflected in cost of sales,
Reclassification of gains of $26.1 million, $51.9 million, and $17.9 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively, were associated with commodities futures contracts. Gains on commodities futures
contracts recognized in cost of sales as a result of hedge ineffectiveness were approximately
$.4 million, $.4 million and $1.5 million before tax for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. No gains or losses on cash flow hedging derivatives were reclassified from
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) into income as a result of the discontinuance of a
hedge because it became probable that a hedged forecasted transaction would not occur. There were
no components of gains or losses on cash flow hedging derivatives that were recognized in income
because such components were excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness. As of
December 31, 2004, the amount of net after-tax gains on cash flow hedging derivatives, including
foreign exchange forward contracts and options, interest rate swap agreements and commodities
futures contracts, expected to be reclassified into earnings in the next twelve months was
approximately $18.7 million, which was primarily associated with commodities futures contracts.

7. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A summary of the components of comprehensive income is as follows:

Pre-Tax Tax (Expense) After-Tax
For the year ended December 31, 2004 Amount Benefit Amount
In thousands of dollars
Net income $590,879
Other comprehensive income (logs):
Foreign currency translation adjustments $ 21,229 $ —_ 21,229
Minimum pension liability adjustments, net of tax 81 (32) 49
Cash flow hedges:
Gains (losses) on cash flow hedging derivatives 25,571 9,314) 16,257
Reclassification adjustments (41,222) 15,081 (26,141)
Total other comprehensive income $ 5,659 $ 5,735 11,394
Comprehensive income $602,273
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Pre-Tax Tax (Expense) After-Tax
For the year ended December 31, 2003 Amount Benefit Amount
In thousands of dollars
Net income $457,584
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments $ 40,938 $ — 40,938
Minimum pension liability adjustments, net of tax (1,565) 623 (942)
Cash flow hedges:
Gains (losses) on cash flow hedging derivatives (31,971) 11,732 (20,239)
Reclassification adjustments (82,012) 30,099 (51,913)
Total other comprehensive loss $(74,610) $42,454 (32,156)
Comprehensive income $425,428
Pre-Tax Tax (Expense) After-Tax
For the year ended December 31, 2002 Amount Benefit Amount
In thousands of doilars
Net income $403,578
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Foreign currency translation adjustments $(16,530) $ — (16,530)
Minimum pension liability adjustments, net of tax 58,261 (23,362) 34,899
Cash flow hedges:
Gains (losses) on cash flow hedging derivatives 168,463 (61,715) 106,748
Reclassification adjustments (28,300) 10,386 (17,914)
Total other comprehensive income $181,894 $(74,691) 107,203
Comprehensive income $510,781

Comprehensive income is included on the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Equity. The
components of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) as shown on the Consolidated Balance

Sheets are as follows:

December 31, 2004 2003

In thousands of dellars

Foreign currency translation adjustments $(16,908) $(38,137)
Minimum pension liability adjustments (1,129) (1,178)
Cash flow hedges 18,346 28,230
Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ 309 $(11,085)

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts of financial instruments including cash and cash equivalents, accounts
receivable, accounts payable and short-term debt approximated fair value as of December 31, 2004
and 2003, because of the relatively short maturity of these instruments. The carrying value of long-
term debt, including the current portion, was $969.6 million as of December 31, 2004, compared to
a fair value of $1,094.3 million based on quoted market prices for the same or similar debt issues.
The carrying value of long-term debt, including the current portion, was $969.0 million as of
December 31, 2003, compared to a fair value of $1,100.9 million,

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had foreign exchange forward contracts and options maturing
in 2005 and 2006 to purchase $103.1 million in foreign currency, primarily Australian dollars,
Canadian dollars and euros, and to sell $30.8 million in foreign currency, primarily Mexican pesos
and Japanese yen, at contracted forward rates.
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As of December 31, 2003, the Company had foreign exchange forward contracts and options maturing
in 2004 and 2005 to purchase $57.7 million in foreign currency, primarily Canadian dollars, and to
sell $18.0 million in foreign currency, primarily Japanese yen, at contracted forward rates.

The fair value of foreign exchange forward contracts and options is estimated by obtaining quotes
for future contracts with similar terms, adjusted where necessary for maturity differences. The fair
value of foreign exchange forward contracts and options included in prepaid expenses and other
current assets was $4.4 million and $1.6 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
Company does not hold or issue financial instruments for trading purposes.

In order to minimize its financing costs and to manage interest rate exposure, the Company, from
time to time, enters into interest rate swap agreements. In October 2003, the Company entered
into interest rate swap agreements to effectively convert interest payments on long-term debt from
fixed to variable rates. Interest payments on $200.0 million of 6.7% Notes due in October 2005 and
$150.0 million of 6.95% Notes due in March 2007 were converted from the respective fixed rates to
variable rates based on LIBOR. In March 2004, the Company terminated these agreements, resulting
in cash receipts totaling $5.2 million, with a corresponding increase to the carrying value of the long-
term debt. This increase is being amortized over the remaining term of the respective long-term debt
as a reduction to interest expense.

In February 2001, the Company entered into interest rate swap agreements that effectively
converted variable-interest-rate payments on certain leases from a variable to a fixed rate of 6.1%.
The fair value of variable to fixed interest rate swaps was a liability of $1.7 million and $5.2 million
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

9. INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest expense, net consisted of the following:

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002

In thousands of dollars

Long-term debt and lease obligations $66,005 $66,283 $65,183
Short-term debt 4,511 935 359
Capitalized interest (2,597) (1,953) (1,144)
Interest expense, gross 87,919 65,265 64,398
Interest income (1,386) (1,736) (3,676)
Interest expense, net $66,533 $63,529 $60,722

16. SHORT-TERM DEBT

Generally, the Company’s short-term borrowings are in the form of commercial paper or bank loans
with an original maturity of three months or less. In November 2004, the Company entered into a
Five Year Credit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”) with the banks, financial institutions and other
institutional lenders listed on the respective signature pages thereof (“Lenders”), Citibank, N.A., as
administrative agent for the Lenders (as defined therein), Bank of America, N.A., as syndication
agent, UBS Loan Finance LLC, as documentation agent, and Citigroup Global Markets, Inc. and
Banc of America Securities LLC, as joint lead arrangers and joint book managers. The Credit
Agreement establishes an unsecured revolving credit facility under which the Company may borrow
up to $900 million with the option to increase borrowings by an additional $600 million with the
concurrence of the Lenders. Funds borrowed may be used for general corporate purposes, including
commercial paper backstop and business acquisitions. Advances other than competitive bid advances
may be repaid without penalty at any time prior to the last day of the Agreement. Competitive bid
advances must be paid at maturity, and may not be prepaid. The Credit Agreement contains a
financial covenant whereby the ratio of (a) pre-tax income from continuing operations from the most
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recent four fiscal quarters to (b) consolidated interest expense for the most recent four fiscal quarters
may not be less than 2.0 to 1 at the end of each fiscal quarter. The Credit Agreement contains
customary representations and warranties and events of default. Payment of outstanding advances
may be accelerated, at the option of the Lenders, should the Company default in its obligations under
the Credit Agreement.

With the execution of the Credit Agreement in November 2004, short-term and long-term committed
credit facilities previously maintained by the Company in the United States (together the “Prior
Facilities”) were terminated. The Prior Facilities consisted of the following: (x) Amended and
Restated Five-Year Credit Agreement dated as of November 27, 2001 ($200 million) among the
Company, the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders listed on the signature
pages thereof, and Citibank, N.A. as administrative agent, Bank of America, N.A. as syndication
agent, and Salomon Smith Barney Inc. and Banc America Securities LLC, as joint lead arrangers
and joint book managers; (y) Amended and Restated 364-Day Credit Agreement dated as of
November 27, 2001 (as subsequently amended and renewed November 26, 2002 and November 25,
2003) ($200 million) among the Company, the banks, financial institutions and other institutional
lenders listed on the signature pages thereof, and Citibank, N.A. as administrative agent, Bank of
America, N.A. as syndication agent, and Salomon Smith Barney Inc. and Banc America Securities
LLC, as joint lead arrangers and joint book managers; and (z) 364-Day Credit Agreement dated as
of July 28, 2004 (3500 million) among the Company, the banks, financial institutions and other
institutional lenders listed on the signature pages thereof, and Citibank, N.A. as administrative
agent, Bank of America, N.A. as syndication agent, and Citigroup Global Markets Inc. and Banc
America Securities LLC, as joint lead arrangers and joint book managers. The representations and
warranties, events of default, financial covenant and other terms of the Prior Facilities are
substantially similar to the provisions contained in the new Credit Agreement.

The Company also maintains lines of credit with domestic and international commercial banks,
under which it could borrow in various currencies up to approximately $60.3 million and $43.6 million
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, at the lending banks’ prime commercial interest rates
or lower. The Company had short-term foreign bank loans against its lines of credit of $19.2 million
and $12.0 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The maximum amount of the Company’s short-term borrowings during 2004 was $571.3 million
reflecting commercial paper borrowings primarily for the funding of seasonal working capital
requirements, the Grupo Lorena and Mauna Loa acquisitions and share repurchases, including the
purchase of Common Stock from the Hershey Trust Company, as Trustee for the benefit of Milton
Hershey School (the “Milton Hershey School Trust”). The weighted-average interest rates on short-
term borrowings outstanding as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 were 2.3% and 0.3%, respectively.

The credit facility and lines of credit were supported by commitment fee arrangements. The average
fee during 2004 was approximately 0.1% per annum of the commitment. The Company is in
compliance with all covenants included in the Credit Agreement. There were no significant
compensating balance agreements that legally restricted these funds.

As a result of maintaining a consolidated cash management system, the Company maintains
overdraft positions in certain accounts at several banks. The Company has the contractual right of
offset for the accounts with overdrafts. Such overdrafts, which were reflected as a reduction to
cash and cash equivalents, were $32.2 million and $27.1 million as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, respectively.




11. LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consisted of the following:

December 31, 2004 2003
In thousands of dollars

6.7% Notes due 2005 $201,187 $201,058
6.95% Notes due 2007 152,184 151,136
6.95% Notes due 2012 150,000 150,000
8.8% Debentures due 2021 100,000 100,000
7.2% Debentures due 2027 250,000 250,000
Obligations associated with consolidation of lease arrangements 115,544 115,544
Other obligations, net of unamortized debt discount 730 1,238
Total long-term debt 969,645 968,976
Less—current portion 279,043 477
Long-term portion $690,602 $968,499

Maturities of obligations associated with consolidation of lease arrangements are $76.8 million in
2005 and $38.7 million in 2007. Aggregate annual maturities during the next five years are: 2005,
$279.0 million; 2006, $.1 million; 2007, $191.0 million; 2008, $.1 million; and 2009, $.2 million. The
Company’s debt is principally unsecured and of equal priority. None of the debt is convertible into
stock of the Company. The Company is in compliance with all covenants included in the related
debt agreements.

12, INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes was as follows:

For the years ended December 31, : 2004 2003 2002
In thousands of dollars
Current:
Federal $279,127 $207,373 $ 84,312
State 43,206 22,178 11,801
Foreign 4,363 (571) 57
Current provision for income taxes 326,696 228,980 96,170
Deferred:
Federal (568,493) 22,416 119,752
State (28,586) 6,658 14,115
Foreign 5,148 9,821 3,950
Deferred income tax (benefit) provision (81,931) 38,895 137,817
Total provision for income taxes $244,765 $267.875 $233,987

A settlement of Federal tax audits for the 1899 and 2000 tax years, as well as the resolution of a
number of state tax audit issues were concluded during the second quarter of 2004. Based upon the
results of the audits, the income tax contingency reserves were adjusted resulting in a reduction of
income tax reserves by $73.7 million, reflecting a reduction of the provision for income taxes by $61.1
million and a reduction to goodwill of $12.6 million. The income tax contingency reserve adjustments
related primarily to the deductibility and timing of certain expenses, interest on potential
assessments, and acquisition and divestiture matters.
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Deferred taxes reflect temporary differences between the tax basis and financial statement carrying
value of assets and liabilities. The tax effects of the significant temporary differences that comprised
the deferred tax assets and liabilities were as follows:

December 31, 2004 2003
In thousands of dollars
Deferred tax assets:

Post-retirement benefit obligations $103,959 $104,175
Accrued expenses and other reserves 111,689 98,012
Accrued trade promotion reserves 27,220 16,679
Other 27,510 25,330
Total deferred tax assets 270,378 244,196
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment, net 289,410 272,173
Pension 128,605 137,658
Inventories 34,314 44,020
Other 100,435 154,649
Total deferred tax liabilities 552,764 608,500
Net deferred tax liabilities $282,386 $364,304
Included in:
Current deferred tax assets, net $(46,503) $(13,285)
Non-current deferred tax liabilities, net 328,889 377,589
Net deferred tax liabilities $282,386 $364,304

Additional information on income tax benefits and expenses related to components of accumulated
other comprehensive income (loss) is provided in Note 7, Comprehensive Income.

The following table reconciles the Federal statutory income tax rate with the Company’s effective
income tax rate:

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002

Federal statutory income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Increase (reduction) resulting from:
State income taxes, net of Federal income

tax benefits 2.6 2.6 2.6
Settlement of prior years’ tax audits (7.3) — —
Puerto Rico operations (4) (.8) (1.0)
Other, net _(.6) (2 1
Effective income tax rate 29.3% 36.6% 36.7%

Included with the purchase of the Nabisco gum and mint business in December 2000, was a U.S,
Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 936 company with a subsidiary operating in Las Piedras,
Puerto Rico. The operating income of this subsidiary is subject to a lower income tax rate in both the
United States and Puerto Rico. The U.S. IRC Section 936 incentive is scheduled to expire on
December 31, 2005.




13. PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

The Company’s policy is to fund domestic pension liabilities in accordance with the minimum and
maximum limits imposed by the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA”) and
Federal income tax laws, respectively. Non-domestic pension liabilities are funded in accordance with
applicable local laws and regulations. Plan assets are invested in a broadly diversified portfolio
consisting primarily of domestic and international common stocks and fixed income securities. The
Company uses a December 31 measurement date for the majority of its plans. Other benefits include
health care and life insurance provided by the Company under two post-retirement benefit plans.

On December 8, 2003, the President of the United States signed into law the Medicare Prescription
Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the “2003 Medicare Act”). The 2003 Medicare
Act introduced a prescription drug benefit under Medicare (“Medicare Part D”) as well as a Federal
subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least
actuarially equivalent to Medicare Part D. The Company believes that certain prescription drug
benefits offered under post-retirement health care plans will qualify for the subsidy under Medicare
Part D.

A summary of the changes in benefit obligations and plan assets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003
is presented below:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
December 31, 2004 2003 2004 2003
In thousands of dollars
Change in benefits ocbligation
Benefits obligation at beginning of year $893,159 $816,164 $ 328,263 $ 328,884
Service cost 43,296 39,096 4,898 3,712
Interest cost 52,551 50,951 18,335 18,653
Amendments 3,541 5,095 1,479 —
Actuarial loss (gain) 34,826 38,643 (2,748) (3,935)
Special termination benefits -_— 3,408 — 539
Settlements . (109) — —
Cther 6,093 10,053 775 1,172
Benefits paid (61,393) (70,142) (22,203) (20,762)
Benefits obligation at end of year 972,073 893,159 328,799 328,263

Change in plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 927,658 716,888 — —

Actual return on plan assets 95,158 152,793 — —
Employer contribution 8,020 120,252 22,203 20,762
Settlements paid — (109) — —
Other 4,602 7,976 — —
Benefits paid (61,393) (70,142) (22,203) (20,762)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 974,045 927,658 — —
Funded status 1,972 34,499 (328,799)  (328,263)
Unrecognized transition asset 444 583 - —
Unrecognized prior service cost 40,379 40,853 5,155) (8,246)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 243,859 236,140 71,716 76,904
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,878) (1,959) — —
Prepaid (Accrued) benefits cost $284,776  $310,116  $(262,238) $(259,605)

The impact of the 2003 Medicare Act, included in actuarial loss {gain), reduced the accumulated post-
retirement benefits obligation by approximately $25.2 million as of December 31, 2004, which was
substantially offset by the impact of the lower discount rate assumption.
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Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligation as of December 31:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
2004 2003 2004 2003
Discount rate 5.7% 6.0% 5.7% 6.0%
Rate of increase in compensation levels 4.9 4.9 N/A N/A

For measurement purposes as of December 31, 2004, a 12.0% annual rate of increase in the per capita
cost of covered health care benefits was assumed for 2005, grading down to 5.25% by 2010. For
measurement purposes as of December 31, 2003, an 8% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost
of covered health care benefits was assumed for 2004 and future years.

Amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheets consisted of the following:

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

December 31, 2004 2003 2004 2003

In thousands of dollars

Prepaid expenses and other $ 22,854 $ 33,240 $ — $ —
Other assets 299,466 311,692 — —
Accrued liabilities (48) (3,802) (30,302) (27,401)
Other long-term liabilities (35,618) (29,055) (231,936) (232,204)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,878) (1,959) — —
Net amount recognized $284,776 $310,116 $(262,238) $(259,605)

The accumulated benefit obligation for all defined benefit pension plans was $883,694 and $815,022
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets was
as follows:

December 31, 2004 2003
In thousands of dollars

Projected benefit obligation $48,178 $38,978
Accumulated benefit obligation 41,366 34,889
Fair value of plan assets 167 —

Contributions totaling $8.0 million and $120.3 million were made to the Company’s pension plans
during 2004 and 2003, respectively, primarily to improve the funded status of the plans. For 2005,
there will be no minimum funding requirements for the domestic plans and minimum funding
requirements for the non-domestic plans will not be material. However, the Company contributed
$40.0 million in January 2005 to improve the funded status of its domestic plans.

The higher unrecognized net actuarial loss for pension benefits as of December 31, 2004, was due
primarily to the reduced discount rate assumption. The asset return assumption of 8.5% for 2004 and
2003 was based on the current and expected asset allocations, as well as historical and expected
returns on the categories of plan assets. The historical geometric average return over the 17 years
prior to December 31, 2004, was approximately 9.7%.

A minimum pension liability adjustment is required when the actuarial present value of accumulated
plan benefits exceeds plan assets and accrued pension liabilities. Minimum liability adjustments of
$.1 million and $.9 million, net of deferred tax benefits, were recorded in 2004 and 2003, respectively,
as a component of other comprehensive income (loss) and reported in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) as a component of stockholders’ equity.




A summary of the components of net periodic benefits cost for the years ended December 31, 2004,

2003 and 2002 is presented below:

For the years ended December 31,

Pension Benefits

Other Benefits

2004

2003

2002

2004 2003 2002

In thousands of dollars

Components of net periodic
benefits cost

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Amortization of prior service cost

Amortization of unrecognized
transition balance

Recognized net actuarial loss

Company sponsored plans
Multi-employer plans
Administrative expenses
Net periodic benefits cost
Special termination benefits
Curtailment loss
Settlement loss

Total amount reflected in earnings

$ 43,296 $39,096 $31,890 $ 4,898 $ 3,712 $ 3,157

52,551 50,951 50,372 18,335 18,653 19,674
(76,438} (59,557) (60,443) — — —
4,245 4,486 3,906  (1,507) (1,654) (1,858)
139 (331) (326) — — —
9812 16,377 4371 2,554 3,171 2,774
33,605 51,022 29,770 24,280 23,882 23,747
— — 483 — — —
773 517 423 — — —
34,378 51,539 30,676 24,280 23,882 23,747
— 3,383 809 — 539 —

— 28 2,116 — — —

— 7 30,118 — — —

$ 34,378 $54,957 $63,719 $24,280 $24,421 $23,747

The lower net periodic benefits cost related to other benefits for the year ended December 31, 2004,
was due primarily to the impact of the 2003 Medicare Act, which was substantially offset by the
impact of the lower discount rate. The Federal subsidy to be provided by the 2003 Medicare Act
reduced net periodic benefits costs in 2004 by approximately $3.0 million.

A summary of the weighted-average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefits cost is

as follows:

Pension Benefits

Other Benefits

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
In thousands of dollars except percents
Discount rate 8.0% 6.3% 6.9% 6.0% 6.3% 7.0%
Expected long-term return on

plan assets 8.5 8.5 9.5 N/A N/A N/A
Rate of compensation increase 4.9 4.9 4.9 N/A N/A N/A
Additional information:
(Increase) decrease in minimum

liability included in other

comprehensive income $81 $(1,565)  $58,261 N/A N/A N/A

The Company’s pension plan asset target allocation for 2005 and the actual allocation as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003 are as follows:

Percentage of Plan
Assets as of December 31,

Target Allocation
Asset Category 2005 2004 2003
Equity securities 40-85% 75% 61%
Debt securities 15-60 24 37
QOther 0-10 1 2
Total 100% 100%
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The assets of domestic plans are invested in compliance with ERISA and the rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder. The investment goals are to provide a total return that, over the long-term,
increases the ratio of Plan assets to liabilities subject to a level of risk and to diversify investments
within asset classes. Investments or investment strategies not allowed by ERISA are prohibited.
Direct purchases of the Company’s securities and the use of derivatives for the purpose of speculation
are also not permitted. The assets of non-domestic plans are invested in compliance with applicable
local laws and regulations.

The following table summarizes the Company’s future benefits payments by year:

Payments Due by Year

(In thousands of dollars)

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010-2014
Pension Benefits $52,243 $49,805 $53,944 $66,245 $67,239 $424,519
Other Benefits 24,097 22,550 23,489 24,113 24,660 132,984

The Company has two post-retirement benefit plans. The health care plan is contributory, with
participants’ contributions adjusted annually, and the life insurance plan is non-contributory.

In 2003, the Special Termination Benefits were related to the early retirement program which was
a component of the 2003 business realignment initiatives, described more fully in Note 4, Business
Realignment Initiatives. The early retirement program provided enhanced pension and retiree
medical benefits with pre-tax costs of $3.4 million and $.5 million, respectively.

In conjunction with the business realignment initiatives announced in October 2001, the Company
offered an early retirement program to approximately 10% of its work force in the fourth quarter of
2001. The early retirement program gave eligible salaried employees an opportunity to retire with
enhanced benefits related to the Company’s pension and other post-retirement benefit plans. In
general, eligible employees were born before January 1, 1954, and were hired before January 1, 1999.
Pension benefits were enhanced by adding five additional years of age and service to eligible
employees’ retirement accounts, along with certain supplemental benefits. Retiree medical benefits
were enhanced by adding five additional years to age and service formulas used to determine
retiree contributions.

In 2002, pension settlement and curtailment losses and special termination benefits totaled
$33.0 million. This amount related primarily to the non-cash costs for pension settlements associated
with departing employees electing a lump sum payment of their pension benefit under the early
retirement program and for pension curtailments and special termination benefits associated with
the closure of three manufacturing facilities as part of the business realignment initiatives.

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health
care plans. A one-percentage point change in assumed health care cost trend rates would have the
following effects:

1 Percentage Point 1 Percentage Point
Increase (Decrease)
In thousands of dollars
Effect on total service and interest cost components $ 914 $ (751)
Effect on post-retirement benefit obligation 10,494 (9,216)

14. EMPLOYEE STOCK OWNERSHIP TRUST

The Company’s employee stock ownership trust (“ESOP”) serves as the primary vehicle for
contributions to its existing Employee Savings Stock Investment and Ownership Plan for
participating domestic salaried and hourly employees. In December 19591, the ESOP was funded by
a 15-year, 7.75% loan of $47.9 million from the Company. During 2004 and 2003, the ESOP received
a combination of dividends on unallocated shares and contributions from the Company equal to the
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amount required to meet its principal and interest payments under the loan. Simultaneously, the
ESOP allocated to participants 318,351 shares of Common Stock each year. As of December 31, 2004,
the ESOP held 2,406,495 allocated shares and 636,688 unallocated shares. All ESOP shares are
considered cutstanding for income per share computations.

The Company recognized net compensation expense equal to the shares allocated multiplied by the
original cost of $10.03 per share less dividends received by the ESOP on unallocated shares.
Compensation (income) expense related to the ESOP for 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $(.1) million,
$1.6 million and $.9 million, respectively. Dividends paid on unallocated ESOP shares for 2004, 2003
and 2002 were $.7 million, $.8 million and $.9 million, respectively. Dividends paid on all ESOP shares
are recorded as a reduction to retained earnings. The unearned ESOP compensation balance in
stockholders’ equity represented deferred compensation expense to be recognized by the Company
in future years as additional shares are allocated to participants.

15. CAPITAL STOCK AND NET INCOME PER SHARE

As of December 31, 2004, the Company had 530,000,000 authorized shares of capital stock. Of this
total, 450,000,000 shares were designated as Common Stock, 75,000,000 shares as Class B Common
Stock (“Class B Stock”) and 5,000,000 shares as Preferred Stock, each class having a par value of one
dollar per share. As of December 31, 2004, a combined total of 359,901,744 shares of both classes of
common stock had been issued of which 246,587,917 shares were outstanding. No shares of the
Preferred Stock were issued or outstanding during the three-year period ended December 31, 2004.

In April 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a two-for-one stock split to be effected in
the form of a 100 percent stock dividend to stockholders of record on May 25, 2004. The additional
shares were distributed on June 15, 2004. The Company’s stockholders received one additional share
for each share in their possession on that date. This did not change the proportionate interest a
stockholder maintained in the Company. Unless otherwise indicated, all shares and per share
amounts have been adjusted for the two-for-one stock split.

Holders of the Common Stock and the Class B Stock generally vote together without regard to class
on matters submitted to stockholders, including the election of directors, with the Common Stock
having one vete per share and the Class B Stock having ten votes per share. However, the Common
Stock, voting separately as a class, is entitled to elect one-sixth of the Board of Directors. With respect
to dividend rights, the Common Stock is entitled to cash dividends 10% higher than those declared
and paid on the Class B Stock.

Class B Stock can be converted into Common Stock on a share-for-share basis at any time. During
2004 a total of 2,683 shares of Class B Stock were converted into Common Stock and during 2003
and 2002, on a pre-split basis, a total of 212 shares and 11,500 shares, respectively, of Class B Stock
were converted into Common Stock.

In December 2000, the Company’s Board of Directors unanimously adopted a Stockholder Protection
Rights Agreement and declared a dividend of one right (“Right”) for each outstanding share of
Common Stock and Class B Stock payable to stockholders of record at the close of business on
December 26, 2000. The Rights will at no time have voting power or receive dividends. The issuance
of the Rights has no dilutive effect, will not affect reported earnings per share, is not taxable and
will not change the manner in which the Company’s Common Stock is traded.

The Rights become exercisable only upon (i) resolution of the Board of Directors after any person has
commenced a tender offer that would result in such person becoming the beneficial owner of 15% or
more of the Common Stock, (ii) the Company’s announcement that a person or group has acquired
15% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, or (iii) a person or group becoming the
beneficial owner of more than 35% of the voting power of all of the outstanding Common Stock and
Class B Stock. When exercisable, each Right entitles its registered holder to purchase from the
Company, at a pre-determined exercise price, one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Participating
Preferred Stock, par value $1.00 per share (which would be convertible by holders of Class B
Stock into Series B Participating Preferred Stock on the basis of one one-thousandth of a share of

65



Series B Participating Preferred Stock for every share of Class B Stock held at that time). Each one
one-thousandth of a share of Series A Participating Preferred Stock would have economic and voting
terms similar to those of one share of Common Stock. Similarly, each one one-thousandth of a share
of Series B Participating Preferred Stock would have economic and voting terms similar to those of
one share of Class B Stock.

Upon the earlier of (a) a public announcement by the Company that a person or group has acquired
15% or more of the outstanding shares of Common Stock or (b) such person or group acquiring more
than 35% of the voting power of the Common Stock and Class B Stock, each Right (except those owned
by the acquiring person or group) will automatically become a right to buy, at the pre-determined
exercise price, that number of one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Participating Preferred Stock
having a market value of twice the exercise price. In addition, if the Company is acquired in a merger
or other business combination, each Right will entitle a holder to purchase from the acquiring
company, for the pre-determined exercise price, preferred stock of the acquiring company having an
aggregate market value equal to twice the exercise price.

Further, at any time after a person or group acquires 15% or more (but less than 50%) of the
Company’s Common Stock or more than 35% of the voting power of all outstanding Common Stock
and Class B Stock, the Company’s Board of Directors may, at its option, exchange all (but not less
than all) of the outstanding Preferred Stock (other than Rights held by the acquiring person or group)
for shares of Common Stock or Class B Stock, as applicable, at an exchange ratio of one share of
Common Stock or Class B Stock for each one one-thousandth of a share of Preferred Stock.

The Company, solely at its option, may amend the Rights or redeem the Rights for $.01 per Right
at any time before the acquisition by a person or group of beneficial ownership of 15% or more of its
Common Stock or more than 35% of the voting power of all of the outstanding Common Stock and
Class B Stock. Unless redeemed earlier or extended by the Company, the Rights will expire on
December 14, 2010.

In July 2004, the Company purchased 11,281,589 shares of its Common Stock from the Milton
Hershey School Trust in a privately negotiated transaction. The Company paid $44.32 per share, or
approximately $500.0 million, for the shares and fees of $1.4 million associated with the transaction
financed principally by additional commercial paper borrowings.

Hershey Trust Company, as Trustee for the benefit of Milton Hershey School, as institutional
fiduciary for estates and trusts unrelated to Milton Hershey School, and as direct owner of investment
shares, held a total of 14,112,604 shares of the Common Stock, and as Trustee for the benefit of Milton
Hershey School, held 60,612,012 shares of the Class B Stock as of December 31, 2004, and was
entitled to cast approximately 78.1% of the total votes of both classes of the Company’s common stock.
The Milton Hershey School Trust must approve the issuance of shares of Common Stock or any other
action that would result in the Milton Hershey School Trust not continuing te have voting control
of the Company.

Changes in outstanding Common Stock for the past three years were:

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Shares issued 359,901,744 359,901,744 359,901,744
Treasury shares at beginning of year (100,842,278) (91,461,470) (88,623,740)

Stock repurchases:
Repurchase programs and privately

negotiated transactions (13,914,089) (9,848,400) (2,600,690)
Stock options and benefits (1,898,411) (2,410,224) (4,844,770)
Stock issuances:
Stock options and benefits 3,340,951 2,877,816 4,607,730
Treasury shares at end of year (113,313,827) (100,842,278) (91,461,470)
Net shares outstanding at end of year 246,587,917 259,059,466 268,440,274
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Basic and Diluted Earnings Per Share were computed based on the weighted-average number of
shares of the Common Stock and the Class B Stock outstanding as follows:

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
In thousands except per share amounts
Net income $590,879 $457,584 $403,578
Weighted-average shares—Basic
Common Stock 193,037 201,768 212,219
Class B Stock 60,844 60,844 60,856
Total weighted-average shares—Basic 253,881 262,612 273,075
Effect of dilutive securities:
Employee stock options 2,763 1,826 2,136
Performance and restricted stock units 183 94 218
Weighted-average shares—Diluted 256,827 264,532 275,429
Earnings Per Share—Basic ’
Common Stock § 238 $ 178 $ 151
Class B Stack $ 217 $ 161 $ 1.37
Earnings Per Share—Diluted $ 230 $ 173 $ 147

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 128, Earnings per Share (“SFAS No. 128”),
provides guidance on the calculation and disclosure of earnings per share (‘EPS”). SFAS No. 128
defines EPS as “the amount of earnings attributable to each share of common stock” and indicates
that the objective of EPS is to measure the performance of an entity over the reporting period. In
deliberations regarding the application of SFAS No. 128, the Emerging [ssues Task Force (“EITF”)
of the FASB reached a consensus requiring the use of the two-class method of computing EPS for
those enterprises with participating securities or multiple classes of common stock through EITF
Issue No. 03-6, Participating Securities and the Two-Class Method under FASB Statement No. 128,
Earnings per Share (“EITF No. 03-6”).

The Company has two classes of common stock, Common Stock and Class B Stock. With respect to
dividend rights, the Common Stock is entitled to cash dividends ten percent higher than those
declared and paid on the Class B Stock. Under EITF No. 03-6, the Class B Stock is considered a
participating security requiring the use of the two-class method for the computation of net income
per share—basic, rather than the if-converted method as previously used. The two-class computation
method for each period reflects the cash dividends paid per share for each class of stock, plus the
amount of allocated undistributed earnings per share computed using the participation percentage
which reflects the dividend rights of each class of stock. Net income per share—basic reflects the
application of EITF No. 03-6 and was computed using the two-class method for all periods presented.
The shares of Class B Stock are considered to be participating convertible securities since the shares
of Class B Stock are convertible on a one-for-one basis into shares of Common Stock. EITF No. 03-6
did not change the computation of net income per share-diluted which has been computed using the
if-converted method for all periods presented.

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, .1 million, 6.2 million and 3.8 million stock
options, respectively, were not included in the diluted earnings per share calculation because the
exercise price was higher than the average market price of the Common Stock for the year and,
therefore, the effect would have been antidilutive.

16. STOCK COMPENSATION PLANS

The long-term portion of the Key Employee Incentive Plan (“Incentive Plan”) provides for grants to
senior executives and key employees of stock-based compensation awards of one or more of the
following: non-qualified stock options (“fixed stock options”), performance stock units, stock
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appreciation rights and restricted stock units. The Incentive Plan also provides for the deferral of
performance stock unit and restricted stock unit awards by participants. As of December 31, 2004,
38.0 million shares were authorized and approved by the Company’s stockholders for grants under
the long-term portion of the Incentive Plan.

In July 2004, the Company announced a worldwide stock option grant under the Broad Based Stock
Option Plan, which provided over 13,000 eligible employees with a grant of 100 non-qualified stock
options. The stock options were granted at a price of $46.44 per share, have a term of ten years and
will vest on July 19, 2009.

In 1996, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a worldwide, stock option grant, called HSY
Growth, under the Broad Based Stock Option Plan. HSY Growth provided all eligible employees with
a one-time grant of 200 non-qualified stock options. Under HSY Growth, over 2.4 million options were
granted on January 7, 1997. Options granted under HSY Growth have a term of ten years and vested
on January 7, 2002.

Fixed Stock Options

The exercise price of each option equals the market price of the Company’s Common Stock on the
date of grant (determined as the closing price of the Common Stock on the New York Stock Exchange
on the business day immediately preceding the date the stock options were granted). Each option
has a maximum term of ten years. Options granted under the Incentive Plan prior to December 31,
1999, vest at the end of the second year after grant. In 2000, the terms and conditions of the grant
were changed to provide for pro-rated vesting over four years for options granted subsequent to
December 31, 1999.

A summary of the status of the Company’s fixed stock options as of December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002,
and changes during the years ending on those dates is presented below:

2004 2003 2002

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Average Average

Exercise Exercise Exercise
Fixed Options Shares Price Shares Price Shares Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 14,142,318 $28.73 13,929,124 $26.49 16,013,122 $23.20
Granted 4,013,900 $41.25 2,945,850 $32.60 2,713,210 $34.67
Exercised (3,241,948) $24.58 (2,580,706} $21.00 (4,369,184) $19.77
Forfeited (4,734) $33.81 (151,950) $29.34 (428,024) $25.15
Outstanding at end of year 14,909,536 $32.82 14,142,318 $28.73 13,929,124 $26.49

Options exercisable at year-end 7,272,885 $28.03 7,474,162 $26.34 _ 7,940,538 $24.19

Weighted-average fair value
of options granted during
the year (per share) $ 10.67 $ 8.87 $ 10.48

The following table summarizes information about fixed stock options outstanding as of December 31, 2004:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted-
Average
Number Remaining Weighted- Number Weighted-

Range of Exercise Outstanding as Contractual Average Exercisable as of Average
Prices of 12/31/04 Life in Years Exercise Price 12/31/04 Exercise Price

$16.53-32.23 5,304,428 4.1 $25.83 5,081,005 $25.63

$32.25-34.66 5,344,533 7.4 $33.26 2,099,430 $33.47

$34.79-56.58 4,260,575 9.2 $40.96 92,450 $36.15

$16.53-56.58 14,909,536 6.7 $32.82 7,272,885 $28.03
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Performance Stock Units and Restricted Stock Units

Under the long-term portion of the Incentive Plan, each February the Company grants selected
executives and other key employees performance stock units whose vesting is contingent upon the
achievement of certain performance objectives. If at the end of the applicable three-year performance
cycle targets for financial measures are met, the full number of shares is awarded to the participants.
The performance scores for 2004 grants of performance stock units can range from 0% to 250% of
the targeted amounts. Restricted stock units were awarded in 2004, 2003 and 2002 under the long-
term portion of the Incentive Plan to certain executive officers and other key employees. Restricted
stock units were also awarded quarterly to non-employee directors of the Company as part of the
Directors’ Compensation Plan. The compensation amount charged against income for performance
and restricted stock units was $24.3 million, $7.2 million and $6.4 million for 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The compensation cost associated with the performance stock units is recognized ratably
over the three-year term based on the year-end market value of the stock, except for the 2003 grants.
An additional three-year vesting term was imposed for the 2003 grants with accelerated vesting for
retirement, disability or death. The compensation cost for the 2003 grants is being recognized over
a period from three to six years. The compensation cost associated with employee restricted stock
units is recognized over a specified restriction period based on the year-end market value of the stock.
The compensation cost associated with non-employee director restricted stock units is recognized at
the grant date and adjusted based on the year-end market value of the stock.

Performance stock units and restricted stock units granted for potential future distribution were
as follows:

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Shares granted ‘ 332,162 228,224 121,230
Weighted-average fair value at date of grant $40.53 $33.17 . $33.40

Deferred performance stock units, deferred restricted stock units, deferred directors’ fees and
accumulated dividend amounts totaled 609,217 shares as of December 31, 2004.

No stock appreciation rights were outstanding as of December 31, 2004.
17. SUPPLEMENTAL BALANCE SHEET INFORMATION

Accounts Recelvable—Trade

In the normal course of business, the Company extends credit to customers that satisfy pre-defined
credit criteria. The Company believes that it has little concentration of credit risk due to the diversity
of its customer base. As of December 31, 2004, McLane Company, Inc., one of the largest wholesale
distributors in the United States to convenience stores, drug stores, wholesale clubs and mass
merchandisers, accounted for approximately 13% of the Company’s total accounts receivable. As of
December 31, 2004, no other customer accounted for more than 10% of the Company’s total accounts
receivable. Receivables, as shown on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, were net of allowances and
anticipated discounts of $17.6 million and $21.1 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The lower amount as of December 31, 2004, was principally related to a reduction in
the allowance for doubtful accounts of $5.0 million upon resolution of most significant matters related
to the bankruptcy of Fleming Companies, Inc. An increase in the allowance for doubtful accounts of
$5.0 million as of December 31, 2003, had been recorded to cover estimated exposure to the
bankruptey announced in early 2003.

Inverntories

The Company values the majority of its inventories under the last-in, first-out (“LIFO”) method and
the remaining inventories at the lower of first-in, first-out (“FIFO”) cost or market. Inventories
include material, labor and overhead. LIFO cost of inventories valued using the LIFO method was
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$369.9 million and $321.0 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, and inventories
were stated at amounts that did not exceed realizable values. Total inventories were as follows:

December 31, 2004 2003

In thousands of doliars

Raw materials $166,813 $158,859
Goods in process 70,440 53,744
Finished goods 384,094 327,415
Inventories at FIFO 621,347 540,018
Adjustment to LIFO (64,167) _(47,159)
Total inventories $557,180 $492,859

Property Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment balances included construction in progress of $74.8 million and $153.7
million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Net write-downs of property, plant and
equipment of $5.7 million were recorded as a result of asset impairments associated with the
Company’s business realignment initiatives recorded in the fourth quarter of 2003. These initiatives
included realigning the sales organizations and streamlining the supply chain by divesting or
eliminating certain non-strategic brands and products and by product line rationalization. Major
classes of property, plant and equipment were as follows:

December 31, 2004 2003

In thousands of dollars

Land $ 84,563 $ 78,744
Buildings 688,642 633,362
Machinery and equipment 2,595,997 2,614,917
Property, plant and equipment, gross 3,369,202 3,227,023
Accumulated depreciation (1,686,504) (1,565,084)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 1,682,698 $ 1,661,939

Certain real estate with a net realizable value of $7.0 million and $1.5 million was being held for sale
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These assets were associated with the closure of
facilities as part of the Company’s business realignment initiatives.

Goodwill and Gther Intangible Assets
Goodwill and intangible assets were as follows:

December 31, 2004 2003

In thousands of dollars
Unamortized intangible assets:

Goodwill $463,947 $388,960

Trademarks $100,335 $ 31,593
Amortized intangible assets, gross:

Customer-related 18,567 —

Patents 8,317 8,317
Total other intangible assets, gross 127,219 39,9510
Accumulated amortization (1,986) (1,399)
Other intangibles $125,233 $ 38,511

Goodwill increased $82.9 million as a result of the acquisition of the Grupo Lorena and Mauna Loa
businesses and $5.1 million as a result of currency translation adjustments. These increases were
partially offset by a $12.6 million adjustment to goodwill as a result of the adjustment to the Federal
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and state tax contingencies. The increases in trademarks and customer-related intangible assets
were also due to the Grupo Lorena and Mauna Loa acquisitions. The useful lives of trademarks were
determined to be indefinite and, therefore, these assets are not being amortized. Customer-related
intangible assets are being amortized over their estimated useful lives of approximately ten years.
Patents are being amortized over their remaining legal lives of approximately sixteen years. Total
amortization expense for other intangible assets was $.6 million, $.5 million and $.5 million in 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The estimated aggregate amortization expense will be approximately
$2.3 million on an annual basis over the next five years based upon the preliminary purchase price
allocations as of December 31, 2004,

Accerued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities were as follows:

December 31, 2004 2003
In thousands of dollars

Payroll, compensation and benefits $146,515 $127,222
Advertising and promotion 218,376 191,382
Other 107,205 97,577
Total accrued liabilities $472,096 $416,181

Other Long-term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilities were as follows:

December 31, 2004 2003
In thousands of dollars

Accrued post-retirement benefits $231,967 $232,398
Other 171,389 138,378
Total other long-term liabilities $403,356 $370,776

18. SEGMENT INFORMATICN

The Company operates as a single reportable segment, encompassing the manufacture, distribution
and sale of confectionery, snack, refreshment and grocery products. The Company’s five operating
segments are comprised of geographic areas including the United States, Canada, Mexico, Brazil and
the combination of the Company’s other international operations. For purposes of segment reporting,
the Company’s operations in the Americas, the United States, Canada, Mexico and Brazil, have been
aggregated in accordance with the criteria of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.” The Company’s operations
in the Americas were aggregated on the basis of their similar economic characteristics and the
similarity of their products and services, production processes, types or classes of customers for their
products and services, methods used to distribute products and the nature of the regulatory
environments. The Company’s other international operations were aggregated with its operations
in the Americas to form one reportable segment, since the other international operations combined
share most of the aggregation criteria and represent less than 10% of consolidated revenues,
operating profits and assets. Consolidated net sales represented primarily sales of confectionery and
snack products.

The Company’s principal operations and markets are located in the United States. The Company
manufactures, markets, sells and distributes confectionery and grocery products in Canada, Mexico
and Brazil, imports and/or markets selected confectionery products in the Philippines, Japan and
South Korea and markets confectionery products in over 60 countries worldwide. Net sales and long-
lived assets of businesses outside of the United States were not significant.
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Sales to McLane Company, Inc. exceeded 10% of total net sales and approximated $1.1 billicn and
$930.1 million in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Sales to Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. and subsidiaries
exceeded 10% of total net sales in 2002 and amounted to approximately $857.9 million.

19. QUARTERLY DATA (Unaudited)

Summary quarterly results were as follows:

Year 2004 First Second Third Fourth
In thousands of dollars except per share amounts
Net sales $1,013,089 $893,688 $1,254,508 $1,267,963
Gross profit 387,457 360,484 498,100 503,676
Net income 107,147 147,217 166,229 170,286
Per share—Basic—Common'® 42 58 .68 71
Per share—Basic—Class B .38 .53 .62 .64
Per share—Diluted® 41 56 .66 .68
Year 2003 First Second Third Fourth
In thousands of dollars except per share amounts
Net sales $953,162 $849,115 $1,191,019  $1,179,255
Gross profit 356,283 333,745 466,834 470,963
Income before cumulative effect of
accounting change 97,658 71,484 150,972 144,938
Per share—Basic—Common 37 .28 .59 b7
Per share—Basic—Class B® .34 .25 .54 52
Per share—Diluted® .36 27 .57 .55
Net income 97,558 71,484 143,604 144,938
Per share—Basic—Common'® 37 .28 .57 .57
Per share—Basic—Class B® .34 .25 .51 .52
Per share—Diluted .36 27 .55 .55

(a) Quarterly income per share amounts do not total to the annual amounts due to changes in weighted-average shares

outstanding during the year.

Item 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
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Item 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As required by Rule 13a-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”), the
Company conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures as of December 31, 2004. This evaluation was carried out
under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including the
Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. Based upon that evaluation, the
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure
controls and procedures are effective. There has been no change during the most recent fiscal quarter
inthe Company’s internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation
that has materially affected, or is likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Disclosure controls and procedures are controls and other procedures that are designed to ensure that
information required to be disclosed in the Company’s reports filed or submitted under the Exchange
Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the
Securities and Exchange Commission’s rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include,
without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be
disclosed in the Company’s reports filed under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated
to management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

The Company’s Common Stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under the ticker
symbol “HSY.” On May 4, 2004, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, Richard H. Lenny, certified
to the NYSE pursuant to Rule 303A.12(a) that, as of the date of that certification, he was not aware
of any violation by the Company of the NYSE’s Corporate Governance listing standards.

MANAGERMENT REPORT ON INTERNAEL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

The management of Hershey Foods Corporation is responsible for establishing and maintaining
adequate internal control over financial reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a-
15(f). The Company’s internal control system was designed to provide reasonable assurance to the
Company’s management and Board of Directors regarding the preparation and fair presentation of
published financial statements.

All internal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitations. Therefore, even
those systems determined to be effective can provide only reasonable assurance with respect to
financial statement preparation and presentation.

The Company’s management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2004. In making this assessment, the Company’s management used the criteria set
forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO) in Internal
Control—Integrated Framework. Based on this assessment, management believes that, as of
December 31, 2004, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective based on
those criteria.

KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, has issued an audit report on
management’s assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting. This report
appears on page 74.

s Degfi—

Richard H. Lenny David J. West
Chairman of the Board, President Senior Vice President
and Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

73



REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Hershey Foods Corporation:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, that Hershey Foods Corporation and subsidiaries (the
“Corporation”) maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004,
based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Corporation’s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment
of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the Corporation’s
internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Qur audit included obtaining an understanding of internal
control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion,

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s
internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to
the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Corporation maintained effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects based on
criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO. Also in our opinion,
the Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criferia established in Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Corporation as of December 31, 2004
and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, cash flows and stockholders’ equity for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, and our report dated March 3,
2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

KPMe LLP

New York, New York
March 3, 2005
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Item 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

On December 7, 2004, the Board of Directors, following a review of benchmark data, approved an
increase in the quarterly restricted stock unit (“RSU”) component of the Directors’ Compensation
Plan to the number of shares of Common Stock, valued at the average closing price on the New York
Stock Exchange of the Common Stock on the three days preceding the grant, equal to $20,000, from
$15,000, effective January 1, 2005. RSUs are granted to directors on the first day of January, April,
July and October.

On December 6, 2004, the Compensation and Executive Organization Committee of the Board of
Directors approved changes to the compensation of Mr. David J. West in recognition of his promotion
to Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer effective January 1, 2005. As of January 1, 2005,
Mr. West’s base salary was increased from $415,000 to $450,000, his target percentage under the
Annual Incentive Program of the Incentive Plan was increased, and he was granted 6,000 additional
stock options under the Incentive Plan. He was also granted, effective December 6, 2004, an
additional 2,150 contingent PSUs under the Incentive Plan for the 2004-2006 performance cycle, with
any award to be determined under the performance factors applicable to that performance cycle,
namely, (i) the Company’s earnings per share-diluted growth (three-year compound annual growth
rate) measured against an internal target and measured against the earnings per share-diluted
growth (three-year compound annual growth rate) of a peer group of 16 food, beverage and consumer
packaged gocds companies and (i) the cumulative three-year improvement in the Company’s
economic return on invested capital measured against an internal target.
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PART III

Item 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The names, ages, positions held with the Company, periods of service as a director, principal
occupations, business experience and other directorships of nominees for director of the Company
are set forth in the Proxy Statement in the section entitled “Election of Directors,” which information
is incorporated herein by reference.

Executive Officers of the Company as of February 22, 2005

Name Age Positions Held During the Last Five Years

R. H. Lenny™V 53 Chairman of the Board, President and Chief Executive Officer (2002);
President and Chief Executive Officer (2001)

M. K. Arline 52 Senior Vice President, Chief People Officer (2004); Senior Vice

President, Human Resources and Corporate Affairs (2002);
Senior Vice President, Human Resources (2002); Vice President,
Human Resources (2001); Vice President, Quality and Regulatory
Compliance (1999)

C. J. Baldwin® 42  Senior Vice President, Global Chief Customer Officer (2004)
J. P. Bilbrey'® 48 Senior Vice President, President Hershey International (2003)
R. Brace 61 Senior Vice President, Operations (2004); Vice President, Operations

and Technology (2002); Vice President, Conversion and Procurement
(2000); Senior Vice President, Operations (1999)
T. K. Hernquist'? 46 Senior Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer (2003)
B. H. Snyder 57 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary (2003); General
Counsel, Secretary, and Senior Vice President, International (2002),
Senior Vice President—Public Affairs, General Counsel and Secretary
{2002); Vice President and Assistant General Counsel (2000);
Assistant General Counsel (1893)
D. J. West® 41 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer (2004); Senior Vice
President, Chief Customer Officer (2004); Senior Vice President, Sales
(2002); Senior Vice President, Business Planning and Development
(2002); Vice President, Business Planning and Development (2001)
C. D. Azzara 50 Vice President, Global Research and Development (2004); Vice
President, Research and Development (2002); Director, Confectionery/
Reduced Fat and Calorie Product Development (2001); Associate
Director, Product Development (1999)
F. Davis® 56 Vice President, Chief Information Officer (2000)
N. Eshleman 50 Vice President, Strategy and Innovation (2002); Vice President
Marketing, Brand Integration (2002); Vice President Marketing, New
Products (2000); Vice President Marketing, Grocery Products (1999)
D. W. Tacka 51 Vice President and Chief Accounting OGfficer (2004); Vice President,
Corporate Controller and Chief Accounting Officer (2000); Corporate
Controller and Chief Accounting Officer (1995)

G.
D.

There are no family relationships among any of the above-named officers of the Company.

(1) Mr. Lenny was elected President and Chief Executive Officer effective March 12, 2001. Prior to joining the Company
he was Group Vice President, Kraft Foods, Inc. and President, Nabisco Biscuit and Snacks (2001); President, Nabisco
Biscuit Company (1998).

(2) Mr. Baldwin was elected Senior Vice President, Global Chief Customer Officer effective October 25, 2004. Prior to joining
the Company he was National Vice President, Field Sales and Logistics, Kraft Foods, Inc. (2004); National Vice President
Sales and Logistics, Direct Store Delivery—Kraft Foods (2003); Vice President, Sales and Integrated Logistics, Nabisco
Biscuit (2002); Vice President, Sales, Nabisco Biscuit and Snacks (2001); Customer Vice President, West, Nabisco Biscuit
Company (1999).
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(3) Mr. Bilbrey was elected Senior Vice President, President Hershey International effective November 5, 2003. Prior to

joining the Company he was Executive Vice President, Sales—Mission Foods (2003); President and Chief Executive

Officer—Danone Waters of North America, Inc., a division of Groupe Danone, Paris (2001); Executive Vice President,

Retail Sales, North America—Danone Waters of North America, Inc., a division of Groupe Danone, Paris (2000); Owner

and Operator, Commercial Cattle Operations—Bilbrey Farms and Ranch (1999).

Mr. Hernquist was elected Senior Vice President, Chief Marketing Officer effective April 28, 2003. Prior to joining the

Company he was Senior Vice President, Marketing—Jim Beam Brands, Fortune Brands (2002); President and Chief

Executive Officer—Sierra On-line, Vivendi Universal (2001); Senior Vice President, Marketing—Nabisco Biscuit

Company (2000).

(5) Mr. West was elected Vice President, Business Planning and Development effective May 30, 2001. Prior to joining the
Company he was Senior Vice President Finance, Kraft Foods—Nabiseo Biscuit, Confectionery and Snacks (2001); Senior
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Nabisco Biscuit Company (1999).

(6) Mr. Davis was elected Vice President, Chief Information Officer effective December 14, 2000. Prior to joining the
Company Mr. Davis was Vice President—Global Infrastructure Services, Computer Sciences Corporation (2000);
Director—Global Infrastructure Services, Computer Sciences Corporation (1999).

4

<

Executive Officers are generally elected each year at the organization meeting of the Board in April.

Information regarding the identification of the Audit Committee as a separately-designated standing
committee of the Board is set forth in the Proxy Statement in the section entitled “Board
Committees,” and information regarding the status of one or more members of the Audit Committee
being an “audit committee financial expert” is set forth in the Proxy Statement in the section entitled
“Audit Committee Report,” which information is incorporated herein by reference.

Reporting of any inadvertent late filings under Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended, is set forth in the section of the Proxy Statement entitled “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance.” This information is incorporated herein by reference.

Information regarding the Company’s Code of Ethical Business Conduct applicable to the Company’s
directors, officers and employees is set forth in Part I of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, under
the heading “Available Information.”

Item 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Information concerning compensation of each of the named executive officers, including the Chief
Executive Officer, of the Company during 2004, and compensation of directors, is set forth in the
sections entitled, respectively, “2004 Executive Compensation” and “Directors’ Compensation” in the
Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(a) Information concerning ownership of the Company’s voting securities by certain beneficial
owners, individual nominees for director, the Chief Executive Officer, the four most highly
compensated executive officers other than the Chief Executive Officer and executive officers as
a group, is set forth in the section entitled “Voting Securities” in the Proxy Statement, which
information is incorporated herein by reference.

{(b) The following table provides information about the Company’s Common Stock that may be issued
under equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2004:

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION*

(a) b (©)

Number of securities
remaining available for

Number of securities future issuance under
to be issued upon Weighted-average equity compensation
exercise of exercise price of plans (excluding
outstanding options, outstanding options, securities reflected
Plan Category warrants and rights warrants and rights in column (a)
Equity compensation plans .
approved by security holders (1) 13,008,286 $31.74 8,995,936
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders (2) 1,901,250 $40.22 811,190
Total 14,909,536 $32.82 9,807,126

*  In April 2004, the Company’s Board of Directors approved a two-for-one stock split to be effected in the form of a 100 percent
stock dividend to stockholders of record on May 25, 2004. The additional shares were distributed on June 15, 2004. The
Company’s stockholders received one additional share for each share in their possession on that date. This did not change
the proportionate interest a stockholder maintained in the Company. All shares and per share amounts in this chart and
the accompanying footnotes have been adjusted for the two-for-one stock split.

(1) Column (a) includes stock options granted under the stockholder-approved Key Employee Incentive Plan (“Incentive
Plan”). The securities available for future issuance in column (c) are not allocated to any specific type of award under the
Incentive Plan, but are available generally for future awards of stock options, performance stock units (“PSUs”), restricted
stock units (“RSUs”) and dividend equivalent units on RSUs granted under the Incentive Plan.

(2) Column (a) includes 1,664,850 stock options granted under the Hershey Foods Corporation Broad Based Stock Option Plan.
In July 2004, the Company announced a worldwide stock option grant under the Broad Based Stock Option Plan, which
provided over 13,000 eligible employees with a grant of 100 non-qualified stock options. The stock options were granted
at a price of $46.44 per share, have a term of ten years and will vest on July 19, 2009. In 1996, the Company's Board of
Directors approved a worldwide stock option grant, called HSY Growth, under the Broad Based Stock Option Plan. HSY
Growth provided all eligible employees with a one-time grant of 200 non-qualified stock options that were granted outside
of the Incentive Plan under a separate registration statement. Under HSY Growth over 2,471,400 stock options were
granted on January 7, 1997 with an exercise price of $22.25, which equates to 100% of the fair market value of the
Company’s Common Stock on the date of grant. The stock options vested at the end of five years and had a maximum term
of ten years from the date of grant. Column (¢) includes 641,200 stock options under the Broad Based Stock Option Plan
remaining available for future issuance.

Column (a) also includes 236,400 stock options granted to R.H. Lenny outside of the Incentive Plan under a separate
registration statement. All of the options available for issuance under the registration statement have been granted. The
stock options were granted on March 12, 2001 with an exercise price of $32.33, which equates to 100% of the fair market
value of the Company’s Common Stock on the date of grant (determined as the closing price on the business day immediately
preceding the date the stock options were granted). The stock options are subject to a four-year step vesting requirement
of 25% per year and have a ten-year term.

Column (c¢) also includes 169,990 shares remaining available for future issuance under the Directors’ Compensation Plan.
The Directors’ Compensation Plan is designed to attract and retain qualified non-employee directors and to align the
interests of non-employee directors with those of the stockholders by paying a portion of their compensation in units
representing shares of Common Stock. Directors who are employees of the Company receive no remuneration for their
services as directors. RSUs are granted quarterly to each director on the first day of January, April, July and October on

78




the basis of the number of shares of Common Stock, valued at the average closing price on the New York Stock Exchange
of the Common Stock on the last three trading days preceding the grant, equal to $15,000. While the value of the annual
RSU grant is targeted at $60,000, the actual value of the grant may be higher or lower depending upon the performance
of the Common Stock following the grant dates. Beginning January 1, 2005, the target for the annual RSU grant was
increased to $80,000, with the quarterly grant equal to a value of $20,000. A director’s RSUs will vest and be distributed
upon his or her retirement from the Board. Directors may elect to receive all or a portion of their retainer in cash or Common
Stock, although committee chair fees are paid only in cash. A director may defer receipt of the retainer and committee chair
fees until his or her retirement from the Board.

Item 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIFPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Information concerning “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions” is set forth in the section
entitled “Certain Transactions and Relationships” in the Proxy Statement, which information is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

Information concerning “Principal Accountant Fees and Services,” including the Pre-Approval Policy
Regarding Independent Auditor Services, is set forth in the section entitled “Independent Auditor
Fees” in the Proxy Statement, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV
Item 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Item 15(a)(1): Financial Statements

The audited consolidated financial statements of’ the Company and its subsidiaries and the Report
of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm thereon, as required to be filed with this
report, are set forth under Item 8 of this report.

Item 15(a)(2): Financial Statement Schedule

The following consolidated financial statement schedule of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 is filed herewith on the indicated page in response
to Item 15(c):

Schedule II—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (Page 86)

Other schedules have been omitted as not applicable or required, or because information required
is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

Financial statements of the parent company only are omitted because the Company is primarily an
operating company and there are no significant restricted net assets of consolidated and
unconsolidated subsidiaries.
Item 15(a)(3): Exhibits
The following items are attached or incorporated by reference in response to Item 15(c):

3) Articles of Incorporation and By-laws

The Company’s Restated Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, is incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 3 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended April 3, 1988. The By-laws, as amended and restated as of December 1, 1998, are
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 3 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998.

(4) Instruments defining the rights of security holders, including indentures

a. Stockholder Protection Rights Agreement between Hershey Foods Corporation and
Mellon Investor Services LLC, as Rights Agent, dated December 14, 2000, is
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 4.1 to the Company’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000.

b. The Company has issued certain long-term debt instruments, no one class of which
creates indebtedness exceeding 10% of the total assets of the Company and its
subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. These classes consist of the following:

1) 6.7% Notes due 2005

2) 6.95% Notes due 2007

3) 6.95% Notes due 2012

4) 8.8% Debentures due 2021

5) 7.2% Debentures due 2027

6) Obligations Associated with Consolidation of Lease Arrangements

7) Other Obligations
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The Company will furnish copies of the above debt instruments to the Commission upon request.

(10)

Material contracts

a.

Kit Kat and Rolo License Agreement (the “License Agreement”) between Hershey
Foods Corporation and Rowntree Mackintosh Confectionery Limited is incorporated
by reference from Exhibit 10(a) to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for
the fiscal year ended December 31, 1980. The License Agreement was amended in
1988 and the Amendment Agreement is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 19
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended July 3, 1988.
The License Agreement was assigned by Rowntree Mackintosh Confectionery
Limited to Societe des Produits Nestle SA as of January 1, 1990. The Assignment
Agreement is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 19 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1990.

Peter Paul/York Domestic Trademark & Technology License Agreement between
Hershey Foods Corporation and Cadbury Schweppes Inc. (now Cadbury Beverages
Delaware, Inc.) dated August 25, 1988, is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 2(a)
to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated September 8, 1988. This
agreement was assigned by the Company to its wholly-owned subsidiary, Hershey
Chocolate & Confectionery Corporation.

Cadbury Trademark & Technology License Agreement between Hershey Foods
Corporation and Cadbury Limited dated August 25, 1988, is incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 2(a) to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated
September 8, 1988. This agreement was assigned by the Company to its wholly-
owned subsidiary, Hershey Chocolate & Confectionery Corporation.

Trademark and Technology License Agreement between Huhtamaki and Hershey
Foods Corporation dated December 30, 1996, is incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K dated February 26, 1997.
This agreement was assigned by the Company to its wholly-owned subsidiary,
Hershey Chocolate & Confectionery Corporation. The agreement was amended and
restated in 1999 and the Amended and Restated Trademark and Technology License
Agreement is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999.

Stock Purchase Agreement between Hershey Trust Company, as Trustee of the
Milton Hershey School Trust, and Hershey Foods Corporation, dated July 27, 2004,
is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended October 3, 2004.

Five Year Credit Agreement dated as of November 12, 2004 among Hershey Foods
Corporation and the banks, financial institutions and other institutional lenders
listed on the respective signature pages thereof (“Lenders”), Citibank, N.A., as
administrative agent for the Lenders (as defined therein), Bank of America, N.A., as
syndication agent, UBS Loan Finance LLC, as documentation agent, and Citigroup
Global Markets, Inc. and Banc of America Securities LLC, as joint lead arrangers
and joint book managers is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the
Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K, filed November 16, 2004.

Executive Compensation Plans and Management Contracts

g.

Hershey Foods Corporation’s Amended and Restated Key Employee Incentive Plan
is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 29, 2002.
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Terms and Conditions of Nonqualified Stock Option Grants under the Key Employee
Incentive Plan is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed February 18, 2005.

The Long-Term Incentive Program Participation Agreement is incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 18, 2005.

Hershey Foods Corporation’s Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan is
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 29, 2002,

Hershey Foods Corporation’s Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Hershey Foods Corporation’s Amended and Restated Directors’ Compensation Plan is
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Hershey Foods Corporation’s Executive Benefits Protection Plan (Group 3A), as
amended, covering certain of its executive officers, is incorporated by reference from
Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
June 29, 2003.

The Separation Agreement and General Release entered into effective December 6,
2002 between Hershey Foods Corporation and Wynn A. Willard is incorporated by
reference from Exhibit 10.3 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2002.

The Executive Employment Agreement between Hershey Foods Corporation and
Richard H. Lenny, dated March 12, 2001, is incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.2
to the Company’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended April 1, 2001.

The Retirement Agreement and General Release between Hershey Foods Corporation
and Frank Cerminara, dated October 21, 2004, is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit
10.1.

A summary of certain compensation matters previously contained in the Company’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed February 18, 2005, is attached hereto and filed as
Exhibit 10.2.

Broad Based Equity Compensation Plans

T.

(12)

(21)

(23)

(31.1)

Hershey Foods Corporation’s Broad Based Stock Option Plan, as amended, is
incorporated by reference from Exhibit 10.4 to the Company’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.

Computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges statement

A computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the fiscal years ended December 31,
2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000 is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 12.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant
A list setting forth subsidiaries of the Company is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 21.
Independent Auditors’ Consent

The consent dated March 7, 2005 to the incorporation of reports of the Company’s
Independent Auditors is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 23.

Certification of Richard H. Lenny, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 31.1.
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(31.2) Certification of David J. West, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, is attached hereto and filed as Exhibit 31.2.

The following item is furnished with this report:

(32)  Certification of Richard H. Lenny, Chief Executive Officer, and David J. West, Chief
Financial Officer, pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 is attached
hereto and furnished as Exhibit 32.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
the Company has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned,
thereunto duly authorized, this 7** day of March, 2005,

HERSHEY FOODS CORPORATION
(Registrant)

By: /s D. J. WEST
D. J. West
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the
date indicated. :

Signature Title Date
/s/ R. H. LENNY Chief Executive Officer and Director March 7, 2005
(R. H. Lenny)
/s/ D. J. WEST Chief Financial Officer March 7, 2005
(D. J. West) '
/s/ D. W. TACKA Chief Accounting Officer March 7, 2005
(D. W. Tacka)
/s/ J. A. BOSCIA Director March 7, 2005
(J. A. Boscia)
/s/ R. H. CAMPBELL Director March 7, 2005
(R. H. Campbell)
/s/ R. F. CAVANAUGH Director March 7, 2005
(R. F. Cavanaugh)
/s/ G. P, COUGHLAN Director March 7, 2005
(G. P. Coughlan)
/s H. EDELMAN Director March 7, 2005
(H. Edelman)
/s/ B. G. HILL Director March 7, 2005
(B. G. Hill)
/s/ M. J. MCDONALD Director March 7, 2005
(M. J. McDonald)
/s/ M. J. TOULANTIS Director March 7, 2005

(M. J. Toulantis)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Hershey Foods Corporation:

Under date of March 3, 2005, we reported on the consolidated balance sheets of Hershey Foods
Corporation and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated
statements of income, cash flows and stockholders’ equity for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2004, which are included in Hershey Foods Corporation’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K. In connection with our audits of the aforementioned consolidated financial statements,
we also audited the related financial statement schedule. This financial statement schedule is the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on this
financial statement schedule based on our audit.

In our opinion, such financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the
informaticn set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Corporation adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 46, Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an
interpretation of ARB No. 51, on June 30, 2003.

/s/KPMG LLP

New York, New York
March 3, 2005
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Schedule 11

HERSHEY FOODS CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE II—VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Description

Balance at
Beginning
of Period

Additions

Charged to  Charged  Deductions
Costs and to Other from
Expenses Accounts™  Reserves

Balance
at End
of Period

In thousands of dellars

Year Ended December 31, 2004:
Reserves deducted in the
consolidated balance sheet from
the assets to which they apply

Accounts Receivable—Trade

Year Ended December 31, 2003:
Reserves deducted in the
consolidated balance sheet from
the assets to which they apply

Accounts Receivable—Trade

Year Ended December 31, 2002:
Reserves deducted in the
consolidated balance sheet from
the assets to which they apply

Accounts Receivable—Trade

$21,099

$ 1,844 $2,930 $ (8,292)

$17,581

$16,524

$13,119 $3,599 $(12,143)

$21,099

315,958

$ 6,414 $3,023 $ (8,871)

$16,524

{a) Includes recoveries of amounts previously written off and amounts related to acquired businesses.
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CERTIFICATION

I, Richard H. Lenny, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hershey Foods Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 15(f) and 15d-
15(0) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

{b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee
of the registrant’s board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b} Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

s

Richard H. Lenny
Chief Executive Officer

March 7, 2005
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CERTIFICATION

I, David J. West, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of Hershey Foods Corporation;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact
or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the
circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in
this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations
and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and 1 are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e))
and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 15(f) and 15d-
15()) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information
relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us
by others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is
being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over
financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

(¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and
presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and
procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation
of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee
of the registrant’s board of directors:

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal
control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the
registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have
a significant role in the registrant’s internal contrel over financial reporting.

‘DMWW“‘

Chief Financial Officer
March 7, 2005
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SUMMARY ANNUAL REPORT

Please refer tc the Summary Annual Report enclosed with this publication for more
information about the Company and its directors and executive officers. The Annual
Report to Stockholders and Summary Annual Report are not part of the Company’s
soliciting material.
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